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Management Discussion and Analysis & 32

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s trading
volume for steel and iron ore recorded record high, sales
revenue increased by 25.4% year-on-year to approximately
HK$7,600 million. However, due to the impact brought by
European debt crisis in the second half of the year and the
two transactions regarding import inventory recorded a
loss of over HK$30 million, it turned around profit-making
performance of the Group. In addition, due to a change in
the fair value of the contingent consideration regarding the
acquisition of magnetite iron ore mining project in Shandong,
the Group recorded a non-cash loss of approximately HK$278
million, resulting a loss attributable to shareholders of
approximately HK$305 million.

Steel Trading

The Group’s steel trading business mainly includes iron ore
trading and steel imports and exports, both are subject to
changes in international political and economic factors.

In 2011, the production of crude steel in the world’s major
steel-producing countries was 1,527 million tonnes, an
increase of 6.8% year-on-year. Crude steel production in
China increased by 8.9% year-on-year to 683 million tonnes,
reaching record high.

Regarding iron ore trading, India has always been one of the
major iron ore suppliers globally. However, due to a gradual
annual increase in India’s domestic iron ore consumption and
the restrictions imposed on export and mining, iron ore import
in China becomes heavily dependent on the supply from
the three largest mining enterprises in Brazil and Australia,
creating a monopolistic situation.

In the first half of 2011, the iron ore price remained strong
and import maintained a sustainable growth. However, due to
falling steel price in the second half of the year, the price and
the volume of iron ore imports were adjusted significantly.
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REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Steel Trading (continued)

The Group signed a 5-year long term contract with FMG, the
third largest iron ore producer in Australia, in 2009, securing
a stable iron ore supply for the Group. The Group also signed
annual sales agreement with the downstream users which
not only helped evade the fluctuation brought by market
turbulence, but also realize additional business for the Group.
Apart from the FMG contract, the Group has actively been
exploring mineral resources in other countries and regions,
including spot market procurement and negotiation of longer-
term contract agreement. However, iron ore price is currently
fixed by index, replacing contract price. The purchase price
derived from long-term agreement is similar or even contrary
to the spot trading price which dampens profit margins.
Nevertheless, index price fixing is positive for hedging risk.
During the period, the Group participated in the iron ore
arbitrage business leveraging on the experience from spot
trading. Meanwhile, benefitting from the expectation of RMB
appreciation, the Group gained extra revenue in the second
and third quarter of the year through the financial products
offered by banks after receiving letters of credit in RMB from
Chinese buyers.

In respect of steel imports and exports, aided by the growing
demand in the first quarter of 2011, steel price maintained
at a high level globally, and the volume of export had
increased substantially in China. In the second quarter, the
economic recovery in the United States began to slow down,
many North African countries encountered political turmoil,
inflation in Asia was worsen, sovereign debt crisis in Eurozone
deteriorated further and spilled over to core Eurozone
countries including Germany, France and Italy. In order to
tackle inflation, China implemented monetary contractionary
policy and adopted a series of tightening measures in real
estate industry, which dampened the demand for steel, and
consequently, the export volume had dropped substantially.
The business environment was worsen in the fourth quarter;
steel price slumped substantially in major markets. At the year
end, market confidence began to restore until the European
debt crisis showing signs of recovery; in China, central bank
lowered the deposit reserve rate of RMB for the first time
since 2008, loosening the liquidity, and the steel price was
gradually stabilizing.
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REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Steel Trading (continued)

The Group's steel import and export trading was benefited
from long term stable sales contracts which enabled the
Group to control risk and maintain sales volume amid market
fluctuation. And the Group gained a larger market shares in
certain product categories. Apart from having a variety of
general steel sales trading in Asia and Europe markets, the
Group has been exploring end-users and participating in high-
end products segments business which are less competitive.
Overall business was able to maintain a promising level in
terms of scale and profit, without severely affected by the
market fluctuation.

During the review period, the Group cleaned up two import
inventory contracts for pellet and nickel ore which recorded
a loss of over HK$30 million, turning around profit-making
performance.

Steel Processing

Although the management of Dongguan steel processing
plant conducted a series of measures on staff rationalization,
cost control and inventories reduction and made progress on
RMB domestic sales business, the fierce pricing competition
and the export order were influenced by the economic
depression in Europe and America with sales volume, unit
selling price and gross profit margin for the steel processing
plant falling. The Group recorded a loss during the year.

Investment in Mineral Resources

The Group completed exercising the call option to further
acquire shares of Tai Xin Minerals Limited to approximately
70% in June 2011.

Tai Xin Minerals Limited owns an extraordinarily large
magnetite iron ore mine in Laiyang City, Shandong Province,
in which transportation is convenient and supply of water
and electricity are adequate. The topography in the area is
beneficial for mining and tailings discharge. In addition to
the current iron ore resources exploration, the Group will
continue to explore the remaining mine tenements, aiming to
raise the resources level further.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 12

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Investment in Mineral Resources (continued)

The construction work of the no. 2 processing plant with
5 million tonnes annual processing capacity was completed
during the year. It has completed the integration of
exploration licenses of four independent mining tenements.

Under normal circumstances, magnetite ores require physical
processing such as pulverization, sifting in order to produce
concentrate products which generates a large amount of
tailings during the process. The discharge and collection
of tailings will cause safety concerns. Therefore, each level
of Government authorities in Mainland China have taken
very stringent safety inspection and checking procedures in
recent years. Since last August in 2011, the tailing discharge
warehouse had already undertaken evaluation and checking
from experts twice and Government had conducted the
assessment. The Group had adopted the rectification opinion
by undertaking heightening and reinforcement works of
tailing warehouse. Currently, the tailing warehouse is in the
final stage of assessments, awaiting safety permit.

Commercial Property Investment

The integrated shopping mall in Jiangsu Province developed
by the Group continues to provide stable rental income.
The renovation project and re-leasing of 4th, 5th and LG1
floors were completed gradually in the second half of the
year, attracting high quality retail chain to become tenant.
The number of restaurants increased from 11 to over 30.
The number of 5 star cinema houses increased from 6 to
10. The stylish shopping environment and variety of cuisine
and entertainment options boosted both customer flow
and the rental income, paving the way for the upcoming
refurbishment of the department stores floor area on the 3rd
floor in 2012.

In addition, the Group has commenced its commercial real
estate leasing and European luxury brands retail business
in the year. By cooperating with an experienced business
partner, the Group is actively expanding its business into
national commercial real estate leasing, as well as developing
retail chain of international fashion brands with professional
entities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 32

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Looking ahead to 2012, the global economy remains volatile
and the business environment still fills with uncertainties.
The Group’s main objective is to operate its core business
cautiously, realizing its goal to turnaround the business.

For iron ore trading, the Group will continue to develop long-
term and sustainable supply of different mineral resources and
execute the long-term iron ore contract with FMG effectively.
Since iron ore has more and more financial attributes, we
shall, on the basis of spot trading, maintain cautious in
participating hedging business of iron ore, strengthen our
profitability and risk hedging capability.

For steel import and export trading, the Group will continue
to actively promote global business development and
reinforce China and overseas resources and sales network.
Currently, the Group has established trading business in Asia,
Central and Southern Europe, Middle East, North Africa,
North America, Latin America, etc. Short-term instability in
individual markets will not have an adverse impact on the
Group's overall business substantially. Furthermore, focusing
on developing comparatively more stable business segment,
such as end-user business, high-end products and ad-hoc
steel bidding project, can increase our revenue and minimize
the impacts of market downturn.

For steel processing business, the Group is striving for
profitable operations within the year by adopting measures in
cost rationalization and enhanced marketing.

For investment in mineral resources, the Group restructured
the management team in October 2011, introducing
professional and experienced management in exploration and
mining, and improving integrated management quality of the
project. After obtaining permission from the government in
2012, normal production will be implemented, subsequently,
production and resources exploration in several mining areas
will be commenced.
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REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

In commercial property investment, the renovation on 3rd
floor of Yangzhou Times Square and term for lease will be
started in this year. It is expected to be the new profit growth
engine. At the same time, the Group has agreed to cooperate
with a well-known commercial business management
company to develop national commercial property leasing
business. The floor area of the business, which is put into
operation or in preparation of opening, has reached 140,000
square metres. The business is located at Nanjing East Road
and the Bund in Shanghai and Wuxi, etc. At present, there is
great demand of leasing business professionals in domestic
large-scale shopping mall. The Group's participation would
effectively boost the aforesaid business development. We
are actively looking for long-term leasing of several new
commercial projects in Shenzhen, Beijing and Tianjin, as well as
a number of refurbishment contracts of old shopping centres.
On the other hand, the Group is also progressively developing
chained fashion brand business by cooperating with our
experienced Hong Kong business partners and domestic retail
distributors with sophisticated network, management team
and local experience. The retail chain of fashion brands and
shopping mall leasing business are expected to generate
synergistic effect.

To conclude, in the coming year, the Group will adopt a
firm and steady, progressive, cautious and flexible operation
strategy in core business, at the same time, strengthen its risk
management, increasing the overall operational revenue and
creating values for our shareholders.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group continued to be in a stable financial position with
cash and bank balances of approximately HK$246,610,000
(2010: HK$374,103,000) as at 31 December 2011.

An allotment of 460,000,000 shares was made in the first
quarter by the Company for cash amounting to approximately
HK$214 million. It helped replenish the Group’s working
capital requirements and maintain the Group’s current ratio,
as a ratio of current assets to current liabilities, at 1.48 (2010:
1.56) as at 31 December 2011.

The Group's gearing ratio, as a ratio of total borrowings
net of total cash and cash equivalents to total equity, was
reduced to 0.42 (2010: 0.44) as at 31 December 2011.
The total borrowings of the Group were approximately
HK$1,146,000,000 (2010: HK$1,378,000,000) as at 31

£ 73 AT
BERBERMEER

R-Z——F+-_A=+—0 A&EE#H
REBROMBMRL  HERSRBITER
#)78 246,610,000 (—ZF —ZF : B
374,103,0007T) °

KA B E —Z=E Bl %460,000,0008% 8% 17 -
BMERESBE214ET - RAERERNDE
MHAAEENEEEST R RERAE
BR T ——F+ A=+ —HBHRLE
(RBEESERBEMRL)B148(ZF—F
& :156) 0

MN-BE——FE+-_F=+—0H AEEDHE
BEEE(BREFNRARS MRS SEMEH
BB AALL ) B THRE042(ZE—FF ¢
044) - RZZE——F+_HA=+—08 K&
B 2 48 %)% 1,146,000,000 T ( —ZF —

December 2011 and their maturity profile as agreed with the T - 5161,378,000,0007T) - EEERA
lenders was as follows: W BN T

2011 2010

HK$ million HK$ million

EWEET BEEET

Within one year —FR 802 895

Between one and two years —E-FNRA 108 171

Between two and five years —ERFRA 184 255

Over five years HBidAF 52 57

1,146 1,378

The Group’s borrowings were denominated in US Dollar, Euro,
Renminbi and Hong Kong Dollar, and were charged interest
at prevailing market rates.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK EXPOSURE

The Group's receipts, payments, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in US Dollar, Euro, Renminbi and
Hong Kong Dollar. The Group considers that its exposure
to exchange rate risk is modest except for Euro in which
less than 15% of the Group’s receipts and payments were
denominated for 2011. To minimise the exchange rate risk,
forward exchange contracts are used when required, in
particular for Euro.

CORPORATE GUARANTEES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had the following
outstanding corporate guarantees:

E)S

£ 73 AT

b BEE 34, 45 I B

AEBEZRA  ZH - EERAEHIER
X BT AREEET - ARERRHE
SMNERR AKX - BRAWERARE T ——F
ELPR15% WA RO EEEMETT - &
RAESMNERK - REFEE - AR
[EER - LEZEUT

LIRS

RZZE——F+_A=+—H FKEEEGU
AR R RIFELR

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT BT T
Guarantees for general banking facilities A4 QA RIEITRE
granted to an associate e Z R 11,260 13,800
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage AS£=EMEBEELE
facilities granted to the buyers of BsRimmiR TR
the Group's properties Z PR 94 90
11,354 13,890

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(@) As at 31 December 2011, the Group had contingent
liabilities relating to Mainland China land appreciation
tax amounted to approximately HK$30,572,000 (2010:
HK$29,305,000).

BRAR

R-ZE——F+-_A=Z+—8 &%
EEBATELHIEERORARABELDY
& #30,572,000 L (ZE—FF : B
29,305,0007T) °

(a)
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 12

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) The Company has been provided with a writ dated 17
October 2011 (“Writ”) filed with the Shandong Province
Tsingdao City Intermediate People’s Court of the PRC
under which a PRC individual (“Plaintiff”) alleged that
he is the beneficial owner of 50% of the equity interest
in S REBEBMR AT (“Allegation”) and that 55
ZEWEAR AT holds such 50% equity interest in %
(5Z= &% AR A 7 as nominee for the Plaintiff. In the
Writ, 5 RBREAR AR and EEREBEERA
7] have been named as defendants. A date for hearing
of the Allegation is to be fixed. In the interim, as a result
of the Allegation, the Shandong Province Tsingdao City
Intermediate People’s Court of the PRC has imposed
freezing order in respect of 50% equity interest in Z&f5
REWBEAMR AT held by SERSBEEAMR AT and
freezing orders in respect of an exploration right and a
mining right held by #[5ZEZREEAR A A (“Freezing
Orders”). The Company has been advised by its PRC legal
advisors that the legal effect of the Freezing Orders is
that the frozen equity interest and rights will be restricted
from transfer during the existence of the Freezing Orders
but the operations of &[5 &EIEFE B A A will not be
hindered by the imposition of the Freezing Orders. The
Company has instructed PRC legal advisors to advise on
and handle the Freezing Orders and the Allegation.

The Company's indirect wholly-owned subsidiary,
Burwill Minerals Limited, acquired on 31 March 2010
and 27 June 2011 respectively a total of approximately
70% interest in the total issued share capital of Tai Xin
Minerals Limited which, based on the understanding of
and due diligence conducted by the Company, indirectly
through S&HEBEEABR A A holds the entire legal
and beneficial equity interest of [ RBFEEEAR L
Al. At the time of such acquisitions, the Company was
not aware of the existence of any third party right (if
any) over the equity interest of [FZEEREEAR A .
If the Allegation is proven to be true or if the Company
suffers any loss or damage as a result of the Allegation,
the Company will consider recovering any loss from the
vendor from whom Burwill Minerals Limited acquired
such 70% issued shares in Tai Xin Minerals Limited.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had capital commitments
contracted but not provided of approximately HK$12,722,000
(2010: HK$14,475,000) in respect of plant and machinery and
leasehold improvement, and approximately HK$11,343,000
(2010: Nil) in respect of investment in an associate.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2011, the following assets were pledged:
(i) certain leasehold land, land use rights and buildings with
a net book amount of approximately HK$98,110,000 (2010:
HK$101,027,000); (ii) certain motor vehicles and machinery
with a net book amount of approximately HK$4,105,000
(2010: HK$4,507,000); (iii) certain investment properties of
approximately HK$731,433,000 (2010: HK$647,473,000);
(iv) certain short-term bank deposits of approximately
HK$25,124,000 (2010: HK$2,335,000); (v) certain financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of equity securities
listed in Hong Kong with market value of approximately
HK$4,764,000 (2010: Nil); and (vi) shares in certain
subsidiaries.

STAFF

As at 31 December 2011, the Group employed 792 staff.
Staff remuneration packages are structured and reviewed
by reference to market terms and individual merits. The
Group also provides other staff benefits which include year
end double pay, contributory provident fund and medical
insurance. Share options and discretionary bonus may also be
granted to eligible staff based on individual and the Group
performances. Training programmes for staff are provided as
and when required.
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Biographies of Directors = % ff] &

MR. CHAN SHING, AGED 56
Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. CHAN joined the Group as Chairman and Managing
Director in 1998. Mr. CHAN has over 20 years of experience
in international trading of metal, the processing and
manufacturing of related products, the management
of industrial enterprises, the investment in industrial
and commercial properties, and corporate planning and
management. Ms. LAU Ting is the spouse of Mr. CHAN.

MR. SIT HOI TUNG, AGED 46
Executive Director and Deputy General Manager

Mr. SIT joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed as an
Executive Director in 2000. He was promoted to Deputy
General Manager in 2006. Mr. SIT is also a Director of Burwill
Resources Limited in-charge of contracts and import/export
bills operation for metal trading. He graduated from the
Finance Department of Jinan University in Guangzhou. He had
worked for banking sector and metal trading companies and
has over 18 years of experience in international metal trading
and import/export bills operation.

MR. YANG DAWEI, AGED 59
Executive Director

Mr. YANG joined the Group in March 2001 and is an Executive
Director. Mr. YANG is a Senior Economist of the PRC. In mid-
1980’s, he was employed as the Head of Changzhou Tractor
Company, Jiangsu Province; the Chairman of Changzhou City
Labour Union and the Head of Liyang City, Jiangsu Province.
In mid-1990's, he was elected as Routing Deputy Mayor of
Changzhou City Government, Jiangsu Province. He is currently
the Chairman of the Jiangsu Overseas Group Corp. and the
Chairman and President of Zhong Shan Company Limited,
the window company of the Jiangsu Province in Hong Kong.
He has got over 20 years of experience in corporate planning
and management, international trade, corporate finance and
project investment, international economic and technology
cooperation.
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Biographies of Directors = % ff &

MS. LAU TING, AGED 55
Executive Director

Ms. LAU joined the Group as an Executive Director in
1998. Ms. LAU has over 20 years of experience in business
development and strategic planning, project investment and
financial management. She is the spouse of Mr. CHAN Shing.
Ms. LAU is also the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited.

MS. TUNG PUI SHAN, VIRGINIA, AGED 45
Executive Director

Ms. TUNG joined the Group in 1988 and is an Executive
Director. Ms. TUNG is currently in-charge of the Investment
Division. She holds a bachelor’'s degree in Management
Sciences from the University of Manchester, United Kingdom.

MR. KWOK WAI LAM, AGED 49
Executive Director

Mr. KWOK joined the Group in 1994 and is an Executive
Director. He is also the Company Secretary and the Group’s
Financial Controller. Mr. KWOK has over 20 years’ experience
in the areas of auditing, finance and accounting. He is a
Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

MR. YIN MARK, AGED 54
Executive Director

Mr. YIN joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed as an
Executive Director in 1999. He graduated from Guangzhou
Foreign Language University and worked for China National
Metals and Minerals Import and Export Corporation (renamed
China Minmetals Corporation) and European multinational
steel manufacturing and trading company. He is currently the
President of Burwill Steel Pipes Limited, and is in-charge of
the Group's steel processing division and responsible for its
daily management, business planning and development. He
has over 30 years of experience in international metal trading.
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Biographies of Directors = % ff] &

MR. SHAM KAI MAN, AGED 45
Executive Director

Mr. SHAM joined the Group in 2000 and was appointed as an
Executive Director in July 2009. He is the Managing Director
of Burwill Resources Limited, a subsidiary of the Company,
in-charge of the Group's steel and mineral trading business.
Mr. SHAM graduated from The University of Hong Kong and,
prior to joining the Group, had worked for a multinational
steel trading company for 7 years. He has over 19 years
extensive experience in steel trading and gains good
international connections.

MR. CUlI SHU MING, AGED 74
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. CUI joined the Group as an Independent Non-Executive
Director in 1998. Mr. CUI graduated from People’s University
of China. He was the Deputy Head of the Bank of China,
Jiangsu branch, the Executive Director of The National
Commercial Bank, Ltd. and the General Manager of its
Hong Kong branch, a Director and the Executive Vice
President of The Ka Wah Bank Ltd.. Mr. CUl is currently an
Independent Non-Executive Director of China LotSynergy
Holdings Limited and Yue Da Mining Holdings Limited, both
are listed companies in Hong Kong. He has over 40 years of
experience in international finance and corporate planning
and management.

MR. HUANG SHENGLAN, AGED 60
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. HUANG joined the Group as an Independent Non-
Executive Director in September 2004. Mr. HUANG was
an executive director and the deputy governor of China
Everbright Bank, Head Office and was an executive director
and the general manager of China Everbright Technology
Limited. Mr. HUANG holds a diploma in Arts from Huazhong
Normal University and in International Economics from
Huadong Normal University and a certificate in International
Economic Law from Xiamen University and in Advanced
Management Programme from the Business School of Harvard
University, USA. Mr. HUANG is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited,
Symphony Holdings Limited and Chongging Road & Bridge
Co. Ltd..
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MR. CHAN MING FAI, AGED 50
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. CHAN joined the Group as an Independent Non-Executive
Director in October 2011. He is currently the Chief Executive
Officer of Full Seas Technology Group primarily responsible for
the formulation and execution of the group’s strategy. Prior
to that, Mr. CHAN was the President of a private financial
advisory company, Dandelion Capital Group. He has over
twenty years of experience in investment banking and asset
management. Mr. CHAN had worked for Jardine Fleming
Investment Management with a major responsibility to market
unit trusts and asset management products in Hong Kong and
subsequently in various Asian markets, and was particularly
instrumental in the establishment of Jardine Fleming’'s
investment trust operation in Japan, Korea and Indonesia.
Mr. CHAN also cofounded the KGI Group, which is a pan-
Asian investment bank with shareholders including major
investors and institutions in Asia, where he was the head
of the asset management operation which managed about
USD400 million in hedge funds and other portfolios, and was
also a member of the management committee of KGI Group.
Mr. CHAN received a bachelor’s degree in Social Sciences
with major in Economics from the University of Hong Kong.
Mr. CHAN is currently an Independent Non-Executive Director
of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Report of Directors & £ B %

The board of Directors of Burwill Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) presents to the shareholders their report
together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2011.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2011 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 52.

The respective state of affairs of the Group and the Company
as at 31 December 2011 are set out in the balance sheets on

pages 50 and 51.

The Group's cash flows are set out in the consolidated
statement of cash flows on pages 56 and 57.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Group are steel trading, steel
processing, mineral resources exploration and development
and commercial property investment.

The Group's segment results for the year and other segment
information are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIVIDEND

No interim dividend was paid during the year.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil).
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases attributable to the Group's
major suppliers are as follows:

%
— the largest supplier 15
— five largest suppliers combined 34

The percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s major
customers are as follows:

%
— the largest customer 13
— five largest customers combined 30

None of the Directors, their respective associates nor
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any
interest in the above suppliers or customers at any time during
the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

The movements in property, plant and equipment and
investment properties during the year are set out in notes 7
and 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

The particulars of properties held by the Group for investment
as at 31 December 2011 are set out on page 179.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

The particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and
associates as at 31 December 2011 are set out in notes 10
and 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK LOANS

The particulars of the Group’s bank loans are set out in note
21 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's bank loans were denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar, US Dollar, Renminbi and Euro. As at 31 December
2011, around 75% of the Group’s bank loans were
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar and US Dollar. All the bank
loans bear interest at prevailing market rates.
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Report of Directors & £ B &

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves during the year are set out
in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2011, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders calculated in accordance
with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda amounted to
HK$853,837,000 (2010: HK$860,001,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws although there is no statutory restriction
against the granting of such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2011.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to the share option schemes adopted by the
Company on 6 June 2002 (“2002 Option Scheme”) and 8
June 2011 (“2011 Option Scheme”), certain options were
granted to subscribe for new ordinary shares of the Company.
Details of which are set out as follows:

(A) 2002 Option Scheme

() Summary of terms of 2002 Option Scheme

(i) Purpose of 2002 Option Scheme

The purpose of 2002 Option Scheme is to provide
incentives to Participants (as stated in paragraph
(ii)) to contribute to the Group and to enable the
Group to recruit high-calibre employees and attract
resources that are valuable to the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(A) 2002 Option Scheme (continued)

() Summary of terms of 2002 Option Scheme (continued)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

Participants

Any person being an employee, officer, buying
agent, selling agent, consultant, sales representative
or marketing representative of, or supplier or
provider of goods or services to, the Group,
including any executive or non-executive director of
the Group.

Maximum number of shares

The limit on the total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under 2002 Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of any
member of the Group must not exceed 30 per cent.
of the number of issued shares from time to time.
The total number of shares available for issue under
2002 Option Scheme and 2011 Option Scheme as
at the date of this report is 570,375,968 shares,
representing approximately 11.7 per cent. of the
issued share capital of the Company as of that date.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

Unless approved by shareholders in general meeting,
no Participant shall be granted an option which
would result in the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted
and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such Participant in any
12-month period up to and including the proposed
date of grant for such options would exceed 1 per
cent. of the number of shares in issue as at the
proposed date of grant.

Option period

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of 2002 Option Scheme at any time during a
period of not exceeding 10 years to be notified by
the Board to the grantee, such period to commence
on the date of grant or such later date as the Board
may determine and expiring on the last day of the
said period. Under 2002 Option Scheme, the Board
may, at its discretion, prescribe a minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(A) 2002 Option Scheme (continued)

() Summary of terms of 2002 Option Scheme (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Payment on acceptance of option

HK$1.00 in cash is payable by the Participant who
accepts the grant of an option in accordance with
the terms of 2002 Option Scheme on acceptance of
the grant of an option.

Subscription price

The subscription price for the shares under the
options to be granted under 2002 Option Scheme
will be a price determined by the Board and
notified to a Participant at the time the grant of
the options is made to (and subject to acceptance
by) the Participant and will be at least the highest
of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
the date of the grant (subject to acceptance) of
the option, which must be a business day; (b) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the
grant (subject to acceptance) of the option; and (c)
the nominal value of the shares.

(viii) The life of 2002 Option Scheme

2002 Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on 6 June
2002, after which period no further options will
be granted or accepted but the provisions of 2002
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect
in all other respects.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(A) 2002 Option Scheme (continued)

(I) Movements of options under 2002 Option Scheme

(i) Directors
E%
CHAN Shing
Bt

SIT Hoi Tung
HiER

YANG Dawei
N

LAU Ting
ag

TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia
EfR

KWOK Wai Lam
PR

YIN Mark
F

SHAM Kai Man
SHX

CUI Shu Ming
EEH

Exercise

Date of price
grant per share
hi:E BRTER
HKS

BET

06/07/2010 05
06/07/2010 05
06/07/2010 05
06/07/2010 05
06/07/2010 05
06/07/2010 05
06/07/2010 05
06/07/2010 05
06/07/2010 05

Exercise period

fHEd

from

06/10/2010
061072011
06/10/2012

06/10/2010
061072011
06/10/2012

06/10/2010
061072011
06/10/2012

06/10/2010
061012011
06/10/2012

06/10/2010
061072011
06/10/2012

06/10/2010
061072011
06/10/2012

06/10/2010
061012011
06/10/2012

06/10/2010
061012011
06/10/2012

06/10/2010
061012011
06/10/2012

until

051072013
05/1072013
05/10/2013

05/10/2013
05/1072013
05/10/2013

051072013
05/1072013
05/10/2013

051072013
05/1072013
05/10/2013

051072013
05/1072013
05/10/2013

051072013
05/1072013
05/10/2013

051072013
05/1072013
05/10/2013

051072013
05/1072013
05/10/2013

051072013
05/1072013
05/10/2013

R B4 at & (4
(A)
(m

outstanding
asat
01/01/2011
1
01/0172011
BRKTE

1,540,000
1,540,000
1,320,000

1,540,000
1,540,000
1,320,000

630,000
630,000
540,000

1,540,000
1,540,000
1,320,000

1,540,000
1,540,000
1,320,000

1,540,000
1,540,000
1,320,000

1,540,000
1,540,000
1,320,000

1,540,000
1,540,000
1,320,000

630,000
630,000
540,000

"SI mEtn )

“ET_REREANRTZMERESE

granted
during
the year

ERBL
(Note 2)
(Wit2)

Number of options
L L
exercised  cancelled lapsed outstanding
during during during as at
theyear ~ theyear  theyear 31/12/2011
®
3111272011

R EAER  FARN RRRTE

- - - 1,540,000
- - - 1,540,000
- - - 1,320,000

- - - 1,540,000
- - - 1,540,000
- - - 1,320,000

- - - 630,000
- - - 630,000
- - - 540,000

- - - 1,540,000
- - - 1,540,000
- - - 1,320,000

- - - 1,540,000
- - - 1,540,000
- - - 1,320,000

- - - 1,540,000
- - - 1,540,000
- - - 1,320,000

- - - 1,540,000
- - - 1,540,000
- - - 1,320,000

- - - 1,540,000
- - - 1,540,000
- - - 1,320,000

630,000
- - - 630,000
- - - 540,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

RRRRAERT B (4

(A) 2002 Option Scheme (continued) (A) —EZ=TRERRENEE)
() Movements of options under 2002 Option Scheme () —EE R ENE T ZaERitsE) 2

(continued)

Exercise period Number of options
fHER WRERA
Exercise outstanding  granted  exercised  cancelled lapsed outstanding
Date of price as at during during during during as at
grant per share from until  01/01/2011  theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear 31/12/2011
B ®
01/01/2011 31/12/2011
EHAN SRITER i E ORRATE FABE 0 FAGTE  EREE  ERRN BRATE
HKS (Note 2)
FET (Wit 2)
(i) Directors (continued)
16

HUANG Shenglan 06/07/2010 0.5 06/1022010  05/10/2013 630,000 - - - - 630,000
EBE 0671022011 05/10/2013 630,000 - - - - 630,000
06/10/2012 ~ 05/10/2013 540,000 - - - - 540,000
MIAO Gengshu (Note 3) 06/07/2010 0.5 06/1022010  05/10/2013 630,000 - - - - 630,000
Ee) 06/10/2011  05/10/2013 630,000 - - - (630,000) -
06/10/2012  05/10/2013 540,000 - - - (540,000) -
SZE Tsai Ping, Michael (Note 3)  06/07/2010 0.5 06/102010  05/10/2013 630,000 - - - - 630,000
LB W) 0671022011 05/10/2013 630,000 - - - (630,000) -
06/10/2012  05/10/2013 540,000 - - - (540,000) -
(i) Continuous contract employees 06/07/2010 0.5 06/1022010  05/1022013 18,130,000 - - - (2,100,000 16,030,000
EHAWER 06/10/2011  05/1022013 18,130,000 - - - (2,100,000) 16,030,000
06/10/2012  05/10/2013 15,540,000 - - - (1,800,000) 13,740,000
28/03/2011 0.5 28/0412011  27/04/2014 - 840,000 - - - 840,000
2810412012 27/04/2014 - 840,000 - - - 840,000
2810412013 27/04/2014 - 720,000 - - - 720,000

Total:
5 91,600,000 2,400,000 - - (8,340,000 85,660,000

Notes: Hiat

1. The options are recognised as expenses in the financial 1. BRECKESUERELENE 25N
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting BHEk EERAYHEE - AFEARD
Standard 2. Other details of the value of options granted ERENEEREEERENSFTEE
during the year and the accounting policy adopted for B RE NG E M BRERMEI9R
the share options are set out in notes 19 and 2.22 to the 222
consolidated financial statements respectively.

2. The closing price per share of the Company on 28 March 2. RIZE——F=AZ+ B tfERE
2011, being the date of grant of the above share options, was BHER)  ARRRDWTHEASRERE
HK$0.44. 0.447T °

3. Mr. MIAO Gengshu and Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael resigned as 3. HEHHELLERRBELER-ZT—F+

Directors of the Company on 1 October 2011. Their respective
outstanding balance options of 630,000 were lapsed on 1
January 2012 in accordance with the terms of 2002 Option
Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(B) 2011 Option Scheme

U]

Summary of terms of 2011 Option Scheme

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Purpose of 2011 Option Scheme

The purpose of 2011 Option Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to Participants (as stated in
paragraph (ii)) for the contribution to the Group
and to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-
calibre employees and other personnel that are
valuable to the Group.

Participants

Any individual being an employee (whether full-
time or part-time), officer, buying agent, selling
agent, consultant, sales representative or marketing
representative of, or supplier or provider of goods or
services to, the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
including any executive or non-executive director of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, who satisfies
the criteria set out in 2011 Option Scheme.

Maximum number of shares

The limit on the total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under 2011 Option
Scheme, together with all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other
share option schemes of the Company and/or any
subsidiary must not exceed 30 per cent. of the
number of issued shares from time to time. The
total number of shares available for issue under
2002 Option Scheme and 2011 Option Scheme as
at the date of this report is 570,375,968 shares,
representing approximately 11.7 per cent. of the
issued share capital of the Company as of that date.

MRRRERT R (%)

(B)

0

—ET——RREHE

—T——REREADEERGR

(i)

(i)

(i)

ZEF BRI EZ B

—E—BRE R e EEE
28E(RAX(INR) RAEEED
BRIt 2 R RBE - A KT
AEBEHRERREHASEARE
ZEENSEZRERETAL

%

2HE

\

FRHAEINN T —— BT &
BRI ZE AL BARRSHEE
AMBARZEE (THREZBK
B EE  RBAE - HER
BB HERRIMHRERK
EmERBHERIERD - (8
AR B REAMHER R 2T
EFIIFITESF) »

K178 H LR

RIE-Z—— BRI EE AR
kA RNHB AR ZEANEE
BRSO MASTEZEEE
MARTT{E AR TRIR T
PIBHIREE - T A BE T B 31T
R BB 30% - RANIREBER - 1R
BT _BEREFEN T ——
BREA S TR IROEBESR
570,375,968  HHERE B AR
AIE BT ZANA911.7% ©
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(B) 2011 Option Scheme (continued)

() Summary of terms of 2011 Option Scheme (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

Unless approved by shareholders in general meeting,
no Participant shall be granted an option which
would result in the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted
and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such Participant in
any 12-month period immediately preceeding the
proposed date of grant for such options would
exceed 1 per cent. of the number of shares in issue as
at the proposed date of grant.

Option period

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of 2011 Option Scheme at any time during a
period of not exceeding 10 years to be notified by
the Board to the grantee, such period to commence
on the date of grant or such later date as the Board
may determine and expiring on the last day of the
said period. Under 2011 Option Scheme, the Board
may, at its discretion, prescribe a minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

Payment on acceptance of option

HK$1.00 in cash is payable by the Participant who
accepts the grant of an option in accordance with
the terms of 2011 Option Scheme on acceptance of
the grant of an option.
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(B)

0

—E——mEdEatRE)

“E—MEREBERER(E)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

G RE TR LR

PREBRAERRREG LRS- i
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(B) 2011 Option Scheme (continued)

() Summary of terms of 2011 Option Scheme (continued)
(vii) Subscription price

The subscription price for the shares under the
options to be granted under 2011 Option Scheme
will be a price determined by the Board and
notified to a Participant at the time the grant of
the options is made to (and subject to acceptance
by) the Participant and will be at least the highest
of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange
on the date of the grant (subject to acceptance) of
the option, which must be a business day; (b) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the
grant (subject to acceptance) of the option; and (c)
the nominal value of the shares.

(viii) The life of 2011 Option Scheme

2011 Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing from 8 June
2011, after which period no further options will
be granted or accepted but the provisions of 2011
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect
in all other respects.

(1) No options had been granted, exercised, cancelled nor
lapsed under 2011 Option Scheme since its adoption on
8 June 2011.

MRRRERT R (%)

(B)

0

—E——mEdEatRE)

“E—MEREBERER(E)

(vii)

(viii)

BB

BRE-_T——BREFSREZE
BREBETRODZABE K$HES
REERRET(BFER)2HE
ZBEESNESE2EE - Ui
RTIERRZ&ESE  @QRHDE
B (BFEX)BREE A (BA
REFB)EBX S ARERMRA
SIZ W E - (BRI EEER N (B
FER)BRE 2 B R E =2
B EMRZ e RERMIZF
BTIE - RO ZEE

ZE BRI B R

e N R A g ] =
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Shing

Mr. SIT Hoi Tung

Mr. YANG Dawei

Ms. LAU Ting

Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam

Mr. YIN Mark

Mr. SHAM Kai Man

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CUI Shu Ming

Mr. HUANG Shenglan

Mr. CHAN Ming Fai (appointed on 10 October 2011)
Mr. MIAO Gengshu (resigned on 1 October 2011)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael (resigned on 1 October 2011)

In accordance with bye-laws 85 and 92 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, Messrs. LAU Ting, TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia, YANG
Dawei and CHAN Ming Fai shall retire from office at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set
out on pages 14 to 17.
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Report of Directors & £ B %

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company (including
those interests and short positions which were taken or
deemed to have interests and short positions under the
provisions of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as
follows:

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

EERTTHREHMNERG - HRAKGRE
SETHAHERRKE

RZZE——F+ZA=+—H  REXRF
BRE LM RO([ESEREED ) E
352EFTREA T HIF B R ATEL - SR
BETRARESFETESFXZNFRETRIRE
HARARBERZ P - NARIREERITHAR
HNA R RSB ERAE (EE R ES K
HIEROIEXVER B - R REHE

BEIRRES MR RIIRRBER R

HRAR BT

FATFRG RERRGER

Number of ordinary shares & underlying shares

EERRGRERKRAHE
Approximate
percentage in
Corporate the Company's issued
Name of Director Personal Interests Family Interests Interests Total share capital
BIEELEERTT
EFRE Bz £33 1 AL A K&afHL
CHAN Shing 115,474,521(1) 108,442,601(L) 2,414,966,037(L) 2,638,883,159(L) 54.13%(L)
B (Note 1) (Notes 1 & 2) 1,406,427,301(S) 1,406,427,301(S) 28.85%(S)
(Hit1) (Wit122) (Notes 3 & 4) (Note 4)
(Wit3R4) (Writ4)
SIT Hoi Tung 8,813,869(L) - - 8,813,869(L) 0.18%(L)
BER (Note 1)
(Hit1)
YANG Dawei 1,800,000(L) - - 1,800,000(L) 0.04%(L)
BAE (Note 5)
(Writs)
LAU Ting 108,442,601(L) 115,474,521(L) 2,414,966,037(L) 2,638,883,159(L) 54.13%(L)
2 (Note 1) (Notes 1 & 6) 1,406,427,301(S) 1,406,427,301(S) 28.85%(S)
(Hit1) (Hrit1%26) (Notes 3 & 4) (Note 4)
(Wit3R4) (Writ4)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND BERITRESNVEG HEBRORE
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES SEBhEEHRARKRE£)

AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company EAFIRDRIAMBGEES(E)
(continued)

Number of ordinary shares & underlying shares

EERRGRERKROYE
Approximate
percentage in
Corporate the Company's issued
Name of Director Personal Interests Family Interests Interests Total share capital
BIEELEERTT
1 3.3 Bz £33 1 AL A BEERL
TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia 26,125,226(L) 110,000(L) 7,104,000(L) 33,339,226(L) 0.68%(L)
E( (Note 1) (Note 7)
(Hit1) (Hrzt7)
KWOK Wai Lam 4,400,000(L) - - 4,400,000(L) 0.09%(L)
HER (Note 1)
(Hit1)
YIN Mark 5,400,000(L) - - 5,400,000(L) 0.11%(L)
FiT (Note 1)
(Hit1)
SHAM Kai Man 4,400,000(L) - - 4,400,000(L) 0.09%(L)
=104 (Note 1)
(Hit1)
CUI Shu Ming 1,800,000(L) - - 1,800,000(L) 0.04%(L)
EEH (Note 5)
(Writs)
HUANG Shenglan 1,800,000(L) - - 1,800,000(L) 0.04%(L)
EHE (Note 5)
(Hrits)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

1. Among these interests, 4,400,000 underlying shares were share
options.

2. These interests were held by Ms. LAU Ting, the spouse of Mr. CHAN
Shing.

3. 1,290,961,336 shares were held by Glory Add Limited (“Glory
Add”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Favor King Limited (a company
which is wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting).
226,403,853 shares were held by Hang Sing Overseas Limited (“Hang
Sing”) which is owned as to 51% by Orient Strength Limited (“Orient
Strength”), a company which is wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Shing
and Ms. LAU Ting. 211,900,848 shares were held by Strong Purpose
Corporation, a company which is wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Shing
and Ms. LAU Ting. 685,700,000 shares were charged by Tai Xin
Holdings Limited (“Tai Xin Holdings”) in favour of Burwill Minerals
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

4. As the interests of each of Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting are
deemed to be the interests of each other, the figures referred to the
same shares.

5. Among these interests, 1,800,000 underlying shares were share
options.

6.  These interests were held by Mr. CHAN Shing, the spouse of Ms.
LAU Ting.

7. 7,104,000 shares were owned by Focus Cheer Consultants Limited,
a company which is wholly-owned by Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia.

8.  The letter “L” denotes long position and the letter “S” denotes
short position.

Save as otherwise disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011,
none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had,
or were deemed under the SFO to have, any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

EERTTHERMNERG - HRAKHGRR
SEPRTHERRRE(E)

FOFRGREMBKIGER(Z)

Bt

1. WSEHEZRE P 4,400,000 486880 BEEARE o

2. WEREEHIELLIEE - FIE LI RREAL
pd

3. 1,290,961,336 R AR L E R BFE L2 EH
A H)Favor King Limited#% i3 E 2 & ff[@ A Rl Glory
Add Limited([ Glory Add1)#54 ° 226,403,853/%
fiHang Sing Overseas Limited ([ Hang Sing |) #
A » Orient Strength Limited ([ Orient Strength |)
F5HHang Sing 51% % + MRt £ R 2B &
=4 8l %2 & % 4 Orient Strength ° 211,900,848 %
FaStrong Purpose Corporationf4 + BRIN A K&
Bf= 2+ 2 & # A Strong Purpose Corporation ©
685,700,000/% Jh/# Tai Xin Holdings Limited([ Tai
Xin Holdings ) B F ARG fE 2 BB QR
EREEARAT -

4. ERBRIGEERBIE L L 2 SRR BRI R
& AT E T RER A -

Ul
=

b5 Hkas & 1,800,000 HE RER% 17 BB BB AR AE -

6. ULFEEMRMALHES - RRELERTIBLL
pd T

7. 7,104,0008% fh # (MM 22 -2 & A 2 A FlFocus
Cheer Consultants Limitedi 4 °

8. [LIRRIE : [SIRTFAR -

BREXFABEEEN R-_FT——F+_H
=t—H ARASEFHITHRAHMER
AABSEEAREEE(ERLEFRPE
fERBIFEXVER) 2 Bt ~ R RIEHE T
BRERESFMPEGROIRR SHEE A2
TmIOR B FCBR IR IR I S B R {1 55 352 1%
FRERBE2ELMA - HAMKE EH
RAEFETEFRZNEETARAAR
G i
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2011, according to the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO,
the following persons (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company) had interests and short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company:

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares

FERFERERGREMKGPERS#E
ZRRE

RZE——F+-A=+—H8  BEAQF
IR A MRS IE0IF 33616 FTiR E A T 1H1F
ZERME U TAT(RRARES KT
BFLBRIN) AN A BRI f0 K AR BB P R B 4

AR
RO RERNRHES

Approximate
percentage in

Number of the Company’s
Nature of ordinary shares & issued share
Name of shareholder interest underlying shares capital Note
HERBHR Wl
BEREE EaN" HER{T B E BERTERFTIRL Kzt
Favor King Limited Corporate 1,290,961,336(L) 26.48%(L) 1
NS 1,290,961,336(S) 26.48%(S)
The Company Corporate 685,700,000(L) 14.06%(L) 2
PIN/NE| NE]
Burwill Minerals Limited Chargee 685,700,000(L) 14.06%(L) 2
EREERR AT AT A
LI Xuan Corporate 685,700,000(L) 14.06%(L) 2
Zgf NE] 685,700,000(S) 14.06%(S)
Tai Xin Investment Limited Corporate 685,700,000(L) 14.06%(L) 2
NG 685,700,000(S) 14.06%(S)

Notes:

1. These interests were held by Glory Add, a company which is wholly-
owned by Favor King Limited. Favor King Limited is wholly-owned by
Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting.

2. These interests were held by Tai Xin Holdings (a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Tai Xin Investment Limited) and charged by Tai Xin
Holdings in favour of Burwill Minerals Limited (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company). Tai Xin Investment Limited is
wholly-owned by Mr. LI Xuan.

3. The letter “L"” denotes long position and the letter “S” denotes
short position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, there was
no person (other than the Directors and chief executive of
the Company) who had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
and/or who were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or
more of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other members of
the Group.
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TOP-UP PLACING AND SUBSCRIPTION

Pursuant to the top-up placing and subscription agreement
dated 21 February 2011 (the “Top-up Agreement”) and
the supplemental agreement dated 24 February 2011, the
Company allotted and issued 460,000,000 new ordinary
shares of the Company at a subscription price of HK$0.48
each to Glory Add Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, on 4 March 2011 following completion of the
top-up placing of an aggregate of 460,000,000 existing
shares to not less than six independent investors at a placing
price of HK$0.48 each. The closing price per share on 21
February 2011, being the date of the Top-up Agreement, as
quoted on the Stock Exchange was HK$0.56. A net proceeds
of approximately HK$214 million raised was used for the
expansion of mineral resources business and as general
working capital of the Group.

The 460,000,000 subscription shares were allotted and issued
under the general mandate granted to the Directors of the
Company by its shareholders at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 26 May 2010.

NET LOSS OF TAI XIN MINERALS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

Burwill Minerals Limited (“Burwill Minerals”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, respectively entered
into the Share Purchase Agreement with Tai Xin Investment
Limited on 5 November 2009 and the Supplemental Share
Purchase Agreement with Tai Xin Investment Limited and Tai
Xin Holdings Limited (the “Vendor”) on 24 December 2009
for acquisition of 51% of the issued share capital of Tai Xin
Minerals Limited (“Tai Xin Minerals”). Completion of the
acquisition of Tai Xin Minerals took place on 31 March 2010
and Burwill Minerals further increased interests in Tai Xin
Minerals to approximately 70% on 27 June 2011 by exercising
the call option on 20 June 2011 granted pursuant to the
Call Option Agreement dated 22 January 2010 entered into
among, Burwill Minerals, the Vendor and Tai Xin Minerals.
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NET LOSS OF TAI XIN MINERALS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010 (continued)

An announcement was made on 27 February 2012 in relation
to the confirmation of the consolidated net profit after tax of
the principal business of Tai Xin Minerals for the year ended
31 December 2010 (the “Net Profit”). The Net Profit was
finalised and confirmed to be a loss of HK$797,000, which is
less than the guaranteed profit undertaken and guaranteed
by the Vendor, and thus Burwill Minerals shall have the right
to deal with or sell, transfer, repurchase and cancel, assign or
otherwise deal in all the consideration shares of 685,700,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the
Company held by the Vendor and charged to Burwill Minerals
(the “Consideration Shares”). The Board is now contemplating
various options to deal with the Consideration Shares
including but not limited to disposal of the Consideration
Shares for a consideration, and/or repurchase and cancellation
of the Consideration Shares.

OTHER INFORMATION DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO RULE
13.51B(1) OF LISTING RULES

On 1 March 2012, the annual salaries of each of Mr. CHAN
Shing, Mr. SIT Hoi Tung, Ms. LAU Ting, Ms. TUNG Pui Shan,
Virginia, Mr. KWOK Wai Lam, Mr. YIN Mark and Mr. SHAM
Kai Man were increased by approximately 5%.

Mr. CHAN Shing resigned as an executive director of China
LotSynergy Holdings Limited with effect from 16 February
2012.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes of the Company
disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.
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SERVICE CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company with no specific
term of office or for an initial term of two years (subject
to individual contract) from the date of appointment and
will continue thereafter, until terminated by not less than
one to six months (subject to individual contract) notice in
writing served by either party on the other and each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial
term of three years renewable effective 1 January 2012 and
can be terminated by notice in writing served by either party
on the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors offering
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements,
there was no contracts of significance (as defined in Note
15 of Appendix 16 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any of the
Company’s Directors or members of its management had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFIT

Details of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group and
the employees’ retirement benefit costs charged to the
consolidated income statement for the year are set out in
note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 180.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee which
comprises the three Independent Non-Executive Directors of
the Company, Mr. CUI Shu Ming, Mr. HUANG Shenglan and
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai. The Audit Committee has reviewed and
discussed with the management the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and auditing, internal
controls and financial reporting matters. The audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2011 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng whose term of office will expire upon the
forthcoming annual general meeting. In March 2012, the
practice of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng was reorganised as
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. A resolution for the
appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the
auditors of the Company for the subsequent year is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
CHAN Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors believe that good corporate governance
is an essential element in enhancing the confidence of
shareholders, investors, employees, business partners and
the community as a whole and also the performance of the
Group. The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
will review the corporate governance structure and practices
from time to time and shall make necessary arrangements to
ensure business activities and decision making processes are
made in a proper and prudent manner.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with all the applicable code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) for the year ended 31 December 2011, except for the
deviations as disclosed in this report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Shing (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung (Deputy General Manager)

Mr. YANG Dawei

Ms. LAU Ting

Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia

Mr. KWOK Wai Lam

Mr. YIN Mark

Mr. SHAM Kai Man
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CUI Shu Ming

Mr. HUANG Shenglan

Mr. CHAN Ming Fai (appointed on 10 October 2011)
Mr. MIAO Gengshu (resigned on 1 October 2011)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael (resigned on 1 October 2011)

Following the resignation of Mr. MIAO Gengshu as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company with
effect from 1 October 2011, the Company temporarily having
only two Independent Non-Executive Directors was not
compliant with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules. Subsequently
on 10 October 2011, Mr. CHAN Ming Fai was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company pursuant
to Rule 3.11 of the Listing Rules.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised eleven
Directors, eight of whom are Executive Directors (including the
Chairman) and three of whom are Independent Non-Executive
Directors. Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each
Director are set out in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors” of this annual report. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal actions against
the Directors.

The Board is responsible for the overall strategic development
of the Group. It also monitors the financial performance and
the internal controls of the Group’s business operations.
Executive Directors are responsible for running the Group and
executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The day-to-
day running of the Company is delegated to the management
with department heads responsible for different aspects of
the businesses/functions.

The Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors) serve the relevant function of bringing
independent judgement on the development, performance and
risk management of the Group through their contributions in
board meetings.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board considers that each Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company is independent in character
and judgement. The Company has received from each
Independent Non-executive Director a written confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the Group’s business
development, operation and financial performance. Notice of
at least 14 days is given to all Directors for all regular board
meetings to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. All
regular board meetings adhere to a formal agenda in which
a schedule of matters is addressed to the Board. All Directors
have access to board papers and related materials, and are
provided with adequate information which enables the Board
to make an informed decision on the matters to be discussed
and considered at the board meetings. Minutes of board
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial,
business and family relationship among the members of the
Board except that Ms. LAU Ting is the spouse of Mr. CHAN
Shing.

As stipulated in Code provision A.1.1, the board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals with active
participation, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication, of a majority of directors entitled
to be present. As the Company did not announce its quarterly
results, two regular board meetings were held during the year
for reviewing and approving the interim and annual financial
performance of the Group, which did not fully comply with
the relevant Code provision. Board meetings will be held on
other occasions when board decisions are required.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
During the year under review, two regular board meetings

were held. Details of the attendance of the Directors are as
follows:
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Directors’ Attendance

Executive Directors
Mr. CHAN Shing

(Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung

(Deputy General Manager)
Mr. YANG Dawei
Ms. LAU Ting
Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam
Mr. YIN Mark
Mr. SHAM Kai Man

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. CUI Shu Ming
Mr. HUANG Shenglan
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai
(appointed on 10 October 2011)
Mr. MIAO Gengshu
(resigned on 1 October 2011)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael
(resigned on 1 October 2011)

40 Annual Report 2011 F 3}

EEHERH
BMITES
RERRK ST A 2/2
(L EFEFAHTE)
BRI E 2/2
(BIAEAEHE )
BRERE 0/2
szt 0/2
=y [TB e 2/2
PEREE 2/2
FAr A 2/2
SRS 2/2
BIUEMITES
BEERLE 2/2
EBELE 1/2
PREAE 5 0/0
(R=ZFE——F A+ HEZF)
wHELE 0/2
(R=ZF——F+A—HEF)
EMITES
FEEEE 1/2

(R=F——F1A—HEE)



W HEERERAE

Corporate Governance Report ™% E AR &

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and chief executive officer were
not performed by separate individuals as stipulated in Code
provision A.2.1. The Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company, Mr. CHAN Shing, currently assumes the role of the
chairman and also the chief executive officer responsible for
overseeing the function of the Board and formulating overall
strategies of and organising the implementation structure for
the Company and also managing the Group’s overall business
operations. Given the nature of the Group’s businesses which
require considerable market expertise, the Board believed
that the vesting of the two roles provides the Group with
stable and consistent leadership and allows for more effective
planning and implementation of long term business strategies.
The Board will continuously review the effectiveness of the
structure to balance the power and authority of the Board
and the management.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year under review, the Non-Executive Directors
of the Company were not appointed for a specific term
as stipulated in Code provision A.4.1, but were subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Bye-laws of
the Company (the “Bye-laws”). The Directors have not been
required by the Bye-laws to retire by rotation at least once
every three years. However, in accordance with Bye-law
85 of the Bye-laws, at each annual general meeting of the
Company one-third of the Directors for the time being or, if
their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not greater than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation save any Director holding office as Chairman
or Managing Director. All Non-Executive Directors of the
Company have already entered into service contracts with the
Company on 15 December 2011 for initial term of 3 years
renewable effective 1 January 2012 and the Board will ensure
the retirement of each Director, other than the one who holds
the office as Chairman or Managing Director, by rotation at
least once every three years in order to comply with Code
provisions. The Chairman will not be subject to retirement by
rotation as stipulated in Code provision A.4.2, as the Board
considered that the continuity of office of the Chairman
provides the Group a strong and consistent leadership and is
of great importance to the smooth operations of the Group.
Messrs. LAU Ting, TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia and YANG Dawei
are subject to retirement by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting in accordance with Bye-law 85 of
the Bye-laws. In addition, Mr. CHAN Ming Fai, the newly
appointed Director on 10 October 2011, shall hold office until
the next general meeting and be eligible for re-election in
accordance with Bye-law 92 of the Bye-laws.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 12
September 2006 with specific written terms of reference
which deal with its authority and duties. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three members, Mr. CUI Shu Ming, Mr.
HUANG Shenglan and Mr. SIT Hoi Tung. The chairman of the
Remuneration Committee is Mr. CUI Shu Ming.

The Remuneration Committee will meet to determine the
policy for the remuneration of Directors and the senior
management, and consider and review the terms of service
contracts of the Directors and the senior management.
In determining the emolument payable to Directors, the
Remuneration Committee took into consideration factors
such as time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
abilities, performance and contribution of the Directors to
the Group, the performance and profitability of the Group,
the remuneration benchmark in the industry, the prevailing
market/employment conditions and the desirability of
performance-based remuneration.

Four meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held
during the year ended 31 December 2011. Details of the
attendance of the Remuneration Committee members are as
follows:

Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERTE

(Chairman of Remuneration Committee) (FWZE D
Mr. HUANG Shenglan EHE A
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung (st

On 23 March 2012, a new specific written terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee was adopted by the
Company.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

During the year under review, the Company had not
established a nomination committee with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority
and duties. The Board was responsible for considering the
suitability of a candidate to act as a director, and approving
and terminating the appointment of a director and the
Chairman was mainly responsible for identifying suitable
candidates for members of the Board when there was a
vacancy or an additional director was considered necessary.
The Chairman would propose the appointment of such
candidates to the Board for consideration and the Board
would review the qualifications of the relevant candidates for
determining the suitability to the Group on the basis of his/
her qualifications, experience and background.

During the year under review, one meeting was held by the
Board for nomination of Mr. CHAN Ming Fai as a Director of
the Company. Details of the attendance of the Directors are as
follows:

EFRA

FERN  ARBARKIZEABFERNXER
HENREEZES EZRAETZERLEE

BEANBARBERRIIESZESTE -
ITRITEAENEEREERIRST R
BEER VEAEAEBNAZER - R
AEZREZZTEBAE EFREKRE
AZEBE BBREESEBHNABAEZE
B ORERDESMAREH -

FER - EERRRERAR L ARAT
EEETT—REH - BE2 B REHE
o

Directors’ Attendance

EFHERH
Executive Directors BMITES
Mr. CHAN Shing BRIk 2 A 171
(Chairman and Managing Director) (EBHFEFAHIE)
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung EEHRTE 11
(Deputy General Manager) (GIAEAEE)
Mr. YANG Dawei NS s 0N
Ms. LAU Ting BB+ 0/1
Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia =iz + 171
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam FEFREE /1
Mr. YIN Mark FUL A 1”1
Mr. SHAM Kai Man SROEE 1”1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BEIEBRITESE
Mr. CUI Shu Ming BEERSTE 171
Mr. HUANG Shenglan EBELE A
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai 5 BF B 52 A 0/0
(appointed on 10 October 2011) (RZF——FF A HEZT)
Mr. MIAO Gengshu wHELAE 0/0
(resigned on 1 October 2011) (RZFE——F+H—HEFF)
Non-Executive Director FERITEE
Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael SEEFEE 0/0
(resigned on 1 October 2011) (RZF——F+A—HFHF)
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

On 23 March 2012, a Nomination Committee comprising
five members, Mr. CHAN Shing, Mr. SIT Hoi Tung, Mr. CUI
Shu Ming, Mr. HUANG Shenglan and Mr. CHAN Ming Fai,
with specific written terms of reference which deal with its
authority and duties was established:

e to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

e toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become
Directors and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

e to assess the independence of Independent Non-
Executive Directors; and

e to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive.

Mr. CHAN Shing is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and provides
the Board with advice and recommendations. As at the
date of this report, the Audit Committee comprised three
members, Mr. CUI Shu Ming, Mr. HUANG Shenglan and Mr.
CHAN Ming Fai. All of them are Independent Non-Executive
Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. CUI
Shu Ming. The Board considers that each Audit Committee
member has broad commercial experience and there is a
suitable mix of expertise in business, accounting and financial
management in the Audit Committee.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)
The Audit Committee’s functions includes:

e toreview and monitor financial reporting and the
reporting judgement contained in them; and

e to review financial and internal controls, accounting
policies and practices with management, internal and
external auditors.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
under review, one of which was attended by the external
auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng. Details of the
attendance of the Audit Committee members are as follows:

s EBRLEEVWBHRE URBREMES
HYER ERHIET - &

o HEMEE - A RIMNEZBEIEZRY
% ABEENEFHERRER -

BERZEERNFEARBITMAEGH  IMNE
*églﬁﬁil?iiaﬁﬁfﬁ%%&ﬁﬁtﬂfﬁﬂP Re
- BERERBELBZHFREFENT

Members’ Attendance

ZRHERE
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EZBEE 2/2
(Chairman of Audit Committee) (BRZESLE)
Mr. HUANG Shenglan EBELE 2/2
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai FeR A &R 5 A 0/0
(appointed on 10 October 2011) (R-F——F+H+HEZE)
Mr. MIAO Gengshu EMELE 172
(resigned on 1 October 2011) (R=ZF——F+H—HFHF)

On 23 March 2012, a new specific written terms of reference
of the Audit Committee was adopted by the Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and auditing, internal controls and financial
reporting matters. The audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng whose term of office will expire upon the
forthcoming annual general meeting. In March 2012, the
practice of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng was reorganised as
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. The Audit Committee has
recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited be nominated for appointment as the auditors of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

RIB—"F=ZA-+=H " ARAREZ
REERM TS EN SRR HE -

EZZEGCREEEEN R TRAKER
A2 ETBER BN - ARET - AEBERE
MYBRRERE -BE_T——F+_A
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ZEe®H-
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group had
engaged the Group’s external auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng and network firms, to provide the following services
and their fees charged are set out as below:

e &

BE-T——F+-AZ+—ALEER -
SEZEAREEINEZ AN EA G A=
Pl R 4848 B B R LA T AR ES - 0 UK ERE A 4n
T

Fee Charged
for the year ended 31 December

I ER &
#E+_-_A=1+—HILEE
2011 2010
HK$ HK$
B¥T BT
Types of Services BRI
Audit of consolidated financial EEFESEUBEREK
statement of the Group for the year = 1,180,000 1,043,000
Non-audit services IEFEET RS
— Acting as reporting accountants to — i FRER & 51AM LA BE ¥R
report on financial information AR EH IR AR
included in investment circulars A& KA
issued by the Company - 590,000
DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR EFREZBEMHMBERZIERE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements and
the responsibilities of the external auditors to the shareholders
are set out on page 48.

INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal controls system of
the Group.

The internal controls system of the Group is designed to
facilitate effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability
of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, to identify and manage potential risk. The Board
is committed to implementing an effective and sound internal
control system to safeguard the interests of shareholders
and the assets of the Group. The Board has delegated to the
management the implementation of the system of internal
controls and reviewing of all relevant financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management functions.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintain an open and effective
investor relations policy and to update investors on relevant
information/developments in a timely manner, subject to
relevant regulatory requirements. Briefings and meetings
with institutional investors and analysts are conducted from
time to time. The Company also replied the enquiries from
shareholders timely. The Directors host the annual general
meeting each year to meet the shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

The corporate website of the Company has provided a
communication platform via which the public and investor
community can access to up-to-date information regarding
the Group.

REERE

ARBBNEREBEERT - B QMR
BRHEREERERR  LERAREER
HEHHEBERBER - RAR TR EE
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HLB odgson Impey Cheng

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BURWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Burwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to 178, which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at
31 December 2011, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2011, and of the Group's
loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2012
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Balance Sheets EE A B X

At 31 December 2011 RZZE——F+=ZA=+—H

Consolidated Company
e K
2011 2010 2011 2010
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

it ERTT BRI BRTR BT

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERDEE
Leasehold land and land HELH R
use rights ERE 6 11,046 11,163 - -
Property, plant and equipment MmE - BB REE 7 439,611 418,698 - =
Investment properties REME 8 819,655 723,988 - =
Intangible assets BYEE 9 588,051 553,975 = =
Investments in subsidiaries HEBABRE 10 = = 52,522 49,649
Due from subsidiaries tBARRK 10 - - 1,279,293 387,200
Investments in associates BeNmRE 11 97,928 92,906 = =
Club debentures eEES 1,509 1,509 90 90
Prepayments and other receivables T HRETEKZ 16 39,217 83,890 = =
Deferred income tax assets EEFEHERE 22 24,899 22,837 - -
Total non-current assets BERDEE 2,021,916 1,908,966 1,331,905 436,939
Current assets mEEE
Inventories &g 13 167,815 295,470 - =
Financial assets at fair value BATEEBERY
through profit or loss REOMEEE 14 6,360 9,137 250 649
Other financial assets HeBKEE 15 71,998 349,707 - -
Bills and accounts receivable EREELEKER 16 1,287,014 1,132,297 - =
Deposits, prepayments and other 124 - BRAREE
receivables FEMR 16 241,143 339,800 506 678
Due from subsidiaries KB AR 10 - - 768,236 1,451,319
Due from associates BENRRK 11 185 178 - -
Due from a related company FIEUNEIYNE 17 1,751 1,751 - -
Income tax refundable AR el AT E - 401 = 190
Cash and bank balances Re RRTHES 18 246,610 374,103 588 627
Total current assets HWEEHEE 2,022,876 2,502,844 769,580 1,453,463
Total assets BEE 4,044,792 4,411,810 2,101,485 1,890,402
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Balance Sheets EE BB X

At 31 December 2011

RZE—F+=A=+—H

Consolidated Company
oy NG
2011 2010 2011 2010
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
/0f=3 BETT BT EBTR BT
EQUITY #a
Equity attributable to owners of FAREREFA
the Company FEES
Share capital P& AN 19 487,536 441,536 487,536 441,536
Other reserves Hufs 20 966,297 775,667 984,940 813,124
Retained profits REBF 20 531,538 836,225 625,833 631,997
1,985,371 2,053,428 2,098,309 1,886,657
Non-controlling interests R 281,222 207,838 S =
Total equity B 2,266,593 2,261,266 2,098,309 1,886,657
LIABILITIES BfR
Non-current liabilities FrRBAR
Borrowings EX 21 228,155 379,396 = =
Provision for land restoration and  +iER KIRBH A
environmental costs B 24 4,226 2,943 - =
Deferred income tax liabilities ELFEHaRE 22 182,755 168,380 - -
Total non-current liabilities RIERDAR 415,136 550,719 - =
Current liabilities mEHEE
Borrowings Bx 21 917,788 999,048 - -
Due to subsidiaries RHBARIZIA 10 - = 882 1,270
Due to related companies REEARIFA 17 24,079 24,079 - =
Bills and accounts payable ENEEREMNIKRE 23 228,595 354,726 - =
Other payables and HEEMIRER
accruals st &R 190,712 220,104 2,294 2,475
Income tax payable FERTFTEH 1,889 1,868 = =
Total current liabilities BREEE 1,363,063 1,599,825 3,176 3,745
Total liabilities Baf 1,778,199 2,150,544 3,176 3,745
Total equity and liabilities AERRAR 4,044,792 4,411,810 2,101,485 1,890,402
Net current assets nBEERE 659,813 903,019 766,404 1,449,718
Total assets less current liabilities # & &5 k88 & 2,681,729 2,811,985 2,098,309 1,886,657
CHAN SHING KWOK WAI LAM
PR3 SBERH
Chairman Director
*E o
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Consolidated Income Statement 48 B m
BE-_ZT——F+-_A=1+—HIt&E

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt BETT BEETIT
Sales HE 5 7,623,154 6,080,074
Cost of sales $HE R AR 26 (7.444,025) (5,923,321)
Gross profit EF 179,129 156,753
Other gains, net HeWas#8E 25 42,445 75,902
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEBH 26 (56,934) (52,154)
General and administrative expenses —MEITHEBR 26 (100,289) (89,035)
Share option expenses AR (3.739) (9,548)
Operating profit K E R 60,612 81,918
Finance costs Bl& A AR 28 (69,968) (39,651)
Fair value (losses)/gains on other HEeHiEEER
financial assets ANTFE(EE) W (277,709) 34,840
Gain on distribution of shares in Sa I E/NE]
an associate {817 ' ) - 501,897
Share of profits of associates FrAG B & R B & 11 4,668 7,653
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BETSELRT(E18) &R (282,397) 586,657
Income tax expense Frisfi X 29 (9,807) (22,393)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE(E8),/ &BF (292,204) 564,264
(Loss)/Profit attributable to: (E18) /BARBN
Owners of the Company RATE=FAA 30 (304,687) 549,444
Non-controlling interests IEIERE FE 2 12,483 14,820
(292,204) 564,264
(Loss)/Earnings per share attributable to R THEZRFER A
owners of the Company LR FRR(EBE),/
during the year il 31
(6.35) 1313
— basic and diluted - EAREE HK cents #&fll HK cents &1l
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #r& & H 18

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE
2011 2010
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt BETT BT
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE(E8),/ &BF (292,204) 564,264
Other comprehensive income: Eea2mE$A
Surplus on revaluation of property Y E B - 16,250
Release of reserves to income statement % JREE: 44 A B IR (D BB G248
for distribution of shares in an associate ~ BB =185k 20 - (9,511)
Share of other comprehensive income  FRfhEt& ARIHT2E
of associates WA 20 2,899 2,563
Currency translation differences EHELE N E A 77,065 28,821
Other comprehensive income for FEHEEZEWA -
the year, net of tax kT8 79,964 38,123

Total comprehensive (expense)/income FEZ@E(ZH),/

for the year W A 42 =8 (212,240) 602,387
Attributable to: BB
Owners of the Company RARERFEA (235,848) 574,507
Non-controlling interests R 23,608 27,880

Total comprehensive (expense)/income FEZ2@E(ZH),/
for the year WA B EE (212,240) 602,387
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 48 s E 8 XK

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Attributable to owners of
the Company
AREERFE ARG

BHE_Z——F+_A=1T—HLFE

Non-
Share Other  Retained  controlling Total
capital reserves profits interests equity
BA HuR#E  RERT FEkEs  BRAeS
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
frs AT BETr  BBTr  A%Tn  A%Tr
Balance at 1 January 2010 “T-TF—-F—Bi#H% 342,228 841,997 286,723 117,103 1,588,051
Comprehensive income ZHEEA
Profit for the year FEERHN - - 549,444 14,820 564,264
Other comprehensive income: Eve2mElA :
Surplus on revaluation of property #¥ &L &% 20 - 14,949 - 6,716 21,665
Deferred income tax arising from ¥ EEEITEMRT

revaluation of property Fr{SH 20 = (3,736) = (1,679) (5,415)
Release of reserves to income ok E DR e

statement for distribution of BEZERE

shares in an associate 20 - (9,511) - - (9,511)
Share of other comprehensive FritEE RAAE

income of associates 2HEBA 20 - 2,563 - - 2,563
Currency translation differences ~ E¥[EH =% 20 - 20,798 - 8,023 28,821
Total other comprehensive income HE 2HEUK AR - 25,063 - 13,060 38,123
Total comprehensive income ZHEBARE - 25,063 549,444 27,880 602,387
Transactions with owners HEZREARS
Issue of shares BITRG 20 99,308 566,647 = = 665,955
Share issue expenses BT 20 = (3,112) = = (3,112)
Dividends Mz 8. - - - (837) (837)
Employees share option scheme:  {& B B Est2I:

- value of employee services - EERBEE 20 = 9,548 = = 9,548
Distribution of shares in an associate 73 JE &4 2 1 RR 15 20 - (639,110) - - (639,110)
Effect on distribution in specie EMDIRNTE 20 - (25,366) - - (25,366)

99,308 (91,393) - (837) 7,078
Changes in ownership interests in - FIBARIFMEEERZ

subsidiaries without change of SE) (o)

control 35 - - 58 87 145
Non-controlling interests arising on ¥4 G474 2

business combination R 36 - - = 63,605 63,605

99,308 (91,393) 58 62,855 70,828
Balance at 31 December 2010 —T-THF+_R
=t+—H#&#% 441,536 775,667 836,225 207,838 2,261,266
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 4R & S E 8K
BE-P——F+-A=t+—ALEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Attributable to owners of

the Company

FNTRSHEARLS
Non-
Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  reserves profits  interests equity
K HefiE GEE7 FRREE 2 EI88
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mz BETR BTt  E%Tt E%TR  E%Tn
Balance at 1 January 2011 —E——F—-f—-B#&H 441,536 775,667 836,225 207,838 2,261,266
Comprehensive income 2EBA
(Loss)/Profit for the year EE(E1R) /B - - (304,687) 12,483  (292,204)
Other comprehensive income: HEp2mElA :
Share of other comprehensive FritEE REEE
income of associates ZEEA 20 - 2,899 - - 2,899
Currency translation differences — E¥EN =5 20 - 65,940 - 11,125 77,065
Total other comprehensive income HE2E KA A5 - 68,839 - 11,125 79,964
Total comprehensive 2EHA/(ZiH)
income/(expense) ek - 68,839  (304,687) 23,608  (212,240)
Transactions with owners HEZREARS
Issue of shares BTk 20 46,000 174,800 - - 220,800
Share issue expenses B ETE 20 - (6,723) - - (6,723)
Dividends iz 8. - - - (249) (249)
Employees share option scheme: (& BB T2
- value of employee services —REREERE 20 - 3,739 - - 3,739
46,000 171,816 - (249) 217,567
Changes in ownership interests in = B ARIFAE R 2
subsidiaries without change of BB (R k&)
control 35 - (50,025) - 50,025 -
46,000 121,791 - 49,776 217,567
Balance at 31 December 2011 e s e
=+—B#&#% 487,536 966,297 531,538 281,222 2,266,593
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 48R & RE X
For the year ended 31 December 2011 BHE_Z——F+_A=1T—HILFE
2011 2010
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaF BETRT BT T

Cash flows from operating activities BEFZENHRERE
Cash used in operations LEANRE 33(a) (12,442) (92,387)
Interest paid BERAFE (78,534) (40,198)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEEFEH (316) (3,851)
Overseas tax paid B8R IR (2,677) (1,892)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded REBBBFESH 190 141
Net cash used in operating activities SEETHTARFIRS (93,779) (138,187)
Cash flows from investing activities REZEINHRERE
Acquisition of land use rights BB TP AR = (4,813)
Acquisition of property, plant and A - #E3

equipment By (8,879) (204,804)
Acquisition of intangible assets BABTEE (1,683) (3,375)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of WEEHT B A F] - IR&

cash acquired R = (180,838)
Capital contribution to an associate AET —KEERA] (2,000) -
Proceeds from disposal of land use rights & + i {# F#EFT 15K - 13,655
Proceeds from disposal of investment — HEREMEFTER

properties - 32,942
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWS - MR REE

plant and equipment ITIECE 126 12,291
(Increase)/Decrease in short-term bank % HAtR{TFR(3EM),

deposits Vo (29,686) 27,703
Funds (applied to)/released Ee(AR)/XRE

from financial assets at fair value BAFEEBIBEIIR

through profit or loss, net W TS EE - F5 (6,256) 5,300
Interest received 2 W F & 1,103 1,039
Decrease in amounts due from associates B & /A &) & FU > - 333
Dividends received from an associate [N i SN 4,545 4,878
Dividends received from financial assets 2 Wik A T {E % BB TR

at fair value through profit or loss BB TE B E IR 85 12
Net cash used in investing activities KEEHFTRAMNFIRE (42,645) (295,677)
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W HEERE R A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

1\‘/T\/\£E<£ )IL %

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BHE_Z——F+_A=1T—HILFE
2011 2010
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaF BETT BT
Cash flows from financing activities MBEZEINHRERE
Issue of shares BITRMD 220,800 185,965
Share issue expenses A& 5 817 (6,723) (3,112)
Expenses on distribution of shares in 3 I HE N B AR (D
an associate *H = (2,838)
(Decrease)/Increase in trust receipts EIREHRTER
bank loans Cre) /10 (127,995) 291,079
Additions of other bank loans I ETIRTTER 108,940 349,497
Repayment of other bank loans EEE bfﬁﬁgm (215,038) (276,683)
Additions/(Repayment) of other loans Mg S (Bg) EEEXR 711 (1,415)
Interest element of finance lease rental fRIEHE
payments M2 EB D (155) (68)
Capital element of finance lease rental f{fEI&HEE
payments BARE D (1,520) (1,464)
Dividend paid ERRE (249) (837)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEE(FTA),/EEW
financing activities SEIRE (21,229) 540,124
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRI ERITIE 58 N (22,789) (2,335)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BeEMREEBYORD),/
cash equivalents AR (180,442) 103,925
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BzHeKkES
at 1 January EEY 370,813 265,936
Effect of exchange rate changes [EXREH) & 563 952
Cash and cash equivalents R+ZA=+—HZR&R
at 31 December REEEY 33(b) 190,934 370,813
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Burwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an investment
holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in steel trading, steel processing, mineral resources and
commercial property.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability. The Company’s
shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 1983.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
23 March 2012.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties, financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss.
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W HEERE R A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in

Note 4.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group

The following new standards and
amendments to standards are mandatory
for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2011 and are relevant
to the Group’s operation.

HKAS 24 (Revised), “Related Party
Disclosures” is effective for annual
period beginning on or after January
2011. It introduces an exemption
from all of the disclosure requirements
of HKAS 24 for transactions among
government related entities and
the government. Those disclosures
are replaced with a requirement to
disclose:

The name of the government and
the nature of their relationship;

The nature and amount of any
individually significant transactions;
and

The extent of any collectively-
significant transactions qualitatively
or quantitatively.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre B HRARNEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

EREBRER )

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1 REBEXEE)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

2.1.1 BABEZBERKZE(E)

(@) New and amended standards adopted by

the Group (continued)

REBBRSM 2 FT Rfg
RIERI(E)

(a)

It also clarifies and simplifies the
definition of a related party.

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 issued
in May 2010 set out amendments
to a number of HKFRSs. There are
separate transitional provisions for
each standard. While the adoption of
some of the amendments may result
in changes in accounting policies,
none of these amendments has had
a significant financial impact on the

ZERTVETE K&
L TRABED 2% o

RZE—ZTFHA
EHH—E—TF
BB wERER
ELRIEET - BB
R A E R B
EMEAIRS - BRE
MHBDIETERE
AR EY  %E
BRI EHANEE M

financial position or performance of FEAR O 3k K 3R I 4%
the Group. B ERITEFE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

New and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2011 and have
not been early adopted

The Group's assessment of the impact of
these new and amended standards is set
out below.

e Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation
of Items of Other Comprehensive
Income”. The amendments to HKAS 1
retain the option to present profit or
loss and other comprehensive income
in either a single statement or in two
separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1
require additional disclosures to be
made in the other comprehensive
income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped
into two categories: (a) items that will
not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss; and (b) items that may
be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss when specific conditions are
met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to
be allocated on the same basis. The
amendments to HKAS 1 are effective
for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2012. The presentation of
items of other comprehensive income
will be modified accordingly when the
amendments are applied in the future
accounting periods.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

New and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2011 and have
not been early adopted (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred
Tax — Recovery of Underlying Assets”.
The amendments to HKAS 12 provide
an exception to the general principles
in HKAS 12 that the measurement
of deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities should reflect the tax
consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the entity expects
to recover the carrying amount of
an asset. Specifically, under the
amendments, investment properties
that are measured using the fair value
model in accordance with HKAS 40
“Investment Property” are presumed
to be recovered through sale for the
purposes of measuring deferred taxes,
unless the presumption is rebutted in
certain circumstances.

The amendments will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2012. Management is in the
process of making an assessment of
their impact and is not yet in a position
to state what impact, if any, they may
have on the Group’s financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

New and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2011 and have
not been early adopted (continued)

e Consequential amendments were
made to HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements” and
HKAS 28 “Investments in Associates”
as a result of the issuance of HKFRS
10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12. The
Group is yet to assess the full impact
and intends to adopt the consequential
amendments to HKAS 27 and HKAS
28 no later than the accounting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b) New and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2011 and have
not been early adopted (continued)

e Amendments to HKAS 32 "Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities” and amendments to HKFRS
7 "Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities”. The
amendments to HKAS 32 clarify
existing application issues relating
to the offsetting requirements.
Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of “currently has a
legally enforceable right of set-off”
and “simultaneous realisation and
settlement”. The amendments to
HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset
and related arrangements (such
as collateral posting requirements)
for financial instruments under an
enforceable master netting agreement
or similar arrangement.

The amended offsetting disclosures are
required for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013 and interim
periods within those annual periods.
The disclosures should also be provided
retrospectively for all comparative
periods. However, the amendments
to HKAS 32 are not effective until
annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014, with retrospective
application required.
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‘§§ HEERE R A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

New and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2011 and have
not been early adopted (continued)

e HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”
addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities.
HKFRS 9 was issued in November
2009 and October 2010. It replaces
the parts of HKAS 39 that relate to
the classification and measurement
of financial instruments. HKFRS 9
requires financial assets to be classified
into two measurement categories:
those measured as at fair value and
those measured at amortised cost.
The determination is made at initial
recognition. The classification depends
on the entity’s business model for
managing its financial instruments
and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the instrument. For
financial liabilities, the standard retains
most of the HKAS 39 requirements.
The main change is that, in cases
where the fair value option is taken
for financial liabilities, the part of a
fair value change due to an entity’s
own credit risk is recorded in other
comprehensive income rather than the
income statement, unless this creates
an accounting mismatch. The Group
is yet to assess HKFRS 9's full impact
and intends to adopt HKFRS 9 upon
its effective date, which is for the
accounting period beginning on or
after 1 January 2015.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b) New and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2011 and have
not been early adopted (continued)

e HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements” builds on existing
principles by identifying the concept
of control as the determining factor in
whether an entity should be included
within the consolidated financial
statements of the parent company.
The standard provides additional
guidance to assist in the determination
of control where this is difficult to
address. The Group is yet to assess
HKFRS 10’s full impact and intends
to adopt HKFRS 10 no later than the
accounting period beginning on or
after 1 January 2013.

e  HKFRS 12 “Disclosures of Interests in
Other Entities” includes the disclosure
requirements for all forms of interests
in other entities, including joint
arrangements, associates, special
purpose vehicles and other off balance
sheet vehicles. The Group is yet to
assess HKFRS 12's full impact and
intends to adopt HKFRS 12 no later
than the accounting period beginning
on or after 1 January 2013.
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‘§§ HEERE R A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

New and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2011 and have
not been early adopted (continued)

e  HKFRS 13 "Fair Value Measurement”
aims to improve consistency and
reduce complexity by providing a
precise definition of fair value and a
single source of fair value measurement
and disclosure requirements for use
across HKFRSs. The requirements
do not extend the use of fair value
accounting but provide guidance
on how it should be applied
where its use is already required or
permitted by other standards within
HKFRSs. The Group is yet to assess
HKFRS 13’s full impact and intends
to adopt HKFRS 13 no later than the
accounting period beginning on or
after 1 January 2013.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b) New and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2011 and have
not been early adopted (continued)

e  HK(IFRIC) — Int 20 “Stripping Costs
in the Production Phase of a Surface
Mine” applies to waste removal costs
that are incurred in surface mining
activity during the production phase
of the mine (“production stripping
costs”). Under HK(IFRIC) — Int 20 the
costs from this waste removal activity
("stripping”) which provide improved
access to ore is recognised as a non-
current asset (“stripping activity
asset”) when certain criteria are met,
whereas the costs of normal ongoing
operational stripping activities are
accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 2 “Inventories”. The stripping
activity asset is accounted for as an
addition to, or as an enhancement
of, an existing asset and classified as
tangible or intangible according to the
nature of the existing asset of which it
forms part.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

New and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2011 and have
not been early adopted (continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013 with transitional
provisions. The Group is yet to assess
HK(IFRIC) — Int 20’s full impact and
intends to adopt HK(IFRIC) — Int 20
no later than the accounting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC)
interpretations that are not yet effective
that would be excepted to have a material
impact on the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & Bf 7% 3R 3% B =%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

EERHRERE ()

2.2 Subsidiaries 2.2 MEBLAT

2.2.1 Consolidation 221 iFEA kA

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. The Group also assesses
existence of control where it does not have
more than 50% of the voting power but is able
to govern the financial and operating policies
by virtue of de-facto control. De-facto control
may arise from circumstances such as enhanced
minority rights or contractual terms between
shareholders, etc.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income
and expenses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Profits and losses
resulting from inter-company transactions that
are recognised in assets are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

70 Annual Report 2011 3R

B B8 R B 45 AN 5= B B R A
HM B R EERRL — R
BER+BEEEIABER
(BERFEREER) - 5
EAEERGENS —RE
BE BEERBELEH
ATEKARBRNEERS
BEEZE - HAKRELE
FrAS0% A LR - (B
7B RS B R 5 A EL X
REEBRR  AAKETE
HEREFEZESE - BER
ZH R RS D B R HE
M BRI A DGR E
BRTELE »

B B8 1 B S4B R AR R
TASEEBREZHELES
- WHRIEHIERILE AL
(E =g

SEBETRAMBZRS - #&
HLEEBRRABERH 2 W
ERYHE NREEERZSE
BETRRAEZRIMEL
g R BRI E S o Kt
BRRZETERRENER
ERET  UBEREAEEH
FRERAREOIBUR — B ©



‘§§ HEERE R A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date through
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed
to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the fair value of non-controlling interest
over the net identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If this consideration
is lower than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and
the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are
also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre MR T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

EERHRERE ()

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2 MBARE)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount
is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the
date of acquisition. The Group’s investment in
associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & Bf 76 3R 3% Mt =%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

EERHRERE ()

2.3 Associates (continued) 2.3 BELATE)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in
other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the
case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to “share of profits/(losses) of
associates” in the consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in
associates are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

24

2.5

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the board of
directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’'s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
the Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except when
deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges
and qualifying net investment hedges.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income statement
within ‘general and administrative expenses’.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (continued)

(©

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified
as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes
in the amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss,
and other changes in carrying amount are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets, such as equities
classified as available for sale, are included in
other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

e income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & Bf 7 3R 3= Mt 3%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BESHEEREZ)
(continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued) 2.5 SMESEEN(4Z)
(c) Group companies (continued) (c) ZEEFERNFI(E)
e all resulting exchange differences are e FBEHRHUHEAMEN=
recognised in other comprehensive income. BAET 2@ A G E
7
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on W SN EEELANEER
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated NFEFHBR B I ETEE
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity MEEMAaE  WixWmiE
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange RIBE o FREAMEN =%
differences arising are recognised in equity. REEZS P FERR o
2.6 Property, plant and equipment 2.6 D& BERBE
Land and buildings comprise offices. Leasehold land T REFAERAT - SEAR
classified as finance lease and all other property, BHENHELTHEREESY
plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less 2SR O EIRE P AR E
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost M EE RSN o FER KB TR
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to BB EEEMNEY - AT
the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include BIENERDE BN EEZYE
transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying MR s R FINKEE E A B IR
cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of e mEH ME SN EMUkZE 18
property, plant and equipment. 5o
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying HEKARGAEZIBE BN AR
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as KL ER BRI RERANER - B
appropriate, only when it is probable that future ZIER MK AEER 5t ER - I8
economic benefits associated with the item will EEESEMNREEXERABYE
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can E(RER) EERESMHMERERE
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the Mg FBIRR - FTEEEHERRS
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and EEAMNVBBERNRGASBSE
maintenance are charged to the consolidated income 4 o

statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre MR T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

EREBRER )

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 2.6 ME BBRR[|MEEZ)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation
on leasehold land classified as finance lease and
depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their costs to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

—  Leasehold land Shorter of remaining

classified as lease term or useful
finance lease life
—  Buildings 20 to 50 years
—  Leasehold 2 to 10 years
improvements (over the period of leases)
—  Machinery 8 to 10 years
—  Furniture and
equipment 4 to 10 years

—  Motor vehicles 4 to 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within “other gains, net” in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.7 Intangible assets

(@)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures and represents
the excess of the consideration transferred over
the Group’s interest in net fair value of the net
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of
the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"),
or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill
is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to
the recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs to sell.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Mining right

Mining right acquired separately is measured on
initial recognition at cost. Mining right acquired
in a business combination is recognised at fair
value at the date of acquisition. Mining right
has a finite useful life and is carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of
mining right over its estimated useful life of 30
years.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.7 Intangible assets (continued)

(c)

()

(e)

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are stated
at cost less impairment losses. Exploration
and evaluation assets include topographical
and geological surveys, exploratory drilling,
sampling and trenching and activities in relation
to commercial and technical feasibility studies,
and expenditure incurred to secure further
mineralisation in existing ore bodies and to
expand the capacity of a mine. Expenditure
incurred prior to acquiring legal rights to explore
an area is written off as incurred. When it can
be reasonably ascertained that a mining property
is capable of commercial production, exploration
and evaluation costs are transferred to mining
right and are amortised based on the accounting
policy as stated in “Mining right” above. If any
project is abandoned during the evaluation
stage, the total expenditure thereon will be
written off.

Domain names and trademarks

Acquisition costs of domain names and legal
costs related to the registration of trademarks
are capitalised and amortised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of ten
years.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised over their estimated
useful lives of ten years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life (for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use) are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets
2.9.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)

2.9.1 Classification (continued)

(a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading.
A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short-term. Derivatives are
also categorised as held for trading unless
they are designated as hedges. Assets in
this category are classified as current assets
if expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled
or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group's loans and receivables
comprise “bills and accounts receivable”,
“deposits and other receivables”, “due
from associates”, “due from a related
company” and “cash and bank balances”
in the consolidated balance sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to dispose
of it within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 Bf 7% ¥R 3% B =+

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

EERHRERE ()

2.9 Financial assets (continued)

29 MBEFEZE)

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement 292 ERRETE

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date (the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset). Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” category are presented in
the consolidated income statement within “other
gains, net” in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the
consolidation income statement as part of “other
gains, net” when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-
sale are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the consolidated income statement.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)
2.9.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of
“other gains, net”. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of “other
gains, net” when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

2.11Impairment of financial assets
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre MR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

EERHRERE ()

2.11 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

21N MBEEEREE)

(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued) (a) LUEEA LA SN Z BEE (&)

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
and where observable data indicate that there
is @ measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of
an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre MR ARNE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

EERHRERE ()

2.11Impairment of financial assets (continued)

21N MBEEEREZ)

(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. For debt securities, the Group
uses the criteria refer to (a) above. In the case
of equity investments classified as available-
for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is
also evidence that the assets are impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss (measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss) is removed from equity
and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income
statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair
value of a debt instrument classified as available-
for-sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & Bf 7 3R 3= Mt 3%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

EERHRERE ()

2.12 Investment properties

2128 EME

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the Group. It also includes properties
that are being constructed or developed for future use
as investment properties. Land held under operating
leases are accounted for as investment properties
when the rest of the definition of an investment
property is met. In such cases, the operating leases
concerned are accounted for as if they were finance
leases. Investment property is initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each
reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for
any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If the information is not available,
the Group uses alternative valuation methods such
as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are
recorded in the consolidated income statement as
part of a fair value gains or losses in “other gains,
net”.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out method. The cost of finished goods and
work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity).
It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre MR T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EESHHREES)

(continued)

2.14 BIRTA R TR

2.14 Accounts and other receivables

Accounts receivable are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of accounts
and other receivables is expected in one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Accounts and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months
or less, and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated
balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.17 Accounts payable

Accounts payable are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Accounts payable are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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fre MR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

EERHRERE ()

2.18 Borrowings

218 H®R

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
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settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after ® A
the end of the reporting period. & o
2.19 Borrowing costs 2198 F

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

(@)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

(©

Inside basis differences (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis difference

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and associates, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

2.21 Employee benefits

(@)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined
contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee — administered
funds.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

(b)

(©

Pension obligations (continued)
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due and are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Bonus plans

Provisions for bonus plans due wholly within 12
months after the end of each reporting period
are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of
services rendered by employees and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre MR T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

EERHRERE ()

2.22 Share-based payments 2.22 KIB& 3 S iz SR EN

(@) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (a) LR T 118958 (45 BN 2

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options
granted:

e including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

e excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth
targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and

e including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement
for employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to vest. The total
expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing performance and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre MR ARNE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

EERHRERE ()

2.22 Share-based payments (continued) 2.22 LIz N (&)

(@) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and
share premium.

(b) Share-based payment transactions among group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees of
subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as
a capital contribution. The fair value of employee
services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the
vesting period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding
credit to equity in the parent entity accounts.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre MR T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

EERHRERE ()

2.24 Revenue recognition

224 R

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts, returns and value added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(a) Sale of goods — income from sale of goods
is recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods have been
transferred to customers.

(b) Rental income — rental income is recognised on
a straight line basis over the lease term.

(c) Service income - service income is recognised in
the accounting periods in which the services are
rendered.

2.25 Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest income on
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impaired loan and receivables are recognised using 2 o
the original effective interest rate.
2.26 Dividend income 226 BERWA

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre MR ARNE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

EERHRERE ()

2.27 Leases 2278

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
other long-term payables. The interest element of the
finance cost is charged to the consolidated income
statement over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The property,
plant and equipment acquired under finance leases
are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of
the asset and the lease term.

2.28 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.29 Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person,

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

isa member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary
or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,
fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a treasury
committee under policies approved by the board of
directors. The committee identifies, evaluates and
hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group's operating units. The board provides written
principles for overall risk management, as well as
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of
derivative financial instruments and non-derivative
financial instruments, and investment of excess
liquidity.

(@) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group has transactional currency
exposures. Such exposures arise from
sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional
currency. Approximately 90% (2010: 80%)
of the Group's turnover are denominated
in currencies other than the functional
currency of the operating units making
the sale, whilst approximately 13% (2010:
13%) of costs are denominated in the units’
functional currency. The Group manages
the foreign exchange exposure arising from
its normal course of business activities
and investments in foreign operations by
funding its local operations and investments
through cash flow generated from business
transactions locally. The management
monitors foreign exchange exposure closely
and forward exchange contracts are used
for hedging purposes when required.

In view of the fact that the Hong Kong
dollar ("HK$") is pegged to the United
States dollar (“US$"), the Group’s exposure
to foreign exchange risk is minimal.
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W HEERE R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change in
Chinese Renminbi (RMB) exchange rate,
with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s (loss)/profit after income
tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities) and the
Group’s equity.

fre MR T

HERREE )

3.1 MBEBERZ)

@) HHERE)
(i) SMNER(E)

TREJEMBREE
BRFHTEE A5 H
ZBmENi%(ER),
BFN(RE¥EERAE
RERS) RAERN R
THHERHAREEX
MEEEE I HAE -

Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in loss after (Decrease) in
RMB income tax equity
AER® BRASREEGR B2
EF#(TR) 1/, (RD) /(D)
% HK$°000 HK$’'000
BT BETT
2011
If HK$ weakens  {HiBTHARRE
against RMB [LET] 10 7,702 (7,702)
If HK$ strengthens T AR
against RMB B (10) (7,702) 7,702
Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in profit after (Decrease) in
RMB income tax equity
AR®E  BREERERT et
EAH/CREE) #m,CRd) i,/ CRd)
% HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TT BT TT
2010
If HK$ weakens WB T AR
against RMB gy 10 (11,787) (11,787)
If HK$ strengthens fi#i& 7T H A R
against RMB #Hog (10) 11,787 11,787
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair
values of equity securities decrease
as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to equity
price risk arising from individual equity
investments classified as trading equity
investments (Note 14) and other financial
assets (Note 15) as at 31 December 2011.
To manage its price risk arising from
investments in equity securities, the Group
diversifies its portfolio. The Group’s listed
investments listed in Hong Kong and
overseas are valued at quoted market prices
at the end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to 5% increase/decrease in
the fair values of the equity investments
with all other variables held constant and
after any impact on income tax, based on
their carrying amounts at the end of the
reporting period.
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3 MBRREE )

3.1 MBERBERZ)

Increase/

(Decrease) in
carrying amount

of equity
investment
BEXBFIREE
B/, (RD)
HK$°000
BT
2011
5% increase in BEEE LT
equity price 5% 3,918
5% decrease in  BEAER TR
equity price 5% (3,918)

(a)

R (&)

(ii)

B

BRERRERSKERE

BUKF R ERESEE

BHEHRABS QT
BETEZEAR - R=F
R Ta O e

B AEEEHZIER
EBRERKAISEER
BRAKRE (aE14) R E
CHBEEMZEIS)Z
ERIEAKRE - NEE
RTEBRRRERAE
FMELNEBRRR
MOBMEREES - &N
SEZETRETDIRE
BRAENET - BRBRE
REIRPT M S ER MG
=0

TREMNZENRHRE B H
RKEEAEE ZIREE -
EMBHEEEERET
B st RERMEH
FEERANEEANTE
A0, B 5% 2 B8R
J_go

Increase/
(Decrease) in Increase/
loss after (Decrease) in
income tax equity
FREFBREESIR B
1| (RD) 1| (RD)
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT BYETT
(3,865) 3,865
3,865 (3,865)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Price risk (continued)

fre MR EE

3 MEBERRERZ)

3.1 MBERBERZ)

Increase/

(Decrease) in

carrying amount

of equity

investment

AR 748 E IR E A

i, Cr)

HK$°000

BT

2010

5% increase in IR B EFF

equity price 5% 457
5% decrease in AR AE G TP

equity price 5% (457)

@) HHERE)

(i) ERRERGE)
Increase/

(Decrease) in Increase/
profit after (Decrease) in
income tax equity

FrPTIS B2 BT B
=, Cikd) g, G )
HK$ 000 HK$'000
BT BT

382 382

(382) (382)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets, the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued
at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. During 2011 and 2010,
the Group’s borrowings at variable rate
were denominated in US$, RMB and HK$.

The Group has not hedged its exposure to
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk,
as the management considers the risk is
insignificant to the Group.

(iii)
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & Bf 7% ¥R 3% B =+

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

3 MEBERREEE

3.1 MBRBERE)

(ili) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

(continued)

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to a reasonably possible change
in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s (loss)/profit
after income tax (through the impact on
floating rate borrowings) and the Group’s

@ MEERE)

(i) REmE

Rk (&)

RATEFE

TRE2NEMARER
BRE  AREZR
G B (BR) BA
(BRIBFR AR
2 8) AL BN
AR RE B G -

equity.
Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in loss after (Decrease) in
basis points income tax equity
FIEER BRABSREEGR B
1|/ (RD) 1/ (RD) /(D)
HK$°000 HK$’'000
BT BETT
2011
us$ =T 100 2,620 (2,620)
RMB AR 100 1,105 (1,105)
HK$ BT 100 947 (947)
us$ BT (100) (2,620) 2,620
RMB AER# (100) (1,105) 1,105
HK$ BT (100) (947) 947
Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in profit after (Decrease) in
basis points income tax equity
FIREE BREAGHERT Eam
&0, Cr) &,/ CRd) /G d)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
2010
us$ ETT 100 (2,808) (2,808)
RMB AR 100 (1,172) (1,172)
HK$ BT 100 (1,008) (1,008)
us$ ETT (100) 2,808 2,808
RMB AR (100) 1,172 1,172
HK$ BT (100) 1,008 1,008
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk

(c)

The Group reviews the recoverability of its
financial assets periodically to ensure that
potential credit risk of the counterparty is
managed at an early stage and sufficient
provision is made for possible defaults. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to
bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial
assets, which comprise cash and cash
equivalents, due from associates, due from a
related party and other receivables, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
accounts receivable are disclosed in Note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves and reserve borrowing
facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & Bf 76 3R 3% Mt =%

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MERBEEZ)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MERBERE(Z)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) FEESER(E)
The maturity profile of the Group's financial BIEDS Y MABE 2 M=
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, HE KEBRBEHEE
based on the contractual undiscounted BBagEsEHNT

payments, was as follows:

Carrying Total More than
amount as per  contractual ~ On demand 1 year
consolidated undiscounted or within  but less than
balance sheet cash flows 1 year 5 years
2I#
BEARE MRBRZ EEXs —FLE
ARRZIEEE HekESR —FREE EREFR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ERTR ERTR BRTR BRTR

2011
Borrowings ER 1,145,943 1,167,252 938,946 228,306
Due to related companies RBELATHIE 24,079 24,079 24,079 -
Bills and accounts payable {1 R M {11k 1E 228,595 228,595 228,595 -
Other payables and HEBMIRAR

accruals s &R 126,128 126,128 126,128 -

Guarantees for general EREAFIRITRE
banking facilities granted  fEHHZziE &

to an associate - 11,260 11,260 -
Guarantees given to banks SEEMEBES
for mortgage facilities BERERMmAERT
granted to the buyers of  {EHZIER
the Group's properties - 94 94 =
1,524,745 1,557,408 1,329,102 228,306
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BMERBREHRE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MERBER(Z)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) () rEEERE(E)
Carrying Total More than
amount as per contractual On demand 1 year
consolidated  undiscounted or within -~ but less than
balance sheet cash flows 1 year 5 years
[RAVED
iR EE MARMHRZ JEEK 3 —FLE
BERZREE HERBAE —ERNEE ERAERA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BB BETT BETT
2010
Borrowings R 1,378,444 1,383,528 1,004,066 379,462
Due to related companies REAE N R FIE 24,079 24,079 24,079 -
Bills and accounts payable FENE1E & FE(FiRIE 354,726 354,726 354,726 -
Other payables and HERMIRER
accruals [EErER 177,530 177,530 177,530 =
Guarantees for general BHENERITRE
banking facilities granted {EIE 2 R
to an associate - 13,800 13,800 -
Guarantees given to banks for AEEWXBEE
mortgage facilities granted ~ RBE KM @17
to the buyers of the Group's ~ fEH 2 1R
properties - 90 90 -
1,934,779 1,953,753 1,574,291 379,462
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as
net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including current and
non-current borrowings as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity
(including share capital, reserves, retained profits,
non-controlling interests and other loans from non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet).

During 2011, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2010, was to maintain a debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio below 90%. The debt-to-
adjusted capital ratios at 31 December 2011 and
2010 were as follows:

VAN
fraf

75 ¥R R M R

3 MEBRRERE)

32 RewER

AEBEERESZ BRRRELRSE
BRFBEE 28 URRRER
& RECEEFEATRKH
i RERERESEBIAREE
ARRA

RERIHBEELRERE  AREH
SRBABRKNBRE 2SR [
BRBEESHBETHRD

AEBZERFEEHBERA L RE
BRI o bbb RAZET5H BE R AR
ABRAGE - ERFERBER
(BRERBEEABRMIITZR
BRIERDEFORRELREF
EYBBRE - KRBRARIEM
ERadN (BRGAEEARBR
FROREIBA ~ i - REB AT
FEFERR M a5 K B 2 R FEE AR AR R
MEBER)

RIFB——F AEBEZRBL
MR B AR B R RER
90% @ B-F—FFHF - R=F
s M e o R i
B BEBEEHBRAL XM

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

B¥ETT BT

Total borrowings BE 1,145,943 1,378,444

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReERFSEEY (190,934) (370,813)
Net debt ERHER 955,009 1,007,631
Total equity s 2,266,593 2,261,266
Adjusted capital AR P A 2,326,633 2,321,005
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio (B 4 AR AN B R 41% 43%
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation
The table below analyses financial instruments carried

at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets that
are measured at fair value at 31 December 2011.

fre MR T

3 MBRREEW)

3.3 OF{EER

TREGEETEDTARFETE
ZERMTH BFMIERWT

REEEXBELERMS
EORE(REHE)(F—
R o

BRE-—RMBERENREN
EEXBENATEXE(HE
%) sk 5 (B4 (B 4% BA Sh
SH)BEMERAEEZ
") o

I FEAR IR A BV R T 5 BRI
BENEEXREHAECE
PRBRBAE) (F=F) -

TREINAREER -_T——F+=
A=t—BURXFEFAENEE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£—# - pamt ] B=R ot ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets BE BETRT BETT BETT BT
Financial assets at fair BOATEBERE
value through profit SIRE IS E
or loss
- listed equity - LHEEEESH
securities 6,360 - - 6,360
Contingent consideration ¥ &HELED
for a business HRANRE
combination - - 71,998 71,998
6,360 = 71,998 78,358
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMERREHEZ)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEGEHE)
The following table presents the Group’s assets that TREBWAEBR-_Z—ZTFE+=
are measured at fair value at 31 December 2010. B=4+—BUAFEFEWNEE o
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—& B F=H& k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets BE BETT BT BT BB T
Financial assets at fair value %A F(EF BB
through profit or loss FIREVEI TS & B
— listed equity securities - FTHRARES 9,137 = = 9,137
Contingent consideration A GFELR S
for a business combination SAK(E - — 349,707 349,707
GRS - 349,707 358,844
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active EEBMSEECERMIAZA

markets is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price. These instruments
are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation technigues maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available
and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is included
in level 3.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMERBREREZ)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEHHE)

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial AR 4R T EERGENIETER

instruments include: BT

e Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for e MUTEHAMBREXR
similar instruments. SEMRE o

e Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow o HY M fINFRIRE R
analysis, are used to determine fair value for the ENN AUETHE#S®
remaining financial instruments. TEZAFEME -

All the resulting fair value estimates are included FrBRAmESHAFEE G (KA

in level 1 except for contingent consideration for a PAT it 7 784 gHEA 2 AR

business combination as explained below. B AE— o

There were no significant transfers of financial assets RATEERIEE—BRE—

between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchy &R EE A REERD -

classifications.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2011

and 2010.

Contingent consideration at fair value

fre M HRARM T

3 MEBRRERE)

3.3 AFEEMEE)

TRENEZ-_ZE——FR T —
EFE+_-_A=+—HIFEZE=
mMTAZH -

BOFHEMEZHARE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT T
Opening balance FAHER 349,707 =
Recognised upon acquisition of AUCEE B B A 7R FER
subsidiaries (Note 36) (Htet36) - 314,867
(Losses)/Gains recognised in RIBEHER 2 (E538)
profit or loss e 2% (277,709) 34,840
Closing balance FRES 71,998 349,707
Total (losses)/gains for the year including SR (E18) U5 858 -
in profit or loss for assets held at the BERREABRRES
end of the reporting period BEZRE (277,709) 34,840

There were no significant transfers of financial assets
into or out of level 3.

Changes in fair value of contingent consideration
are recognised in “fair value (losses)/gains on
other financial assets” in the consolidated income
statement.
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed
below.

(@)

(b)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2.7. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use
of estimates (Note 9).

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, leasehold land and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land
and land use rights are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment, leasehold land
and land use rights have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations, taking into account
latest market information and past experience.
These calculations and valuations require the use
of judgements and estimates.

IPAN
I

4

B 7% 3% BT

RS E R FE

RE A H G & RS ER G - WREBE
REBMETHRZETHE  BREEH
BRATHERAENBRKEHNE
Al o

41 MBEHEERMER

ALBEARRIELEEMBRER © A7
B EnEER - RogR
HERGERMER - RAKSEHT
B B ENEEMNR ENIREE
fEH AR B MR w0
o

@) BERERGRE

REBERBERHE2.700E5
BREFHRAERSD LERR
EETAR REELEM
ZAWEEEEREERE
Bt BAEE  AAFER
e A (B FE9) -

(b) Y% EERRENHEEL
1R I E R E G E

EEEHHARNBARER
7R B T B 7 B A Ug [BI B -
ARE - R REME
S R b BEETTR
EfRE o £ERIHMR R
BERLR  BE - EERE
B HELHR L ERE
WAl EeBRREMREER
FRAEMETE - KEFAERMA
EBRENAHEHREE -
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4 BI@®iH{ZERIIE Z)

(continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 4.1 BESHGAERMBSR(Z)
(continued)
(c) Estimate of fair value of investment properties () BEYENFELGE

The best evidence of fair value of properties is MENATFENREEREY
normally the current prices in an active market EATEMBL M EETR
for comparable properties. In the absence of TENERER - ER8 1
such information, the Group determines the ZEER AEFBE—ZRYE
amount within a range of reasonable fair value BHATEEESBRAET
estimates. In making its judgement, the Group BRESEE -  m{EH MR -
considers information from a variety of sources REBEeEELHENE
including: wo aE

(i) current prices in an active market for (Y UBSIEHEBEASE
properties of different nature, condition TRME « 4k30 2k b By
or location (or subject to different lease or MYEETRERMENS
other contracts), adjusted to reflect those EER(KZRERIRARE
differences, by reference to independent ERHTAEY) @ &KFE
valuations; and MR EZR &

(i) recent prices of similar properties in less (i) HMEUMEESTER
active markets, with adjustments to reflect ISR T EE R - ff s
any changes in economic conditions since HEURMZEERY
the date of the transactions that occurred BRI 5 HEE &7 AR
at those prices. REVERIEEE -

If information on current or recent prices of NSk BEER 1B B B ek T B (B AR

investment properties is not available, the fair MER  IEYMWESHLQFE

values of investment properties are determined B AERBESHERNE
using discounted cash flow valuation techniques. T o AEENBEHBRTE

The Group uses assumptions that are mainly BESERESBHRAERD

based on market conditions existing at the end THIBBERET °

of each reporting period.

The principal assumptions underlying TEEYWATEHHENTE
management'’s estimation of fair value are those BEFS R 202K
related to: the receipt of contractual rentals; B TEHARZKTIEHES - &
expected future market rentals; void periods; WHE  BEEHTE S REEW
maintenance requirements; and appropriate BEIR R o W E(HETHEE
discount rates. These valuations are regularly BT RIEIEUNRARE
compared to actual market yield data, and actual BENEBRT MM HREE
transactions by the Group and those reported by HEEER o

the market.

The expected future market rentals are determined JEBHIR R TISEA S IRBAE
on the basis of current market rentals for similar L4 3 72 [B — b B AR O B9
properties in the same location and condition. EETEASET -
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(d)

Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to taxation in Mainland
China and Hong Kong. Significant judgement
is required in determining the amount of
the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxation. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred income tax provisions in the periods in
which such determination are made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to
certain temporary differences and tax losses
are recognised as management considers
itis probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where
the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred income tax assets and
income tax in the periods in which such estimate
is changed.

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies

Distinction between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as investment property. In making its judgement, the
Group considers whether the property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held
by an entity. Owner-occupied properties generate
cash flows that are attributable not only to property
but also to other assets used in the production or
supply process.

fre MR EE

4

RS EE R P2

4.1 MBEMEERARGE)

(d) P RELLTFH

AEBFEETEREFEH
MTE - EEEM ARG
SO CN R R Rl S
B BEELERHE - £
—REBBRED AFEZEX
5 Mt E S M o) R R TR
ETHETEEN - MEFE
SN ERRRBERRERY)
RENEBIE HEER
REEFELLSFETHRON
FRSTRAEEFTIS T -

EEEERRRRAIEFE
ERBMEAR  SEREREN
BMEBEUEANE - BEZE
2 R MR B EIRT RSB
EESWRER - HERHBER
BRINREE  ZEZEE
EBREENHEAZEE
HEFT1S T & E T 1S Bl 6y B
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s ©

4.2 FERFRES & B R RE P

REYFHEFETF HHYEN

AEEET - BANERENEER
RIEYE - EIEHFIEE - A%
BeEERMEMELNERESRE
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fre MR ARNE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4 BI@®iH{ZERIIE Z)

(continued)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies (continued)

Distinction between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties (continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions can be sold separately
(or leased out separately under a finance lease), the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions cannot be sold separately, the property
is accounted for as investment property only if an
insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is applied in determining
whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as investment property. The
Group considers each property separately in making
its judgement.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the board of directors of the Company. The directors
review the Group's internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of profit/(loss) before
income tax for the year. The information provided to the
directors is measured in @ manner consistent with that in
the consolidated financial statements.

4.2 FERFKES s B KRR AER
(%)

REYEHEXTHHYFE 75
(&
F L 5 E rp 9 — BB 47 =2 R LA BRER
HMESRERENREREMEE
H) - T3 —ER 0 RIS A R EE s fit
R MR HIERITHEAE ° W0
ZEROAIB L B E (KRR AR
ERYHM)  AREEHZER
NIBILFEIR ° AR FEO T RIAK
THE  ZMERSEETERE
D REEESHES ma RIS IE
THRZEMBARCIRSIREY
X -HEETHBRBESIEEKN
NBRENE I EERREME
B - AFEHAE - REBEEFEDLH
CEEE-EE WATIERSIEEYE

SHMEH

ETRLEERRECHEERARAES
g  EXFEAKENABRERE - AT
BEGNNEER - EEBFIEREE

LEREIRTE TREDER

BEEgRAFERAEHAAN, (&
B)RFEREDMNEE - AEER
THEMENRS M EHRRERERN
BB

The Group is organised into four major operating units: (i) AEBBUEEBELESAAR - ()i
steel trading; (ii) steel processing; (iii) mineral resources; HES (DMEMT  GIEEEZIR : (v)
(iv) commercial property; and (v) other segment comprises, HEEHE s RVWETHPEBKEIER

principally, management services business.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEBEEE)

Turnover recognised during the year is as follows: REEBER 7 LEBINMT ¢
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT BT
Sale of goods HE 7,570,889 6,037,071
Rental income EEUWA 35,306 27,020
Service income ARAS U A 16,959 15,983
7,623,154 6,080,074
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2011 BEe-_T——F+_-_B=+—HIt&FE

are as follows: WD FEENT ¢
Steel Steel Mineral Commercial

trading processing  resources  property Others Unallocated Group

AERS REMI 2 RERE MRERE RE *9E %8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ER¥TT ERTR RWTR RWTT BWTT BRTRT  ERTR

Total segment sales NifEELE 7,174,486 344,133 57,059 35,306 17,738 - 1,628,722
Inter-segment sales PEREE (4,789) - - - (779 - (5,568)
Sales to external customers  #HEFHFRFE 7,169,697 344,133 57,059 35,306 16,959 - 7,623,154
Operating profit/(loss) before Kzt TiAE £

below items BRER/(BE) 55317 (5,703) (9,092) 28,824 2,708 (37,34) 34,773
Fair value gains on REMEATHE

investment properties Wz - - - 38,611 - - 38,611
Fair value losses on financial A TEERER

assets at fair value through ~ FIIREBIEEE

profit or loss LATEER (3332) = 5 = = (5.701) (9.033)
Share option expenses BRES - - - = § (3,739) (3,739)

Operating profit/(loss) BEBT /(58) 52,045 (5,703) (9,092) 67,435 2,708 (46,781) 60,612

Finance costs BERKA (56,014) (2,692) (1,509) (9,315) - (438)  (69,968)
Fair value losses on other ~ ELEIBAE

financial assets AYEBR - - - - - (77,7090  (277,709)
Share of profits of associates F/aEi4 A 1R - - - - - 4,668 4,668
Segment results DHEE (3,969) (8,395) (10,601) 58,120 2,708 (320,260)  (282,397)
Income tax expense s (9,807)
Loss for the year FEER (292,204)
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SBIEE)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—T—ZF+-_FA=+—HItEE
are as follows: WO EENT -
Steel Steel Mineral ~ Commercial
trading  processing  resources property Others  Unallocated Group
HEES WENT BEER BERME v RAR &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT ARt AETT AT AETr A%t AETx
Total segment sales DEHE R 5,597,618 405,660 36,720 27,134 16,651 - 6,083,783
Inter-segment sales PEREE (3,294) = = (114) (301) = (3,709)
Sales to external customers  #E FHMIEP 5594324 405,660 36,720 27,020 16,350 - 6,080,074
Operating profit/(loss) Rt TR A
before below items BERT/(EE) 43,288 9,347 (5,603) 18,821 (1,805) (31,189) 32,859
Expenses on acquisition of ~ WEKBAR
subsidiaries Sl = = (5,298) = = = (5,298)
Fair value gains on RENELTE
investment properties e - - - 62,866 - - 62,866
Fair value gains on financial AT EEABER
assets at fair value through ~ FIIREBI K EE
profit or loss AT ENE - - = = = 1,039 1,039
Share option expenses ERES = = = = = (9,548) (9,548)
Operating profit/loss) @& RF|/(BH) 13,288 9347 (10901) 81,687 (1,805  (39698) 81,918
Finance costs RERKA (21,613) (4313) (4,007) (9,011) - (707 (39,651)
Fair value gains on other ~ HEHKEE
financial assets NFENRES - - - - - 34,840 34,840
Gain on distribution of PREE D RRR
shares in an associate Sl - - - - = 501,897 501,897
Share of profits of NG
associates gl - - - - - 7,653 7,653
Segment results PHEE 21,675 5,034 (14,908) 72,676 (1,805) 503,985 586,657
Income tax expense FER ST (22,393)
Profit for the year FERA 564,264

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third

parties at the prevailing market prices.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5

Segment results represent the profit/(loss) earned by each
segment without allocation of unallocated corporate
expenses including directors’ salaries, share of profits of
associates, fair value gains/(losses) on other financial assets,
share option expenses and gain on distribution of shares
in an associate.

Other segment information
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2011

and depreciation, amortisation and additions to non-
current assets for the year ended 31 December 2011 are as

SEMEHEE)

DEEBIEAZ D MRRZ BT, (B
BIMEABRERADEZLERMAX &
TEERESEHS  MEBERRAEN
HeWBEERATEKR(&E) 8B
PR 57t e o I BE i R R A s A o

HESBAEH
RZF——F+-A=+—BMHHA

ENMBBEARBE_Z——F+_A
=t RLEFENTE - BEHRIERE

follows: SEEVEEMT
Steel Steel Mineral Commercial
trading processing  resources  property Others Unallocated Group
MERS MENI 2 WERF HRERE iE AR £m
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT B%Tn ERTT #%Tn E%TT ERTRT  #%TR
Assets BE 1,571,717 260,595 1,001,839 877,660 5,247 327,734 4,044,792
Liabilities 8 773,198 182,454 332,499 178,787 14,457 296,804 1,778,199
Depreciation e 1,906 4,647 1,266 424 1,443 1,581 11,267
Amortisation By - 156 7,153 39 - - 7,348
Additions to non-current  EVREREBE
assets 2,365 1,214 13,466 24,687 3,438 2 45,172
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 9PEBEFEE)
Other segment information (continued) HESBEE(Z)
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2010 R-E—TF+—-A=+—HHHHTE
and depreciation, amortisation and additions to non- ENMaEUREBEE_ZE—ZF+_A4
current assets for the year ended 31 December 2010 are as =t+—BIEEEMITE - B NRIERIE
follows: TRENEENT ¢
Steel Steel Mineral ~ Commercial
trading  processing  resources property Others  Unallocated Group
MEgs HENT  BEAR BERME AP AR &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETr AT  A%Tr A% BT BT A¥Tn
Assets BE 1,869,598 271,856 920,441 779,070 1,967 568,878 4,411,810
Liabilities a8 1,066,768 228,984 407,737 178,345 7,861 260,849 2,150,544
Depreciation he 1,028 5,556 1,490 1,299 1,020 1,583 11,976
Amortisation By = 280 5,267 37 = = 5,584
Additions to non-current  ERIEREIAE
assets 5,115 39 884,405 26,508 173 - 916,240

Segment assets exclude club debentures, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, other financial assets,
deferred income tax assets, investments in associates,
income tax refundable and other unallocated head office
and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred income tax liabilities,
income tax payable, corporate borrowings and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

The Group's business segments operate in four main
geographical areas, even though they are managed on a

worldwide basis.

SEMEHEE)

WERE

AEEBNEBYHBENEERHEL
L2 BANFERBRUNZHRGAER -

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT PEEET T

Sales (by location of customers) HE (BRI E DL
— Mainland China — B 3,567,372 2,601,614
— Europe — B 2,055,235 1,102,346

— Asia (other than Mainland China and — SN (B FEH
Hong Kong) REE) 1,319,915 1,728,766
— Others —HE 680,632 647,348
7,623,154 6,080,074

Non-current assets IERBEE

— Mainland China — e 1,823,547 1,654,099
- Hong Kong — &5 72,990 136,450
— Europe — BUM 959 1,151
— Other —HE 84 14
1,897,580 1,791,714

The non-current asset information above is based on the
location of assets and excludes club debentures, deferred
income tax assets and investments in associates.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group had
sales of approximately HK$958,390,000 to a single
customer of the steel trading segment, representing
approximately 13% of the external sales. For the year
ended 31 December 2010, the Group did not have any
single significant customer with the transaction value

above 10% of the external sales.

A EFERBEEREEMELEE D -
BETERefES ETMEREER

B NRIRE -

HE_Z——&F+t-_HA=+—HLHF
B mMEES s BE—E—RFLNHEE
%) /575 %958,390,0007T * G ANEBE 2
INERSHER13% - HE-ZT—ZTF+=
A=+ BULFEVERTME—FKX
BEERGZWABBAERZ INBHEE

10% °
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6 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 6 HELTHMB:HERRE
The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights REBAEMRE T % P BREAEZ
represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net RN ERES  HEEESES T
book amounts are analysed as follows: LUNNE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BYETT T TT
Outside Hong Kong, held on: EEBINEE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years +ER+EHNEE 11,046 11,163
Leasehold land and land use rights with aggregate === e 2 B = (B} 07
carrying amount of approximately HK$6,171,000 as at 31 Erm Rt ERAEAREAELNE
December 2011 (2010: HK$6,321,000) were pledged to ¥6171,000 c(ZE—TF : B
secure against certain of the Group’s bank borrowings (see 6,321,0007T0) B &M EBERITERE
Note 21). ER(RMEE21) »
Movement of the leasehold land and land use rights ME Tt R+ AERFE AR ZEN N
during the year is as follows: BN
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT TT
At 1 January 5= 11,163 15,460
Exchange differences ME =5 250 143
Additions R - 4,813
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease AN EREE
payments s (367) (385)
Disposals mfE = (8,868)
At 31 December S et =t e = 11,046 11,163
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & Bf 7§ 3 3% B 5
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 HE BRERERE
Leasehold
[and in
Hong Kong
under Leasehold Furniture
long-term improve- and Motor  Construction
finance lease Buildings ments  Machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
RERRE g
HERELH BT BTERE BE  BARRE B ERIE %
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT  BMTn  BBTn BETn BBTn AT BETn AR
At 1 January 2010 RZZ-F5-A-A
Cost R 82,582 108,142 16,246 72,428 13,481 9,247 - 302,126
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE (20,274) (38,930) (13,682) (59,441) (10,682) (7,328) - (150337)
Net book amount KEFE 62,308 69,212 2,564 12,987 2,799 1,919 - 151,789
Year ended R
31 December 2010 ZT-ALEE
Opening net book amount BEEFE 62,308 69,212 2,564 12,987 2,799 1,919 - 151,789
Exchange differences ERER = 1274 4 309 55 n 5,931 7,684
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEENB AR
(see Note 36) (Ehitze) - 2 - 8,683 20 1,239 584 10,773
Additions R - - 2927 31 1488 1,399 288,449 294,294
Revaluation Bl - 21,665 - - - - - 21,665
Transfers 174 = (41,226) = = = S = (41,226)
Disposals e - (10422) (1,609) (2,025) (249) . - (1430)
Depreciation charge it 3 (1,244) (3429) (969) (4,041) (1,081) (1,212) - (11,976)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 61,064 37,101 2,957 15,944 3,25 3,416 294,964 418,698
At 31 December 2010 RZE-TF
N=H= =
Cost AR 82,582 66,544 9,283 80,689 13,524 11,661 294,964 559,247
Accumulated depreciation ZithE 21518) (29443 (6326) (64745 (10272) (8,245) - (140549)
Net book amount REFE 61,064 37,101 2,957 15,944 325 3416 294,964 418,698

Annual Report 2011 F3R 121



W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & Bf 7% 3R 3% B =+

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Leasehold
land in
Hong Kong
under Leasehold
long-term improve-
finance lease  Buildings ments
REERY il

HERRLY LE £
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

ERTT  ERTR ERTR

7

ME  BBEERME)
Furniture
and Motor  Construction
Machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total

BE  RARKG B ERIR #h

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
ARTT  EWTR  RWTR ERTR ERTR

Year ended BEZ3——%12R

31 December 2011 =t-ALEE
Opening net book amount BMREEE 61,064 37,101 2,957 15,944 3,252 3M6 294964 418,698
Exchange differences EiZE - 512 19 267 67 105 12,669 13,639
Additions ER - - 1,762 260 2,531 3,718 11,291 19,568
Transfers 174 - - - - (452) - - (452)
Disposals HE - - - (283) (292) - - (575)
Depreciation charge Vit (1,244) (2,225) (1,532) (3,498) (1,223) (1,545) - (11,267)
Closing net book amount BREDTE 59,820 35388 3,206 12,690 3,889 5,694 318,924 439,611
At 31 December 2011 RIE—%

o=/l

Cost R 82,582 67,223 11,213 69,370 12,832 13,921 318,924 576,065
Accumulated depreciation Zithe (2762)  (31.8%)  (8007) (56,680 (8943  (8227) - (136450
Net book amount REFE 59,820 35,388 3,206 12,690 3,889 5,694 318,924 439,611

Depreciation expense of approximately HK$4,722,000
(2010: HK$7,066,000) has been charged in cost of
sales, HK$1,907,000 (2010: HK$1,036,000) in selling
and distribution expenses and HK$4,638,000 (2010:
HK$3,874,000) in general and administrative expenses.

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing
costs amounting to approximately HK$8,500,000 (2010:
HK$3,200,000) on qualifying assets. Borrowing costs were
capitalised at the weighted average rate of its general
borrowings of 4.11% (2010: 4.20%).
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7

At 31 December 2011, leasehold land in Hong Kong
under long-term finance lease and buildings with
carrying amount of approximately HK$59,822,000
(2010: HK$61,064,000) and HK$32,117,000 (2010:
HK$33,642,000), respectively, were pledged to secure
against certain of the Group’s bank borrowings (see
Note 21).

Motor vehicles and machinery include the following
amounts where the Group is a lessee under finance leases:

Mk BBREME(E)

WN_E——F+-_A=+—H NES
EHpMEREL HREFREES B
75#59,822,000t (= —24F : B
61,064,0007T) & #E#32,117,00070( =
T —T4F : B¥33,642,0007T) B AEB
MEBERITEFEER(RME21) -

SEERBEREAME T ER RS
BRETREE

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

B¥ETT BT T

Cost — capitalised finance leases KA —ERERERE 6,081 6,765

Accumulated depreciation 2T E (1,976) (2,258)

Net book amount IR FE 4,105 4,507

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8 KREYE

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

B¥ETT BET T

At 1 January R—=H=H 723,988 601,018

Additions 18575 23,921 26,468
Fair value gains (included in “other gains, NEERE(BEEETE

net”) (see Note 25) e 558 |) (ZHEE 25) 38,611 62,866

Exchange differences PE W =58 32,683 25,352

Transfers (Y52 452 41,226

Disposals HeE - (32,942)

At 31 December R =7—8 819,655 723,988
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the buildings
of the Group were reclassified as investment properties.
For the transfer from buildings to investment properties,
the difference between the fair value of the buildings at
the date of transfer and its carrying amount, amounting
to approximately HK$21,665,000, was recognised in
the other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2010.

The investment properties were revalued on an open
market basis at 31 December 2011 by independent,
professionally qualified valuers, Vigers Appraisal and
Consulting Limited.

The Group’s interests in investment properties at their net
book amounts are analysed as follows:

4= A g

RA M BmRNE

REME ()

HE-_Z—ZF+_-_A=+—BItF
B AEBEEFEFOHEEKRED
¥ EFEREREMES  ZEFHE
FEEANAFEMEALINIREEZ M
B R4 BB 121,665,0007T  BEE
E_E-TF+_A=+—HIFEH
TEERAFHER

REWEFHE—_ZT——F+_A=1—H
BB XA BRI A IS & ER
HEEABRARBEAFMESRMR -

AEBEREYEN RS ZERTDFE
DT

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Mainland China A
— held on leases of between —EBEtTERTFHN
10 and 50 years e 819,655 723,988

At 31 December 2011, investment properties of
approximately HK$731,433,000 (2010: HK$647,473,000)
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking
facilities (see Note 21).
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9  INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9 EHEE
Domain
names,
Exploration trademark
and and
Mining evaluation computer
Goodwill right assets software Total
Ee-
BER i1 )]
ik B HihEE BhEHG H“H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BEFT BEFT
At 1 January 2010 R-E-ZF—-H-H
Cost KA - - - 193 193
Accumulated amortisation 2t
and impairment RoRifE - - - (193) (193)
Net book amount REFE - - - - -
Year ended HE-Z-T%
31 December 2010 +-A=t-BIt&E
Opening net book amount R EFE - - - - -
Exchange differences BEHER - 84 540 - 624
Additions R - - 3,375 - 3,375
Acquisition of subsidiaries KERBAR
(See Note 36) (ZHi736) 360,000 185,017 10,158 = 555,175
Amortisation charge die - (5,199) = = (5,199)
Closing net book amount HRIREEE 360,000 179,902 14,073 = 553,975
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE-Z&
Sl
Cost 1% 360,000 185,101 14,073 193 559,367
Accumulated amortisation and RiTEHER
impairment WE - (5,199) = (193) (5,392)
Net book amount REFE 360,000 179,902 14,073 - 553,975
Year ended 31 December 2011 BE-E——4%
+-p=+-ALFE
Opening net book amount HOREFE 360,000 179,902 14,073 - 553,975
Exchange differences B EH 31,111 6,372 1,891 - 39,374
Additions R - - 1,683 - 1,683
Amortisation charge B - (6,981) = = (6,981)
Closing net book amount IR FE 391,111 179,293 17,647 - 588,051
At 31 December 2011 R-B—%&
+-A=1+-H
Cost KA 391,111 199,709 17,647 193 608,660
Accumulated amortisation ZEtEE
and impairment RoRfE - (20,416) - (193) (20,609)
Net book amount REFE 391,111 179,293 17,647 - 588,051
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Amortisation of the mining right of approximately
HK$6,981,000 for the year ended 31 December 2011
(2010: HK$5,199,000) is included in general and
administrative expenses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost of mining right over its estimated useful
life of 30 years. The licence period of the mining right held
by the Group is 5 years. In the opinion of the directors, the
Group will be able to renew the mining right with relevant
government authorises continuously at minimal charges.

Impairment tests for goodwill

For the purpose of impairment reviews, goodwill set out
above is allocated to the cash generating unit (CGU)
related to mineral resources operation.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculation are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices
and direct costs during the period. Management estimates
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU. The growth rates are based on
industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and
direct costs are based on past practices and expectations
of future changes in the market.

The Group prepares cash flows forecast derived from the
most recent financial budget approved by management for
the next five years. The CGU cashflow beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3%.
The financial budget and growth rate are estimated with
reference to the development curve of the industry in the
PRC region. The rate used to discount the forecast cash
flows for CGU is 20.51%. In the opinion of the directors,
no material impairment loss is identified.
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10

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

fre MR T

10 MEBLFRERGR

Investments in subsidiaries (a) MEBATE®RSE
Company
VNG|
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Unlisted shares, at cost LMD - KA 42,415 42,415
Capital contributions relating to B2 DA B9 S A5 2 S

share-based payment BEMEE 10,107 7,234
52,522 49,649

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at

31 December 2011:

Name

4

Directly held:
BERA:

Burwill and Company Limited

Burwill HK Portfolio Limited

Burwill China Portfolio Limited

Smart Task Limited

Place of
incorporation/
operations and
kind of legal entity

s, e
WEREEB

Hong Kong limited liability
company

ERARREAA

The British Virgin

Islands limited

liability company
AERAESAREEAT

The British Virgin

Islands limited

liability company
AERABEARALAT

The British Virgin

Islands limited

liability company
ABRABMEARAMLAT

Issued and
fully paid capital

ERITR
EMERE

HK$50,000,000
and £50,000
78#50,000,0007C
250,000 %

Us$2
b

US§$1
1%

Us$1
(E

T = s e =l = S
ZMBARMT :

Percentage of
equity interest/
voting capital
attributable

to the Group
FREHFC

L YRR
REEALL

Principal activities

EERERR

100%  Investment holding
REER

100%  Investment holding
RERK

100%  Investment holding
REER

100%  Investment holding
RERR
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

10 MEBLARRERRESE)

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

(a) MEBaT®RE(E)

Percentage of
Place of equity interest/
incorporation/ voting capital
operations and Issued and attributable
Name kind of legal entity fully paid capital to the Group  Principal activities
FREHFZ
ML EE BEfTR L YRR
1) W R EES A BRERF BFESL FERBUE
Indirectly held:
R :
Burwill Minerals Limited Hong Kong limited liability HKS1 100%  Investment holding
ERREEERARA company BT REER
EABREANA
Burwill Resources Limited Hong Kong limited liability HK$1,000,000 100%  Steel trading
ERMEHERER AT company 7#1,000,0007C MEES
EABREARA
Burwill Resources Europe, S.A. Spain limited liability company ~ EUR62,000 70%  Steel trading
BRI EREERR 62,0008X T #HE5
Burwill Steel Company Limited The British Virgin Us$13 100%  Investment holding
Islands limited 3% REER
liability company
EBRRMRARALAR
Burwill Steel Pipes Limited Hong Kong limited liability HK$30,000,000 100%  Steel processing
ERHEERAH company 7%£30,000,0007 WEmT
BREREMLA
Burwill Commercial Holdings Limited Hong Kong limited liability HKS$1 100%  Investment holding
EREENEERAR company BB RARR
EREREMLLA
Burwill Times Industrial Limited Hong Kong limited liability HK$2 100%  Investment holding
ERRREEERAT company BT REER
ERBREARA
Burwill Warehousing (Shanghai) Limited ~ Mainland China US$1,200,000 100%  Steel trading
(Note (i) T 1,200,000% 7 e85
BHAR(LE)ARARNZ))
RRmelRE BB (Note (i) Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100%  Steel processing
(W) P AK%10,000,0007 #mEmT
Dongguan Hingwah Metals Factory Mainland China HK$100,500,000 100%  Steel processing
Limited (Note (i) T 7%100,500,0007C HEmT

REREDERARAR M)
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
Place of
incorporation/
operations and
Name kind of legal entity
EMmI/ 8
£1] e REELE

Indirectly held: (continued)
BERE (&)

Hing Wah Metals Factory Limited Hong Kong limited liability
FENESRERAH company
EEARRERA
Hillot Limited Hong Kong limited liability
company
EABREANA

Tai Xin Minerals Limited The British Virgin Islands
limited liability company

ABRARBERALAT

BEREREAB LN (Note (i) Mainland China
(i) HE
KEZLEERR N7 (Note () Mainland China
(i) HE
KERERERR A (Note () Mainland China
(i) HE
BMEREEER A Note (i) Mainland China
(i) el
Yinmain Industrial Limited Hong Kong limited liability
EREXBRAT company
ABERAMLA
Notes:

(i) Burwill Warehousing (Shanghai) Limited, B3emaI&Z 5
AR AF], Dongguan Hingwah Metals Factory Limited, &
EREBBEARRAA, HKEBEL2HEARAA and %5
ZEEEBR2AF are wholly foreign owned enterprises
established in Mainland China to be operated for 50 years
up to March 2050, 21 years up to December 2028, 24
years up to July 2017, 30 years up to December 2037, 20
years up to September 2029 and 10 years up to December

2017, respectively.

(i) HBMNEREZEAERAA s asino-foreign equity joint
venture established in Mainland China to be operated for

40 years up to April 2039.

fre MR T

10 MEBAT

(a) MEBaF®RE(E)

Percentage of

equity interest/

voting capital

Issued and attributable
fully paid capital to the Group  Principal activities
FEAWFL
ERTR YR ET ]
ERERE BFESN EERRE
HK$5,000,000 100%  Investment holding
7515,000,0007C RARR
HK$500,000 100%  Securities investment
75#£500,0007T EHRE
Us$164 70.12%  Investment holding
164570 REER
HK$50,000,000 70.12%  Investment holding
75150,000,0007C REER
US$39,000,000 70.12%  Mineral resources
39,000,000% T BEAR
RMB37,793,500 70.12% Mir]eral resources
AR%37,793,5007C BEER
RMB60,000,000 69%  Commercial property
AR%60,000,0007 HERME
HK§2 100%  Property holding
B8 BENE

(ii)

ERER(LEB)ARAR - R
MEIRBEHERAR « REEHKER
CHMERAR EEREBEEER
nE > HEBREBERR AR KK
RBBEEARARHANFEK
MZNEBERE  BEBHRA
At+FE_ZTRTEF=A . =+—
FE_T-_NF+-AH  Z+HWEFE
E-T—+F+thH =+FE_ZFT
=tF+ZR Z+EFEZ=ZF=h
FhARTEE-_ZE—+F+=-A-

BNEREXERABENRPBEK
VZHHNRBERE  EXHLHIL
FEZZ=NFHA -
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES 10 MHELTIRIRERZ)
(continued)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a) MEBATIRE(Z)
The above list includes only those subsidiaries which, A FFrpERiRESR AN AER
in the opinion of the directors, are material to the BSEHHBAT - EER AN
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in HINHEHBARIZHE 5%
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of EiERARTTE -
excessive length.
None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue Rz s——®+-_A=+—H
at any time during the year ended 31 December \FEERERER - BB A TR
2011. BAMEBEEER -
(b) Balances with subsidiaries (b) MEBAT#ES
Except for the amounts due from subsidiaries BB AT KRS R L A
amounting to approximately HK$387,200,000 387,200,000 L (ZE—FF : &
(2010: HK$387,200,000) and approximately 387,200,000 7T ) R4 A K
HK$892,093,000 (2010: Nil) which bear interest at 892,093,000 T ( = & — & F
5% per annum (2010: 5%) and nil, respectively and ) MoOoRIEERASE(ZZE—
are not repayable within one year, all the outstanding TE SE)REESMTER—
balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest FERNIBH - FTEETCEKE QT4
bearing and repayable on demand. G EIE « A F B RN EREE
11 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES 1 BEBATIRIRESR
(a) Investments in associates (a) BEATRE
Group
%H
2011 2010
HK$000 HK$'000
BT BETT
At 1 January ®n—H—H 92,906 257,606
Share of results of associates FTGE & AR
— profit before income tax — RS THAT R 5,450 8,850
— income tax expense — BT (782) (1,197)
Dividends received B R (4,545) (4,878)
Distribution of shares in an associate REEE A R & = (170,038)
Capital contribution to an associate ABE T —REE QA 2,000 =
Exchange differences PE 5 =R 2,899 2,563
At 31 December Rar= 5 =r—8 97,928 92,906
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4= A

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES 11

(continued)

(a)

Investments in associates (continued)

75 R R M R

I ==

BEAFIRARER(D)

(a) WMEBELAFTHRE(ZE)

The Group's interests in associates were as follows: REBEBEBESNTHERDOT :
% of
Particulars Country of Profit/  interest
Name of issued capital incorporation Assets Liabilities  Revenue (Loss) held
2R B3/ 2}
1] REER ERBIER RE af BA  (BR) #=2%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BRTT BRTT ERTT E¥TR
2011
Indirectly held:
RRHA :
Nam Wah Precision Ordinary shares of The British Virgin 49,207 20,490 91,169 349 20%
Product (BVI) Limited US$0.1 each, unlisted slands
Lak - sho1xn - HABREAHS
E i
Masteel (Yangzhou) Paid up capital of Mainland China 210,522 145519 492,686 4,207 29%
Processing & US$19,997,570 m
Distribution Co. Ltd. ~ B&&A
S8 (M) T 19,997,570% 7
BR A7
BNt EEZMERAR Paid up capital of Mainland China 5,178 2,921 7,065 161 30%
RMBS5,000,000 "
AE#5,000,0007
T.0.P. (Hong Kong) Ordinary shares of Hong Kong 3,135 1,184 - (49) 33.33%
Investment Company HK$1 each, unlisted &S
Limited Lak - SRERIT
FRB(EE)RE E i
BR A7
268,042 170,114 590,920 4,668
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11 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES 11 BOTIRERESR )
(continued)
(a) Investments in associates (continued) (a) BMEATIRE(Z)
% of
Particulars Country of interest
Name of issued capital incorporation Assets  Liabilities ~ Revenue Profit held
BET 52)
1 BAFE BRlIZAVEETER EE aff WA BN EE%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT ABTr A%t A¥%Trx
2010
Indirectly held:
&R
Nam Wah Precision Ordinary shares of The British Virgin 52,357 24,285 83,910 1,444 20%
Product (BVI) Limited US$0.1 each, unlisted Islands
LEk - gR01ET EBRAEHS
F b
Masteel (Yangzhou) Paid up capital of Mainland China 211,618 148,790 502,284 5,758 29%
Processing & US$19,997,570 H
Distribution Co. Ltd. ~ E#&ZK
SH M) T 19,997,570% T
BRAR
BN RSYHAR AR Paid up capital of Mainland China 4,241 2,235 6,506 451 30%
RMB5,000,000 "
ERER
AR 5,000,0007C
268,216 175,310 592,700 7,653

(b)

On 27 January 2010, the Group distributed
1,540,023,984 shares in China LotSynergy Holdings
Limited to its shareholders. In this connection, the
Group recorded a net gain on distribution of shares
in an associate of approximately HK$501,897,000
which was recognised in the consolidated income
statement during the year ended 31 December 2010

(see Note 32).

Balances with associates

The outstanding balances with associates are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.
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12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

fre MR T

12 BRNBS &I R

Group $£EH
Assets
at fair value
Loans and through
receivables profit or loss Total
BROTE
HR® SBEKYIE
BB HRE ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETIT BT
Assets as per consolidated BEAEEARRM
balance sheet EE
2011
Financial assets at fair value RATEE BB
through profit or loss WIS EE - 6,360 6,360
Other financial assets HeWKEE - 71,998 71,998
Bills and accounts receivable FEUS =15 K FE R IR 1,287,014 - 1,287,014
Deposits and other receivables %% & E 1 FE WK 74,083 - 74,083
Due from associates iR /NCI NG 185 - 185
Due from a related company B ERNEIDEN 1,751 - 1,751
Cash and bank balances IR NIRITHAR 246,610 - 246,610
1,609,643 78,358 1,688,001
Group &H
Liabilities at
amortised cost
REBRF
AR &R
HK$°000
BT
Liabilities as per consolidated — iZ4REEERBERHD
balance sheet &
2011
Borrowings B 1,145,943
Due to related companies R E8E N R RIE 24,079
Bills and accounts payable e =18 K PR IR TE 228,595
Other payables and accruals HeRMAIIRBERETER 126,128
1,524,745
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12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 12 BRERNEIScE&MTAE)

Group £5
Assets
at fair value
Loans and through
receivables profit or loss Total
BEAYE
B #EBREEIIR
K FE MR & E k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Assets as per consolidated i EEABRY
balance sheet EE
2010
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEEBERYR
through profit or loss H B 5 & = — 9,137 9,137
Other financial assets HEBEEE = 349,707 349,707
Bills and accounts receivable FEU R I % FE IR IR IE 1,132,297 = 1,132,297
Deposits and other receivables &4 & H T REW K 68,271 = 68,271
Due from associates NS USE=N 178 = 178
Due from a related company A ENEIDE 1,751 - 12751
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTEEH 374,103 = 374,103
1,576,600 358,844 1,935,444
Group 3]
Liabilities at
amortised cost
b7g: S| DWIN
AIRE B &
HK$'000
BT T
Liabilities as per consolidated  Z4GEEEABERA
balance sheet BE
2010
Borrowings B 1,378,444
Due to related companies R EE N R I 24,079
Bills and accounts payable BT ZE iR N FE IR 354,726
Other payables and accruals EorEMIRIE M EFE A 177,530
1,934,779
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13

14

INVENTORIES 13 FR
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Raw materials R 69,928 99,593
Work-in-progress TR 3,661 1,437
Finished goods RIEY TR 93,116 193,504
Consumables B 1,110 936
167,815 295,470
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and FERAPERSEBIHAEERK K
included in cost of sales amounted to approximately ¥ & ZE L E 495515 7,081,881,0007C ( =
HK$7,081,881,000 (2010: HK$5,663,613,000). T —F4F : H¥5 663,613,0007T) ©

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 14 BAFEBBELIIENMEIE
OR LOSS

Group Company
£m 27
2011 2010 2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT BB BT BB

Financial assets at fair value RATEFE BIERTIRE

through profit or loss: MBERE:
— Listed equity securities — EmRAES
- Hong Kong —B% 5,015 5,413 250 649
- Overseas — 5 1,345 3,724 = =
Market value of listed securities &%y @ 6,360 9,137 250 649
Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value BRATEZEBBRIIENVMEEENA
through profit or loss are recorded in “other gains, net” in TFEZS  EHnRcEaRAIEplkzE
the consolidated income statement (see Note 25). FEE R SIIR (R P EE25) o
The fair value of all equity securities is based on their FTERAZESAFLENBREEESZRET
current bid prices in an active market. B2 REEEHE -
At 31 December 2011, equity securities listed in Hong RZZBE——F+=-A=+—H " RNEB
Kong with market value of approximately HK$4,764,000 FHH IR FE A T EL B 4,764,000
(2010: Nil) were pledged to secure margin facility of the T ZE—ZEF B D AERHTERE
Group (see Note 21). EE IR (R FEE21) ©
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15 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 15 ETHESE
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
BwTT BT
Contingent consideration in relation to the  UZBEK B A TIELH
acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) HARIE (H2E36) 71,998 349,707
Change in fair value of contingent consideration is FARBZ ATEEHNESEREDY
recognised in “fair value (losses)/gains on other financial [T EENATE(ER) k]
assets” in the consolidated income statement. rhigEs o
16 BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 BEREE BREERETEKS
Group Company
£H 47
2011 2010 2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
ERTR BB BT BT

Bills and accounts receivable FEWZNE L FEIRIE 1,287,014 1,134,886 - -
Less: provision for impairment of 35 : FEUZUAR E
receivables BiE - (2,589) = =

Bills and accounts receivable U Z 32 K% e U i T8

- net (Note (a)) — BB (HfE (@) 1,287,014 1,132,297 - S
Loan to a director (Note 38) EEN-CNCIELD), 195 391 - =
Deposits, prepayments and e BT

other receivables HERWR 280,165 423,299 506 678

280,360 423,690 506 678
Less: non-current portion BB AR
Loan to a director and EEZEX
prepayments SSEAE (39,217) (83,890) - -
Current portion mEE D 241,143 339,800 506 678
1,528,157 1,472,097 506 678
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16 BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Hiat -

The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods for (a)
sales of goods ranging from 30 days to 120 days. Consideration
in respect of sold properties is payable by the purchasers
pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase agreements.
Rentals in respect of leased properties are payable by the

tenants on a monthly basis.

Ageing analysis of bills and accounts receivable is as follows:

16 FEURE - BlRRARRETEER

V-1
(4&)

AEBEEERHEERAGLTEERL=1TH
E-B_THZERY - EREMNEED
EHEETIRBHES O HERIM - 8
EMEZHESWABBEPRA -

FEMCR IR & FEU IR AR ER S AT A T

Group
&=

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Within three months =EAA 1,186,474 1,118,883
Over three months but within six months BA=EAm T RBiENEA 100,498 12,830
Over six months but within twelve months BiEANEAm I EE @A 1 -
Over twelve months HBiEt+ @A 41 3,173
1,287,014 1,134,886
Less: provision for impairment of receivables & : fEUFURERE - (2,589)
1,287,014 1,132,297

There is no significant concentration of credit risk with respect
to bills and accounts receivable as the Group has a large number

of customers, internationally dispersed.

Accounts receivable that are less than three months past due (b)
are generally not considered impaired. As of 31 December

2011, the following accounts receivable were past due but not

impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers

for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing

analysis of these accounts receivable is as follows:

FEYCRIE R IR AL BB RETNEE
R ARAEEERZEF  BMHER
it o

BE D=8 A &R OIR TR E TR A
ERBE - N_T——F+_A=+—
B ATNEUIRERESHEYSRE -
I RIA e Z B BT 08 75 HE R O8 TR AD 8%
BT EP o I ERKIRIERNIRE 20
N

Group
%H

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT

Within three months =@EAR 37,291 111,020
Over three months but within six months BB =EAmA BB/ EA 100,498 12,830
Over six months but within twelve months HiBENEAmARE T —1EA 1 -
Over twelve months BBet+—1@A 41 584
137,831 124,434
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16 BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 BEWERE BEEERETHEKS
(continued) (42)
Notes: (continued) Hiat - (&)
() As of 31 December 2011, none of the accounts receivable were (0 WEEKEER-_E—F+=-A=+—

impaired and provided for (2010: HK$2,589,000). The amount
of the provision was approximately HK$2,589,000 as of 31
December 2010. The individually impaired accounts receivable
mainly relate to customers, which are in unexpected difficult
economic situations. The ageing of these accounts receivable is

BRE(ZZE—ZT4:%5%2,589,0007T) °
R-ZBE—ZFE+-A=+—8  FEREHE
%) 5788 2,589,0007T ° &R (E & FE 4k
IRIE £ Bk B RN IBEHASME B EE 8
B o ERPIRIBARERAT -

as follows:
Group
%E
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Over twelve months BiE+—1EA - 2,589
(d) The carrying amounts of the Group’s bills and accounts (d) AEBEEKER K EKIRIENRE S
receivable are denominated in the following currencies: A THIEHE BB
Group
%E
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
us$ ETT 1,147,383 998,825
EUR BT 69,330 58,924
RMB AR 46,926 58,993
HK$ BT 23,372 15,555
Other HE 3 -
1,287,014 11132,297
(&) Movements on the provision for impairment of accounts (e) MEUIRTEREEEESHIT

receivable are as follows:

Group
%M

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT R T

At 1 January IR—F=E 2,589 2,495

Provision for accounts receivable impairment [ U iR IRl (B #4 126 94
Accounts receivable written off P HR B B W 1 i i g

during the year as uncollectible ) FE MR IR IE (2,715) =

At 31 December ®nt+=-—BA=+—H - 2,589
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16 BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

17

Notes: (continued)

(e)

(continued)

The creation and release of provision for impaired accounts
receivable have been included in general and administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement. Amounts
charged to the allowance account are generally written off,
when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The other classes within bills and accounts receivable do not
contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
period is the carrying amounts of each class of receivable
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security.

DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES

The outstanding balances represent amounts due from/
to subsidiaries of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited, a
company in which Mr. Chan Shing and Ms. Lau Ting,
the directors of the Company have beneficial interests.
The outstanding balances with related companies are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The maximum outstanding balance due from a
related company during the year was approximately
HK$1,751,000 (2010: HK$1,751,000).

16

17

fre M HRARM T

B RE - iR E R T EER

(&)

Bz - ()
(e) (#&)

HERERBIRARENRIANEEDE
REFABERRT —RETHRERA - £
EHIRE P HROBE RS ERREE
W B BESNR & B S

RN R E R EUIRIBE AN EE D
BRERERE -

BNEE

EREBHR - FERBRMA &S EBRAE
AP SERKGREIREE - AEETHE
BEMERERNERR -

REATIRR,REELFTREA

ERABHERINEVIERER AT
ETHBARZRIE  MARGESRR
A ERBIEZ T R& A RS EARE
i o RN HRRE R RFIABEIEE -
R ENERENREE - FRBEEIFXR
EERSSEEAEE1,751,0000( ==
—Z 4 ¢ JB#1,751,0007T) °
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18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 18 BeRBITHRE
Group Company
1] 27
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

#BTT BT BRTT EETIT

Cash at banks and on hand RITREGFRS 158,041 189,123 588 627
Short-term bank deposits K HERIRITIE AN 88,569 184,980 - =
246,610 374,103 588 627

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was RERITERNERFER152E(Z
1.52% (2010: 3.43%); these deposits have an average T—FF :3438) : ZSEFEXHEY
maturity of 246 days (2010: 17 days). BIHR A246 K (ZF—ZFF 1 17K) °

%

At 31 December 2011, the Group had certain short-term R—ZE——F+=-_A=+—0 " £@F

bank deposits of approximately HK$25,124,000 (2010:
HK$2,335,000) pledged with the banks (see Note 37(d)).

At 31 December 2011, cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$76,154,000 (2010: HK$32,771,000) are
denominated in RMB and placed with banks in Mainland
China. The remittance of these funds out of Mainland
China is subject to the exchange control restrictions
imposed by the Chinese Government. Also, the exchange
rate is determined by the Chinese Government.
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19 SHARE CAPITAL 19 B
Number of Nominal
ordinary shares value
BiEEEA mE
(thousands) HK$'000
(F&H) T T
At 1 January 2010 RZE—ZFF—H—H 3,422,280 342,228
Issue of shares (Note (b)) BATRAD (M 7Eb)) 307,380 30,738
Issue of shares (Note (c)) BT (M52 () 685,700 68,570
At 31 December 2010 and RZE—ZEF+=-H=+—H
1 January 2011 E—_ZE——F—HF—H 4,415,360 441,536
Issue of shares (Note (d)) BT (BaE(d) 460,000 46,000
At 31 December 2011 IR T r =2 S 4,875,360 487,536
Notes: Kiat -

(a)  Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by shareholders at
the special general meeting held on 12 February 2010, the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased to 6,800
million shares with a nominal value of HKO.1 per share. All issued
shares are fully paid.

(b)  Pursuant to the placing agreement dated 11 March 2010, the
Company allotted and issued a total of 307,380,000 new shares
at a subscription price of HK$0.605 each. Total net proceeds
from the placing of approximately HK$182.9 million were
intended to be used as the Group’s general working capital.

() On 31 March 2010, 685,700,000 ordinary shares were issued
as partial consideration at the fair value of HK$0.7 each for the
acquisition of Tai Xin Minerals Limited (Note 36(a)).

(d)  Pursuant to the top-up placing and subscription agreement
dated 21 February 2011 and the supplemental agreement
dated 24 February 2011, the Company allotted and issued
460,000,000 new ordinary shares of the Company at a
subscription price of HK$0.48 each to Glory Add Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company, on 4 March 2011
following completion of the top-up placing of an aggregate of
460,000,000 existing shares to not less than six independent
investors at a placing price of HK$0.48 each. A net proceeds of
approximately HK$214 million raised was used for the expansion
of mineral resources and as general working capital of the
Group.

R-ZE—ZEF-_A+-_HRREIARB
B ERRFIE A ADEE R A Z681E M
BREER/ER0IT - IBEEETRN
HEEEAR -

BRER-T—TF=A+—RiJuziE
Wi - A QBN EREERDE%0.605
THREERALAZBITRERESG &
3w3%0m%ﬁ%@°m%%%ﬁﬁﬁ
mﬂm%M1&m TR AEREE—
BEES -

R-Z-—ZTE=FA=+—0 KRATFEE
B %0.7 03 77685,700,000 % 3 38 A% 1
AU EETai Xin Minerals LimitedZ 281X
B (FF3E36(a)) °

BE-_FT——F-_A=-+—HZ%kE%
TRErRRABHEER=_Z——F=A
“tMBZREERE - WERERAR
048TTHRMEBTEREERIEEE S HK
460,000,000k B RN F PR ANEE
NIREENE  ARRER=ZT——F=
A BRFRBH0.48TTHREEBR X
#%17460,000,000 (% 78 2 7] 31 3 38 AR AR 10
FARA T EZRLEGlory Add Limited ° BT
BHIEF B2V AETREAREERE
EERXBERR —REELS -
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19 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 19 BEE)

Share-based payments — Group and Company

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
6 June 2002, shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a share option scheme (the “2002 Option
Scheme”). Under the 2002 Option Scheme, the Company
may grant options to employees (including executive
directors or non-executive director) of the Company and
its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares in the Company,
subject to a maximum of 30% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time excluding for
this purpose shares issued on exercise of options. The
subscription price will be determined by the directors, and
will not be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price
of the shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the
trading day of granting the options; (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the shares quoted on the Stock Exchange
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of granting the options; and (iii) the nominal value of
the shares. The 2002 Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing on 6
June 2002, after which period no further options will be
granted or accepted but the provisions of the 2002 Option
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects.
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19 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 19 BEE)
Share-based payments - Group and Company DEREMNZEM - F*KERELATF
(continued) (&
At the annual general meeting of the Company held on ARBIRZE——FNANBERITZE
8 June 2011, shareholders of the Company approved RIAF RS RS IR I E R AR
the adoption of a share option scheme (the “2011 HE(ZE——FBIRETE]) - 1B
Option Scheme”). Under the 2011 Option Scheme, the —E——FERETE - ARRAERT
Company may grant options to employees (including ARAREMBAR 2 ET(BEHT
executive directors or non-executive) of the Company and BRI TES)BREARERA
its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares in the Company, Al ity - BERREZERAAFLD
subject to a maximum of 30% of the issued share BITIRAR 2 30% (et AE 1T i Ak 42
capital of the Company from time to time excluding for MBETHRD) - BRZREEHES
this purpose shares issued on exercise of options. The RE - WHERDR : (VERLEREE
subscription price will be determined by the directors, BB AT SR 2 Wi B ¢ (i) ERHE
and will not be less than the highest of: (i) the closing A% #E AT AL B 22 5 B AR B 22 P B 3R 2
price of the shares quoted on the Stock Exchange on HEHE: R(iROHAB=EZ2ES
the trading day of granting the options; (ii) the average Fo T ——FHEREFGE ZANH
of the closing prices of the shares quoted on the Stock ZE——FXRANBRE - BHTF -
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding BB G HERDSEREMEARRE -
the date of granting the options; and (iii) the nominal - ——FEREFE 2B EREYE
value of the shares. The 2011 Option Scheme shall be EHERBDEBETRESNRIER - BZ
valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing T——FNANARBEAN=_Z—F
on 8 June 2011, after which period no further options will BRETEAN - BEBRERE - )
be granted or accepted but the provisions of the 2011 - (TESEIE -
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all
other respects. No share option was granted, forfeited,
exercised or expired under the 2011 Option Scheme since
its adoption on 8 June 2011.
Movements in number of share options outstanding and MARITEE 2 AR EE B RSB N
their related weighted average exercise prices are as EHITEEZENT
follows:
2011 2010
Average Average
exercise exercise
price in price in
HK$ Options HK$ Options
per share (thousands) per share  (thousands)
FY{TEE R FHaEE g
(BT (F&t) (BB (F5t)
At 1 January Wn—H—H 0.50 91,600 - -
Granted B 0.50 2,400 0.50 94,000
Forfeited 2RIk 0.50 (8,340) 0.50 (2,400)
At 31 December Tty = s 0.50 85,660 0.50 91,600

Annual Report 2011 3¢ 143



W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bf 7 ¥} &% M 5+
19 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 19 BEE)
Share-based payments - Group and Company LBMEZAzEM —FEERELT
(continued) (%)
Out of the 85,660,000 outstanding options (2010: "M 85,660,000 ( — & — T F
91,600,000), 59,500,000 (2010: 32,060,000) options 91,600,000) M ARITHFE 2 HEIKESD -
were exercisable. No share option was exercised or expired 59,500,000( —ZF—=4 : 32,060,000)
during the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil). EREAN YT BE_T—F
TZA=T—HILEE - HEEREE
TEKFM(ZE—FF - |&) -
Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the REREARITEZBEIREY FHA BT
following expiry dates and exercise prices: FEEINT :
Exercise
price in
HK$
per share
TEE Options (thousands)
Expiry date AR (BhRET) FERR4E (Fat)
2011 2010
5 October 2013 —T- =%1+-HAH 0.50 83,260 91,600
27 April 2014 —ZE—FERA=++tH 0.50 2,400 -

The vesting period of the options is from the date of grant
until the commencement of the exercisable period.

The fair value of the options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2011 was estimated as at the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes options pricing model with
the following assumptions:

(i) Risk-free interest rate — the yield of three years
Exchange Fund Notes;

(i) Expected volatility of share price — annualised
standard deviations of continuously compounded
rates of return on the Company. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also
not necessarily be the actual outcome;

Expected life of share options — one to three years;
Expected dividend yield — nil; and

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.
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19 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 19 BRE(Z)

Share-based payments - Group and Company
(continued)

According to Black-Scholes options pricing model, the fair
value of the options granted as at 31 December 2011 was
approximately HK$14,342,200 (2010:HK$15,480,000) of
which the Group recognised a share option expense of
approximately HK$3,739,000 (2010: HK$9,548,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2011.

At 31 December 2011, the Company had 85,660,000
options (2010: 91,600,000 options) outstanding under the
2002 Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining
options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issuance of 85,660,000
(2010: 91,600,000) additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of approximately
HK$8,566,000 (2010: HK$9,160,000) and share premium
of approximately HK$34,264,000 (2010:HK$36,640,000)
(before issue expenses).

DESIFMzEM -*REARELF
(&)

BRI N5 — &7 BT | T EE
NR-EBE——E+-_A=+—HFMEH
BlRE L AT ELB14,342,200T
(ZZ=—Z4F : H#¥15,480,0007T) °
EhAREBEREBEE-_E——%+=-A
S+ BLFERREBEREZ LS
#3739,000 L (—E—ZTF : B
9,548,0007T) °

RZE——F+_F=+—8H &R
AT _FEREET  MERT
2 B MR #E 5 85,660,00010 ( =& —
L F : 91,600,00017 ) ° FEA AR
IRALERT - 2ETEHTERE
15 3 B 58 YN B 17 85,660,000 8 (= &
—Z 4 : 91,600,000 8 ) AR T L@
f&% - 0 IR A K R0 0 B 2 Bl S 0 4
8,566,000t (=T —TF : B
9,160,000 7T ) & %778 % 34,264,000 7T
(= —TF : #¥36,640,00070) (K
MBETIH) -
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20 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS 20 EE#EREZEF
Group
&8
Capital Share-based
Share Capital ~ Contributed ~ redemption  Revaluation ~ Translation  compensation Retained
premium reserve surplus reserve reserve  adjustments eserve profits Total
BLEE RS HZ
&8 BRGE N ff B hERE HERE RERMN a8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT EETT BB BB BETT AT BB BT BETT
At 1 January 2010 R=5-5%-f-A 738,282 28,493 - 12,037 - 63,185 - 286,723 1,128,720
Profit for the year R = = - - - - - 549,444 549,444
Surplus on revaluation of property ~ M1E EfE R - - - = 14,949 = = = 14,949
Deferred income tax arising from ~ MEE (5744
revaluation of property ERFER - - - - (3,736) - - - (3,736)
Release of reserves to income PREEDARR
statement for distribution of shares it EAE Z %K
in an associate - (3.127) - - - (6,384) - - (9,511)
Share of other comprehensive FritBERE
income of associates Ev2EKMA - - - - - 2,563 - - 2,563
Currency translation differences ~ E¥EX £ - - - - - 20,798 - - 20,798
Issue of shares Bk 566,647 - - - - - - - 566,647
Share issue expenses BOES TG (3.112) = = = = = = = (3.112)
Reduction of share premium HIAR A EER (738.282) - 388 = : 2 . . .
Employees share option scheme: B SERIEE
- value of employee services -EERKER = = = = = = 9,548 = 9,548
Distribution of shares in an associate 7 JEE& AR - - (639,110) - - - - - (639,110)
Effect on distribution in specie NN E - (25,366) - - - - - - (25,366)
Changes in ownership interests in -~ HBARFEE
subsidiaries without change of g
control - - - - - - - 58 58
At 31 December 2010
563,535 - 99,172 12,037 1213 80,162 9,548 836,225 1,611,892
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20 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS (continued) 20 ECHBRESERF

Group
1|
Capital Share-based
Share Capital ~ Contributed  redemption  Revaluation  Translation ~compensation Retained
premium reserve surplus reserve reserve  adjustments reserve profits Total
el 351

RORR  RERE  BARR i EMEE AN RRER  REERY ]
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
ERTR ERTR RRTR EWTR BB BRTR RRTR ERTR ERTR

At 1 January 2011 R-E——%-f-H 563,535 - 99,172 12,037 11,213 80,162 9,548 836,225 1,611,892
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - - - (304,687) (304,687)
Share of other comprehensive FritBERE

income of associates Ev2EKMA - - - - - 2,899 - - 2,899
Currengy translation differences  EHEZEE - - - - - 65,940 - - 65,940
Issue of shares kb 174,800 - - - - - - - 174,800
Share issue expenses RETIH (6,723) - - - - - - - (6,723)
Employees share option scheme:  (EE BRI E:

- value of employee services -EEHHER - - - - - - 3739 - 3,739

Changes in ownership interestsin IR EE
subsidiaries without change of Bz 7%

control (Tu@re) - (50,025) - - - - - - (50,025)
At 31 December 2011 R-E——F
T=RET=E 731,612 (50,025) 99,172 12,037 11,213 149,001 13,287 531,538 1,497,835
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20 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS (continued) 20 HTRBREZLRF (£
Company
27
Capital Share-based
Share redemption Contributed compensation Retained
premium reserve surplus reserve profits Total
- 4el DR
kiR BE BARER HREG  ROEN an
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$ 000
AETT  A%Tr  A%Tr AT A%Tr %R
At 1 January 2010 RZE-FE-F-H 738,282 12,037 128,832 = 4,799 883,950
Profit for the year EREF - - - - 627,198 627,198
Issue of shares L) 566,647 - - - - 566,647
Share issue expenses R (3,112) = = = = (3,112)
Reduction of share premium BRI (iR E R (738,282) = 738,282 & = =
Employees share option scheme: [EERRENE
- value of employee services -EEREER - - 5 9,548 = 9,548
Distribution of shares in an associate 2 iEKEEE A TR = = (639,110) - 5 (639,110)
At 31 December 2010 R=E-SF+-A=+-H 563,535 12,037 228,004 9,543 631,997 1,445,121
At 1 January 2011 RZZ-—%-A-A 563,535 12,037 228,004 9,548 631,997 1,445,121
Loss for the year EEFR £ = = = (6,164) (6,164)
Issue of shares 21k 174,800 5 = = = 174,800
Share issue expenses A% (6,723) = = = = (6,723)
Employees share option scheme: EERRELE
- value of employee services -EERKER = = - 3,739 = 3,739
At 31 Decermber 2011 WoT-—F1-fS+-B  TA62 12037 28004 13287 G533 1610773

Contributed surplus represents (i) the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares issued and the book
value of the underlying net assets of subsidiaries acquired,
and (ii) transfer from share premium account. It can
be utilised for issuance of bonus shares or for capital
redemption upon repurchase of shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed
surplus is distributable to shareholders subject to the
condition that a company shall not declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus
if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable value of
its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.
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20 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS (continued)

21

The Company’s reserves (excluding retained profits)
as at 31 December 2011 available for distribution to
shareholders were represented by the contributed
surplus of approximately HK$228,004,000 (2010:
HK$228,004,000).

Pursuant to the special general meeting of the Company
held on 21 January 2010, the special resolutions approving
(i) the reduction of the entire amount standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company
of approximately HK$738,282,000 to nil and the credit
arising from the reduction of share premium was
transferred to the contributed surplus of the Company,
was duly passed by the shareholders and the reduction
of share premium took effect on 21 January 2010
accordingly; and (ii) the amendments to the Bye-laws of
the Company which would allow either the shareholders
or the board of directors to approve distributions to
shareholders out of the contributed surplus of the
Company to be satisfied by distribution of specific assets
and allow the board of directors to approve any interim
dividend payment.

20

fre MR EE

I =

HE#MBREFZRF (Z)

R-_ZE——F+_A=+—8  fa#Eo

KGR R Z AR RIRE(TREEREA

) BEA B4 7E 228,004,000
—T T : ##228,004,0007T) °

BE_ZT—FTF—A-_+—HKRRE
BIRE @ BRAZRIEGERAR
AR HEIREDEIRSBHEBE
738,282,000 LHI R ET - WHEEZ
EIRGHEAARDRBA BB O &
RIER BB KA R D EER T —
TE-A-+—HAERER  R>G)AA
NAERMBAMEDL 2185] - #HETAR
A ERRKEEE B EB RN A A
ABRBRRIEHBETEY DR TFRERA
HFEERIMERSPHRS -

BORROWINGS 21 BR
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRETIT BEET T
Non-current JEMED
Bank borrowings RITER 166,365 319,100
Other loans from non-controlling B8 A Al FEFE AR AR R Y
shareholders of subsidiaries EuER 60,040 59,739
Finance lease liabilities BmEHEAG 1,750 557
228,155 379,396
Current e
Bank overdrafts (Note 33(b)) SRITE S (H13£33(b)) 866 955
Bank borrowings RITER 915,654 997,012
Other loans under margin facilities FEMETETER 711 =
Finance lease liabilities MEHEERE 557 1,081
917,788 999,048
Total borrowings RE R 1,145,943 1,378,444
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fre MR ARNE

BORROWINGS (continued) B®R#E)
Secured borrowings are as follows: ABEBEZNT :
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT BT
Bank borrowings RITER 420,211 445,701
Other loans under margin facilities FREBETETER 711 -
Finance lease liabilities AMEHEAE 2,307 1,638
423,229 447,339

Bank borrowings of approximately HK$420,211,000 (2010:
HK$445,701,000) were secured by certain leasehold land
and land use rights, buildings, investment properties and
pledged bank deposits (see Notes 6, 7, 8 and 18). Finance
lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the
leased assets revert to the lessor in the event of default.

Other loans under margin facilities were secured by certain
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of equity
securities listed in Hong Kong held under margin accounts,
with market value of approximately HK$4,764,000 (see
Note 14).

Other loans from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries were unsecured, non-interest bearing and not
repayable within one year.

Certain banking facilities of the Group are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s
balance sheet ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were
to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in Note
3.1(c). As at 31 December 2010 and 2011, none of the
covenants relating to the drawn down facilities had been
breached.
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21

BORROWINGS (continued)

21 BR#E)

The maturity of the Group’s borrowings is as follows: EEEHHNIEBANT :

Bank borrowings and

overdrafts Other loans
BITHERBRBEX HEH®R
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI BETT BT T
Within one year —F R 916,520 997,967 711 -
Between one and two years —Z —FR 81,181 157,235 - -
Between two and five years —ZHFRN 85,184 161,865 60,040 59,739
1,082,885 1.317,067 60,751 59,739
The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair EFHREEEE N EERT -
values.
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Finance lease liabilities — minimum lease mEHESE —HEEE
payments: (DR
Not later than one year B —F 662 1,120
Later than one year and tHiE—FE
not later than five years TEBBAF 1,900 622
2,562 1,742
Future finance charges on finance leases BEME 2 KRR E (255) (104)
Present value of finance lease liabilities BEHEREZHRE 2,307 1,638
The present value of finance lease BMEHEABCRE
liabilities is as follows: AR
Not later than one year BB —F 557 1,081
Later than one year and HwiE—FE
not later than five years TEBAAF 1,750 557
2,307 1,638
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21 BORROWINGS (continued) 21 BR#E)
The effective interest rates at the end of the reporting RIRE HEIRMERRAMENT -

period are as follows:

M 2010
USS  RMB  EUR  HKS  Oter  US§  RMB  ELR  HKS  Other
KT AE% BT  ER  0RE® Xt ARR Bn An At

Bank borrowings BOER 3.9% 6.3% 5.9% 1.7% - 34% 5.7% 4.5% 1.5% -
Finance lease liabilities HEHERE - - - 271% 5.2% - - AL 5.1%
The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are EEEXNEESBAIATIE® A%
denominated in the following currencies: I :
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT T
us$ E v 708,100 1,023,629
RMB AREE 153,785 167,017
EUR BT 144,292 41,746
HK$ BT 139,274 145,457
Other HE 492 595
1,145,943 1,378,444
22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 22 SRIEFRRIR
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is RIEPASTIR B < 8RN T -
as follows:
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
At 1 January ®n—H—H (145,543) (78,496)
Exchange differences MEH ZRE (5,688) (4,350)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) W BB ARl (HfaE36) - (41,453)
Income statement charge FEiEm RNk (6,625) (15,829)
Tax charge relating to components of FEeZ2EBAKD
other comprehensive income Frnkr e 318 = (5,415)
At 31 December Wr= A=A E (157,856) (145,543)
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22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 22 EEFRTBKRZ)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carry forwards to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
The Group has unrecognised tax losses of approximately
HK$341,762,000 (2010: HK$341,834,000), which certain
amounts are subject to approval from the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department. These carry forwards began
to expire in 2012 for Mainland China and can be carried
forward indefinitely for Hong Kong. Tax losses can be
carried forward to offset future taxable income.

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as

BB EETRERBHEH =Y
BBARRIERT R N SR MBS 2
THIBIEER - AREARERBIELNS
#341,762,000 L ( — T — T F : B
341,834,0007T) @ AR EOFFE SR
BRIE - PREANLEHRIEN -2
—ZFRHEER - MAEBNREBANEE
HARR o {18 0] 45 88 LUK 85 K SR FE R FR Uk
]\ °

FRELEMEHEERBECEEH (R
BERER TR 2 AR HE) 1
B

follows:
Accelerated tax Investment
Deferred income tax liabilities depreciation properties Others Total
BEFRBRAR mERRAE REnE Rt an
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK§'000
EWTn  ABTn  ERTR AETn  BWTR AuTr  ERFR AETn
At 1 January R—A-H (330) (609)  (112,731)  (92610)  (61,368) (8946)  (174,429)  (102,165)
Credited/(Charged) to ek
the income statement 15/ (1K) 3 253 (9.818) (15954 (1,39  (1238) (10779  (16939)
Charged to other fEHERE
comprehensive income WA - - - - - (5,415) = (5,415)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEMB AT - - - - - (45362 - (4536
Exchange differences EizE (187) 26 (5,104) (4,167) (559) (407) (5,850) (4,548)
At 31 December NToRE =6 (85) (330)  (127,653)  (112,731) (63,320) (61,368)  (191,058)  (174,429)
Decelerated tax
Deferred income tax assets depreciation Tax losses Others Total
BERBREE BERGERE ik Rt an
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTn  ARTT  BRTR ANt BRTR AiTr  ERFR AR
At 1 January ®=A-H 1,244 1,247 21,533 2,317 109 105 28,886 23,669
Credited/(Charged) to FERR
the income statement 15/ (%) 596 B) 3,558 1,113 - - 4,154 1,110
Acquisition of subsidiaries B AT - = - 3,909 - - - 3,909
Exchange differences EiZS - - 162 194 - 4 162 198
At 31 December RS = 1,840 1,244 31,253 27,533 109 109 33,202 28,886
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22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 22 BEEFRTBKRZE)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.
The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet as
assets/liabilities not realisable/due within one year:

BEEAEERMNABEARAEERRA
BB AEERE - MELEAFHSKRE—
IR - AR MR ST EE LR
EFSHABEEREE - Bt AEE KR
HE > MIeRESEEERBRAMN
TAR—FRER PPz EE&FE
510

2011 2010

HK$’'000 HK$'000

BT BT

Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTREE 24,899 22,837
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTISTEE (182,755) (168,380)
(157,856) (145,543)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprise
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rates are 5-10%. The Group
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries and associates established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

At 31 December 2011, no deferred income tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries and associates established
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it is
not probable that these subsidiaries and associates will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates in Mainland
China for which deferred income tax liabilities have not
been recognised totalled approximately HK$5,155,000 at
31 December 2011 (2010: HK$6,246,000).
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23 BILLS AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 23 BEMNERRESIRE
Ageing analysis of bills and accounts payable is as follows: FENZ R EMEEIRE ST :
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRETT BT
Within three months =REAR 226,005 349,974
Over three months but within BiE = A mTEmE
six months 7~ E A 1,533 4,694
Over six months but within RS E A A
twelve months +—{&A~ 922 -
Over twelve months Bl + @A 135 58
228,595 354,726
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bills and accounts AEBHENEREREMIEENEDS
payable are denominated in the following currencies: FE A B M A B8 AT
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
us$ =T 188,483 257,470
RMB AR 26,719 27,948
EUR BX T 13,367 59,550
Other HE 26 -
HK$ HBIT - 9,758
228,595 354,726
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24 PROVISION FOR LAND RESTORATION AND

ENVIRONMENTAL COSTS

24 THRIREIRIRA AR

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT T

At 1 January w—A—H 2,943 -
Exchange differences MEH ZRE 153 93
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) W B AR (H1aE36) - 1,674
Income statement charge EEEENR 1,130 1,176
At 31 December IRr= A =2 4,226 2,943

The provision for land restoration and environmental costs
is in relation to the estimated costs of complying with the
Group’s obligations for land reclamation. These costs are
expected to be incurred on mine closure, which, based on

THERMRERABRBEENAEHE
HEBNEEEBRAZ G5 o LA
ADRBREBEERFEFR - XA
HIERAEERES

current mineral reserve estimates.

25 OTHER GAINS, NET 25 HEWKRBREHE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Fair value (losses)/gains on BAFEEBEZTIRD
financial assets at fair value WBEEZAFE
through profit or loss (E518), W= (9,033) 1,039
Interest income: FEMA -
— on bank deposits —RITER 1,455 SV
— on other receivables —H BRI 905 229
Dividend income & B A 85 12
Fair value gains on investment properties REMERN RN ERE 38,611 62,866
Losses on disposal of property, plant and HEME  WERXREZ
equipment =gz (449) (2,014)
Gains on disposal of land use rights HE L (F A2 & - 4,787
Others HE 10,871 8,408
42,445 75,902
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26

27

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution
expenses and general and administrative expenses are

analysed as follows:

26 BEHESWHER

FIESHERDN - SHERDHBERN—R
RITBERANERDNNT

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - K
equipment BT E
— owned assets —-BEEE 10,366 11,381
— assets held under finance leases —FEHEEE 901 595
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease A& EHE
payments TRIBHETH 367 385
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 6,981 S, 1CE
Operating lease rentals EEHEHRS 2,356 2,580
Employee benefit expense (including directors’ {E BEHH X (BIEEE
emoluments) (Note 27) <) (42227) 96,834 92,745
Write-down of inventories to net realisable  JF/{EFE E A] &30 5 E
value (included in cost of sales) (BREREERAK) = 136
Provision for impairment of accounts FE U IR TE R E
receivable B 126 94
Net exchange losses/(gains) bE N R AR (Was) 1,217 (838)
Auditors’ remuneration IZE B & 1,030 930
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 27 RRGEFIMAX
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Wages and salaries HeI1E 84,571 75,821
Share options granted to directors and BETEENEEHN
employees A A 3,739 9,548
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIREA — R e HERETE
(Note (@) (K15% (a)) 5,043 4,279
Staff welfare B TEF 3,481 3,097
96,834 92,745
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27 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Pensions - defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to
participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme (the
“Original Scheme”), which is managed by independently
administered funds. The Group’s monthly contributions are
based on 5% of employees’ monthly salaries. The employees are
entitled to receive 100% of the Group's contribution and the
accrued interest thereon upon retirement or leaving the Group
after completing ten years of service or at a reduced scale of
30% to 90% after completing three to nine years of services.

For the Hong Kong employees employed after 1 December
2000, the Group has arranged for these employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”),
a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and its
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer’s and the
employees’ contributions are subject to a maximum of
HK$1,000 per month per employee.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for
its employees in Mainland China. The Group contributes to
retirement plans at rates of approximately 13% to 29% of the
basic salaries of its employees in Mainland China, and has no
further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-
retirement benefits. The state-sponsored retirement plans are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to retired
employees.

During the year, the aggregate amount of the Group’s
contributions to the aforementioned schemes was approximately
HK$5,043,000 (2010: HK$4,279,000) without deduction of
forfeited contributions of the Original Scheme.
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mFIBASZ (&)

Bhd - FEHKETE
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B2 REHRFORKE B ([ REHE])) - &
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90 % Lb 7] W BR. ©
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27 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31

27 {EEWE

FIBAZ (&)

Hiet - (&)

(b) EERBRREZEFH

BE-F——F+-A=+—AILEE

December 2011 is set out below: BERESNHMOT -
Salaries, Employer's Employee
allowances contribution share
and  Discretionary to pension option
Name of director Fees benefits bonuses scheme benefits Total
g 2 BFHEN ERER
EEfR g Rl 113 S8 i a8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#RTR #RTR #RTR #RTR #RTR #RTR
Executive directors BiTESE
Mr. CHAN Shing B A - 5,477 769 232 231 6,709
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung ERREE - 2,500 576 115 231 3,422
Mr. YANG Dawei BARRE - 583 - - 95 678
Ms. LAU Ting 2t - 4,399 323 203 231 5,156
Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia Eqbi e - 1,765 130 81 231 2,207
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam PEFREE - 1,714 489 79 231 2,513
Mr. YIN Mark FI%4E - 1,554 9% 61 231 1,940
Mr. SHAM Kai Man BRXEE - 1,714 252 79 231 2,276
Independent non-executive BUFBTES
directors
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERLE 362 - - - 95 457
Mr. HUANG Shenglan ERERE 300 - - - 95 395
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai (Note (i) BRERESL (M) 68 - = - g 68
Mr. MIAQ Gengshu BHELE
(Note i) (W) 20 = g ! _ 270
Non-executive director FUTER
Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael SREEE
(Note (i) (W) 117 - = - 3 17
Note: Brat -
(i)  Appointed on 10 October 2011. ) W-E—F+A+BEE-
(i)  Resigned on 1 October 2011. iy RZTE——F+H—ABF-
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27 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(0

160 Annual Report 2011 & =f

Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

(continued)

The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31
December 2010 is set out below:

Name of director

ESia

Executive directors

Mr. CHAN Shing

Mr. SIT Hoi Tung

Mr. YANG Dawei

Ms. LAU Ting

Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam

Mr. YIN Mark

Mr. SHAM Kai Man

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. CUI Shu Ming

Mr. MIAO Gengshu

Mr. HUANG Shenglan

Non-executive director
Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael

WiTES
RS
BEREL
BARRE
Hgat
Efmat
DERRE
FOEE
BROCEE

BUFNTES

EERRE
L ik
BBERL

i
£BERE

Fees

He
HKS$'000
AETT

363
360
297

153

Salaries,
allowances
and
benefits
¢ 2
RAEF
HK$'000
BETT

4,781
2,360

583
4,189
1,680
1,632
1,460
1,632

27 RRWFIAZ(E)
Wizt (4)

(b) EERERTEERFTHMZ)

HE-_T-TF+_A=+—ALLEFEE"

SREFHHOMT :
Employer's Employee

contribution share

Discretionary to pension option
bonuses scheme benefits
RIRGHEIR REREMR

BiE#e BEHR R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT

952 221 459
375 110 459
- = 188
308 193 459
124 78 459
520 75 459
120 56 459
120 75 459
- = 188
= = 188
- = 188
- = 188

Total

%
HK$'000
BT

6,419
3,304

m
5149
2,341
2,686
2,095
2,286

551
548
485

341

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include five (2010: five) directors whose

emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.

() IDfEEEFMAL

AEEEERRHFMNNALATBERL
(Z2—2F : ADEF  tMNFHE

EXE2HRAODHARER
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28

29

=
fraf

U5 ¥R R M R

FINANCE COSTS 28 BMERE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Interest on: FE :
— Bank borrowings wholly repayable —RAFREHEEDN
within five years IRITER 78,162 42,753
— Other loans —HEE®R 151 30
— Finance lease liabilities —mEHEAE 155 68
78,468 42,851
Less: amounts capitalised on B BREREEREE
qualifying assets okl (8,500) (3,200)
69,968 39,651

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until
2016. The Company’s subsidiaries established in the British
Virgin Islands are exempted from British Virgin Islands
income taxes. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided
at the rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit arising in or derived from Hong Kong for
the year. Subsidiaries of the Group in Mainland China are
subject to Mainland China enterprise income tax ranging
from 24% to 25% (2010: 20% to 25%) on their taxable
income determined according to Mainland China tax laws.
Taxation on other overseas profits has been calculated on
the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

29 FRiSM%H

RARAIEHERERBEEE S —~
FoRABRELESKILZMBARM
RBRBEIBESIIER - BEMNEM
BRAFEEAEARREE B BNEZRH
A Z16.5%(ZF—FF : 16.5% )
o AREERFEZHBRRBEMZF
B EATSH - Rh RE AT ERH
T8 224% 225% (ZE—ZFF : 20%
B25%)itE - A BINEFIZHEEER
BEGTFEERRBAFIRASEEBLE
EBERRITHEE -
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29 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

fre M HRARM T

29 PR (&)

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BET T
Current tax REFHTE
- Hong Kong profits tax — BEFEH 500 500
— Mainland China taxation — A 1,869 3,009
— Overseas taxation —GINEIR 151 307
2,520 3,816
Adjustments in respect of prior years LARTEE A
- Hong Kong profits tax —EBEREH 87 2,571
— Mainland China taxation —hEF IR 575 168
— Overseas taxation —/BHNHIB = 9
662 2,748
Deferred income tax relating to the origination RS EIFEZE
and reversal of temporary differences B E A K8 6,625 15,829
Income tax expense Fre iz i 9,807 22,393
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29

30

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The tax on the Group’s (loss)/profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the tax rate of the home country of the Company as
follows:

fre M HRARM T

29 FR@MTH (&)

AEEBBRTSTA(BR), Bz
MIEERBRERAARBRLBER 2R
MmetBE 2 EmitR M

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT T TT
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BrETSRIAT(E518), &R (282,397) 586,657
Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5% (2010: BRHE 16.5% (2 F—F
16.5%) F :16.5%)5T & (46,595) 96,798
Effect of different taxation rates in other EEBRRTRFE
countries a7 2,581 5,965
Income not subject to taxation IR A (1,022) (90,045)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes ~A 1%~ Sz H 46,771 5,758
Unrecognised tax losses RERIE 9,872 3,561
Adjustments in respect of prior years VART 2 5% 662 2,748
Utilisation of previously unrecognised ERRERIARAER
tax losses 2 Bia = (440)
Others He (2,462) (1,952)
Tax charge MBS H 9,807 2293

(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company is
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to
the extent of a loss of approximately HK$6,164,000 (2010:
a profit of approximately HK$627,198,000).

30 FLFRSBFAAERMGUER) &
7

BERARRIFIEHRER M 2 AD A S
HH AL E B ELE6,164,000 T
T —TF  BFHE627,198,000
JL) ©
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4= A

RA B HRRN

31 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 31 BR(BGR) 2
Basic and diluted BEXREE
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share are calculated SREREEE(ERE) BIEEAD
by dividing the (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the AEXEAEAERG(ER) &F B
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary LA TS mA M INEE & 8 5t
shares in issue during the year. & o
2011 2010
(Loss)/Profit attributable to owners of the RABIEREE ATEG (S
Company (HK$'000) 1B,/ BF(EETFIT) (304,687) 549,444
Weighted average number of ordinary shares & 77 % i@ A% & hn#E 715
in issue (thousands) 2 (F=t) 4,795,962 4,183,123
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share FRREAR K (EiE)
(HK cents per share) B F) (TR AL) (6.35) 13.13
The outstanding share option have an anti-dilutive effect MAITENERESHE S —SF8%
on the basic (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended —E——F+-"A=+—HIFENE
31 December 2010 and 2011. RER(ER) BFGFEREEER -
32 DIVIDENDS 32 BB

On 21 January 2010, the shareholders at the special
general meeting passed the ordinary resolution in relation
to the distribution in specie of shares in an associate,
China LotSynergy Holdings Limited (“CLS"), on the basis
of 9 CLS shares for every 20 shares of the Company held.
A total of 1,540,023,984 CLS shares with an aggregate
market value of approximately HK$639,110,000 were
recognised as distribution during the year ended 31
December 2010. The distribution has resulted in a gain on
distribution in specie of shares of CLS of approximately
HK$501,897,000 which was recognised in consolidated
income statement during the year ended 31 December
2010.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final

dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010:
Nil).
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33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

33 IFEHARERME

(a) Cash generated from/(used in) operations

(a) BEEE (FA)WRE

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE(BE),/ BT (292,204) 564,264
Adjustments for: THE
- Tax — R 9,807 22,393
— Depreciation e 11,267 11,976
— Amortisation — B 7,348 5,584
— Gains on disposal of —HELFEREL
land use rights gl = (4,787)
— Losses on disposal of property, plant ~ — &2 - 2K
and equipment Bl 449 2,014
— Share option expenses — BRI 3,739 9,548
— Fair value gains on investment —REMENRTE

properties W25 (38,611) (62,866)
— Fair value losses/(gains) on financial —RAFEEIBIERY

assets at fair value through profit or IROMIEEEZ A

loss FEEE (k) 9,033 (1,039)

— Fair value losses/(gains) on other —HeWBEEZRYF
financial assets BEEE (W) 277,709 (34,840)
— Gain on distribution of shares in an baRid: AaNEI i el

associate gl = (501,897)
— Dividends received from financial —WEE A EEBE
assets at fair value through profit or AR BT TS B

loss iz 8 (85) (12)
— Interest income — R BHA (2,360) (804)
— Finance costs —BE KA 69,968 39,651
— Share of profits of associates — PTG H 2 A A & A (4,668) (7,653)
— Effect of foreign exchange rate — SN R ) 2
changes wa (3,198) 4,581
48,194 46,113
Changes in working capital: BEECETE
— Inventories —FE 127,655 (171,973)
- Bills and accounts receivable — JEUN =5 & FE R I8 (154,717) (56,383)
— Deposits, prepayments and other &% BIRKEEE
receivables FE R 120,666 71,468
— Due from an associate AN S = 1,751
— Due from a related company —BE N RIRK - (1750)
— Due to associates — REtE R AIFIR - (24,079)
— Due to related companies — REBERBIFIA = 24,079
— Bills and accounts payable — I EEREMIRIE (126,131) (7,285)
— Other payables and —HEBEMIRIER
accruals fEETE A (28,109) 25,673
Cash used in operations LETAMNE S (12,442) (92,387)
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33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 33 S4B RERME &)

FLOWS (continued)

(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash

(b) BERBSFRMBEBRIN

equivalents

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Cash at banks and on hand RITREFRSE 158,041 189,123
Short-term bank deposits RHISRITER 88,569 184,980
246,610 374,103
Less: Pledged bank deposits B EIRIRITER (25,124) (2,335)

Short-term bank deposits with RIFHE A

original maturity of more than =EANREZ
three months R ARERTTIF 5K (29,686) =
Bank overdrafts RITEX (866) (955)
190,934 370,813
34 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 3 RIERBRAR
(a) Capital commitments (a) BERIE

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT IT

Contracted but not provided BELEREE
— Property, plant and equipment — M S NERE 12,722 14,475
— Investment in an associate e NRIRE 11,343 =
24,065 14,475

166 Annual Report 2011 & =f



W HEERE R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & Bf 7 # & M 5=
34 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34 RIERBRREEZ)

(continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments — where the

(c)

Group is the lessee

At 31 December 2011, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

(b) BEHARAIR-FREABEEAA

RZB——F+A=1t—RH &
ERBETAHE s CEREMN AR
KX HREEENRERET ¢

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

B¥ETT BT

Not later than one year BB —F 2,383 297
Later than one year and —F1%A

not later than five years TEB/AF 6,751 179

Over five years BiEAF 15,674 106

24,808 582

Operating leases — where the Group is the lessor

At 31 December 2011, the Group had future
minimum lease payments receivable under non-

(c)

EEHA-FKERHAA

WoE——F+-fA=+—8 &
S5 BB 05T 54 BT B T 0

cancellable operating leases as follows: RIRWE 2 S K & RIB BRI
TS 8

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETRT BT T

Not later than one year BB —F 21,964 18,622
Later than one year and BB —FE

not later than five years THEBAF 50,782 58,306

Over five years BBRF 5,926 5,715

78,672 82,643

Contingent-based rents recognised in the
consolidated income statement were approximately
HK$1,731,000 (2010: HK$3,173,000).

REEABRRERNIAESH R
B#1,731,000L(ZE—FF + /B
#3,173,0007T) °
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34 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(continued)

fre MR T

34 RiERBRARE)

(d) Corporate guarantees (d) LFEE

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT

Guarantees for general banking facilities /A4 A FRITREE EH
granted to an associate ZER 11,260 13,800

Guarantees given to banks for mortgage A%EYEEE EIRBEE

facilities granted to the buyers of the NMmAERITEH 2 &R
Group's properties 924 90
11,354 13,890

(e)

()

In the opinion of the directors, no material liabilities
will arise from the above guarantees which arose in
the ordinary course of business and the fair value of
the corporate guarantees granted by the Group is
immaterial.

Forward foreign currency exchange contracts

At 31 December 2011, the Group had commitment
in respect of outstanding forward foreign currency
exchange contracts to buy maximum amounts of US
dollar of 34,000,000 and 2,261,050 against Hong
Kong dollar and Euro respectively (2010: Nil) and
a maximum amount of Renminbi of 750,400,000
against US dollar (2010: Nil).

Contingent liabilities

(i) At 31 December 2011, the Group’s contingent
liabilities relating to Mainland China land
appreciation tax amounted to approximately
HK$30,572,000 (2010: HK$29,305,000).
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34 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(continued)

(f) Contingent liabilities (continued)

(ii)

The Company has been provided with a writ
dated 17 October 2011 (“Writ”) filed with the
Shandong Province Tsingdao City Intermediate
People’s Court of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC") under which a PRC individual
(“Plaintiff”) alleged that he is the beneficial
owner of 50% of the equity interest in %53
EWEAR AT (“Allegation”) and that 552
ZMWEABMR A7 holds such 50% equity interest
in 5 RBEFXER AT as nominee for the
Plaintiff. In the Writ, X5 EEEER A 7] and
EEREBEEER AR have been named as
defendants. A date for hearing of the Allegation
is to be fixed. In the interim, as a result of the
Allegation, the Shandong Province Tsingdao
City Intermediate People’s Court of the PRC
has imposed freezing order in respect of 50%
equity interest in 5 RBEEBRAA] held
by 55X EEEAMR AR and freezing orders
in respect of an exploration right and a mining
right held by €[5 Z=EBEE B R A7 (“Freezing
Orders”). The Company has been advised by its
PRC legal advisors that the legal effect of the
Freezing Orders is that the frozen equity interest
and rights will be restricted from transfer during
the existence of the Freezing Orders but the
operations of #[5RBWEER AT will not
be hindered by the imposition of the Freezing
Orders. The Company has instructed PRC legal
advisors to advise on and handle the Freezing
Orders and the Allegation.

The Company’s indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, Burwill Minerals Limited, acquired on
31 March 2010 and 27 June 2011 respectively a
total of approximately 70% interest in the total
issued share capital of Tai Xin Minerals Limited
which, based on the understanding of and due
diligence conducted by the Company, indirectly
through 5 5&R&EEZFAFR A F] holds the entire
legal and beneficial equity interest of K5 Ze &
¥ ABRAA]. At the time of such acquisitions, the
Company was not aware of the existence of any
third party right (if any) over the equity interest
of #5HRBEFEEGMR AT If the Allegation is
proven to be true or if the Company suffers any
loss or damage as a result of the Allegation, the
Company will consider recovering any loss from
the vendor from whom Burwill Minerals Limited
acquired such 70% issued shares in Tai Xin
Minerals Limited.

fre MR EE

34 RiERBRARE)

(f) BRAMGE)

(ii)

AABBBERPEILIRE
FEETHRARERERH
Ha_—_FT——F+A++tH
ZEMA L) - SHRE—
FEATRE D EBER
HAXRGREBEEER QA
50% Bz ERmER A (%
Bl MESRBRESR
RAFHEERREZRAA
REFERGREREZER
NA50%MAE - RSHAA -
RERBERXABRAARSE
EXBREXERARGHE
WS » %IEW 2R B8
EfrfEE - B - PEIILR
EEEMPRARZRER
ZEREBRULHATERE
BEERAFAFHHRGFE
T AR 2 A150% AR #E K 3
BREBEFR QA ZHE
RERBERETTER([E
1)  ARAZHBEEEE
RRR BHZEEMIE
RRESH ARE L ERERK
EHBERERN - AW
HEEEBERFARAAZA
FEETEREHCHFY
2 - AREEEH NZE
WEXPBEEZERERLR
BRIBTTER °

ARAEEEZENBRARE
BEXxBERARED AR
L—tdEE s Bl qr=[f R=
T——FE XA+t BkE
Tai Xin Minerals Limited{§&
B BEITRALELT0%
= REBEARRMEBRER
FEFTEN - Tai Xin Minerals
Limited BB EEXEEXS
RAREEFERGRERE
X¥ERRDAIZHBEERE
AR AE o RUEEERRS + AR
AWEEREANE=F(E
B)EERKGRERBES
RAGFERE - WEZIE
HEZFEXEGEALREZIE
HmERZEMBLAKERE
ARBBEERMBEREXR
R 2815 ATai Xin Minerals
Limited 70% B TR ZE
F et EHEf B4k o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(@) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

(i)

(ii)

On 20 June 2011, the Group exercised the
call option granted by Tai Xin Minerals Limited
pursuant to the call option agreement dated 22
January 2010, Tai Xin Minerals Limited issued
and allotted 64 new shares of US$1 each in the
share capital of Tai Xin Minerals Limited to the
Group on 27 June 2011. The Group increased
its interest in the enlarged issued share capital
of Tai Xin Minerals Limited by 19.12% by way
of issuing new shares of Tai Xin Minerals Limited
at premium, for a purchase consideration of
HK$259,000,000. The carrying amount of the
non-controlling interests in Tai Xin Minerals
Limited and its subsidiaries on the date of the
completion of call option was approximately
HK$70,124,000. The Group recognised
an increase in non-controlling interests of
approximately HK$50,025,000 and a decrease
in equity attributable to owners of the Group of
approximately HK$50,025,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2010,
the Group's disposal of 20% of its interest
in Burwill Resources Spain, S.A., reduced its
continuing interest to 70%. The proceed on
disposal was approximately HK$152,000. An
amount of approximately HK$94,000 (being the
proportionate share of the carrying amount of
the net assets of Burwill Resources Spain, S.A.)
has been transferred to non-controlling interests.
The difference of approximately HK$58,000
between that amount and the consideration
received has been credited to retained profits.

(b) Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
acquired an additional 30% of the issued shares of
Burwill Metal Limited for a purchase consideration of
HK$30.
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35 HIFERERXS

(a) MEBLAFMAERGZEEB(FY
SiEE)

(i)

(ii)

RZE——FAA=+A8 "
REBBE _ZT T F —
AZ+-—HHRERER
% 17f£MTai Xin Minerals
Limited$% HHUFREEIRHE - Tai
Xin Minerals Limited A==
——FEXNAZT+TEHBTR
fic 2% 5 AR (B 1 32 TR 64 BT
R FAEE - REBETai
Xin Minerals Limited A 5 & 2%
B RATIEAE BT
PR AREZRIENN19.12% » URBE
R (B &8 %259,000,0007C °
REKBEREE B - Tai Xin
Minerals Limited R EBHEB A
AR FEIE AR M 2 2 IR T (B 4
75 170,124,000 7T © KAEE
2R JE 1R AR 4 25 2 R T (B 18
HN 49 7% ¥ 50,025,000 7T & #E
REZFBRAEERTEA
B #4978 %50,025,0007T °

R ZEF+_A=+—
HIEFERN  NEBLOE
#152,0007T & E R Burwill
Resources Spain, S.A. 20%
R - WD EBR TR
270% ° #9785%94,0007T (3%
Lt 5] & {5 Burwill Resources
Spain, S.A.ZFEEREE)
BWEEE IR - Z
SHERKREZEZEAE
#58,000 T I E 5 AR &
A o

(b) BA—FEREBLRHHEIMED

A=
N
M=l

TS t-A=t—ALF

BR - REBNUBEIOTAEER
{B# ABurwill Metal LimitedZ&4p
30% 2 BEITIRG o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(a)

On 31 March 2010, the Group acquired 51% interest
in Tai Xin Minerals Limited which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. The consideration was
satisfied by the payment of HK$260,000,000 in
cash and the issue of 685,700,000 new shares
("Consideration Shares”) by the Company to Tai
Xin Investment Limited and Tai Xin Holdings Limited
(as “vendor”). The subsidiaries of Tai Xin Minerals
Limited own iron ore mines in the Shandong Province,
China. Further details of the acquisition are set out in
the Company’s circular dated 27 January 2010.

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill were as
follows:

fre M HRARM T

36 EFBAH

(a)

R-_ZTE—ZTF=F=+—8 "
AEBWRETREBELZES T
fit X 32 2 A &l Tai Xin Minerals
Limited#)51%# % - BB
260,000,000 7T ¥ & K& B AR A A
%17 FTai Xin Investment Limited
KTai Xin Holdings Limited([ &
75 1) 685,700,000 B 1 B2 15 ([
B 1) ZAF ° Tai Xin Minerals
LimitedZ B A AIAFR R ILESE
HHEUERE - WHENETERDE
WR=ZE—ZTF—A=Z+tHAER
RIAPK ©

WIEEEFEMAEFROD

HK$'000
BT T
Purchase consideration: WHERE :
Cash paid BERE 260,000
Shares issued at fair value AT ERITZR’G 479,990
Contingent consideration HARE (314,867)
425,123
Fair value of net assets acquired WEEEFHE2ATE
— shown as below — R X TR (66,202)
Goodwill B 358,921
Acquisition-related costs (included in WEEERER (EREE—_S—Z4F
general and administrative expenses inthe +—-HA=+—HIFFEZ&51E%
consolidated income statement for the RN —REITHRERA)
year ended 31 December 2010) 5,298
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 Bf 75 #f 3% B =

36 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(a) (continued)

36 ¥¥aHtE)

(@ (&)

The assets and liabilities as of 31 March 2010 arising

R=B—BF=A=+—R Ak

from the acquisition were as follows: BEAVEERABEBNOT :
Acquiree’s
carrying
Fair value amount
WIS TS 2
~YE IRTEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
ST I BT T
Property, plant and equipment MEE - MBS KRG 3,963 14,111
Intangible assets EmEEE 185,178 13,727
Deferred income tax assets BIEFTSHAE 3,909 3,909
Inventories 5 (P72081 1,711
Accounts receivable FEUIR IR B9l 391
Deposits, prepayments and other e BNREETE
receivables W 20,389 20,389
Cash and bank balances B MBS 1,112 1,112
Borrowings B (11,199) (11,199)
Accounts payable FERIIRIE {.517) (1.517)
Other payables and accruals HEEEMRENESER (37,091) (37,091)
Provision for land restoration and TR RIRIBA AN
environmental costs B (1,674) (1,674)
Deferred income tax liabilities RS AR (45,362) -
Net assets BEFE 129,807 3,869
Non-controlling interests SEFE AR 63,605
Net assets acquired g & B R EE 66,202
Purchase consideration settled in cash ~ LAIR& X T2 WERE 260,000
Deposit paid for acquisition of g YN
subsidiaries Be (78,000)
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiaries FTUEEHB AT ZHE K&
acquired REeEEY (1,112)
Cash outflow on acquisition WHEELEZEERE 180,888
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HmERN T
36 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 36 (KE#E)

(a) (continued)

(@ (&)

The fair value of 685,700,000 ordinary shares issued
as part of the considerations paid to the vendor was
based on the published share price on 31 March
2010.

Pursuant to the share purchase agreement of Tai
Xin Minerals Limited, the vendor has irrevocably
and unconditionally undertaken and guaranteed
to Burwill Minerals Limited (as “purchaser”) (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) that the
net profit as reflected in the audited consolidated
financial statements of Tai Xin Minerals Limited for
the financial year ended 31 December 2010 would
not be less than HK$120,000,000 (the “Guaranteed
Profit”). The vendor has also entered into a share
pledge with the purchaser in favour of the purchaser
such that in the event that the Guaranteed Profit was
not met, the purchaser would have the right to deal
with or dispose of the Consideration Shares, on the
basis of eight Consideration Shares for every HK$1 of
shortfall. The fair value of contingent consideration
arrangement of approximately HK$314,867,000 was
estimated by applying market value approach.

As of 31 December 2010, there was an increase of
approximately HK$34,840,000 recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the contingent
consideration arrangement and the fair value
of contingent consideration arrangement was
approximately HK$349,707,000.

Goodwill arising from acquisition of Tai Xin Minerals
Limited and its subsidiaries (“Tai Xin Group"”) was
attributable to the anticipated profitability and future
development of Tai Xin Group in the mining business
and the anticipated future operating synergy from
the business combination.

Tai Xin Group contributed revenue of approximately
HK$36,720,000 and net loss of approximately
HK$3,527,000 to the Group for the period from the
date of acquisition to 31 December 2010. Tai Xin
Group had no sales for the period from 1 January
2010 to the date of acquisition.

EAINERHNHHMREMmET
685,700,000 % & 18 i% f% 17 &9 2
BENERER - E—ZTF=A=+—
AZERAMARE -

1B #ETai Xin Minerals LimitedP&{p
BEEWmaE s TAHE - &
&4 mBurwill Minerals Limited
TEAD(ABEXAREIZ2EKBRA
7)) #EE RIRE 0 Tai Xin Minerals
Limited B Z —_ZE—ZTF+_ A
T+ ALV RFELEZERE
B mERIRBRZFRANETS
LR ¥ 120,000,000 T ([{RE R
) - BEHMEHEHRNRERD -
BF AR REEBUREBERAE - B A
BaEEERHENRERD - TR
AEELGBE I LZEREN\K
RERKRD - IAREBLZHEHAT
BEMEBEEARNGEHREE
314,867,0007T °

—E-TF+_-_A=+—8" &
BB RPRERATIE INE AR
B 2 HE 4978 % 34,840,0007T © K&
FARBLHZATENEBE
349,707,0007T °

UgB&Tai Xin Minerals Limited &2 £
WBAR([RE&EE)EEAZEHE
ARBEBNREXR 2 BRAT
RE N MR REE B A R ¥ 754 T R
EE 7 BERELEmREME -

BRERSHE T+ A
=+—BHH ZEEEALEE
U 25 497545 36,720,0007T © &=
AR EE A B H53,527,0007T © 3&
EEBEN_ZT—ZTF—A—HBEW
BEHHHAREY ENE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #x & Bt 7 3} & M 5%

36 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(a) (continued)

36 ¥¥aHtE)

(a) (#)
Had Tai Xin Group been consolidated from 1 January Quﬁ/\*%—gi—ﬁ]—aﬁﬁ e
2010, the consolidated income statement would BiEAAE  EESESENSE
show revenue of approximately HK$6,080,074,000 /T\E’juﬁz 25 478 6,080,074,000 7T

and profit of approximately HK$596,780,000.

N BRI #)78%596,780,0007T °

On 26 May 2010, the Group acquired Allied Gold by RZZE—ZTFRA=-+H ' &%
Corporation Limited, a company incorporated in E4Tai Xin Minerals LimitedUg &
Hong Kong, through Tai Xin Minerals Limited. The TEAAMKILZ AT BEBRA
subsidiary of Allied Gold Corporation Limited is 7 BEERATIZHB ARG
engaged in the mining business in China. Bl EEEEETS o
Details of net liabilities acquired and goodwill were as WEBEZE N EEHBNT
follows:
HK$'000
BETIT
Purchase consideration: IR (E
Cash paid BEfRE =
Fair value of net liabilities acquired WEeEFE2ATE
— shown as below — TN XFTR 1,079
Goodwill RS 1,079
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %74 Bf 75 #f 3% B =%

36 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

36 ¥¥aHtE)

(b) (continued) (b) (&)
The assets and liabilities as of 26 May 2010 arising N-ZE—FSERA—+5H 8%
from the acquisition were as follows: BELAEERAGHT :

Acquiree’s
carrying
Fair value amount
WUEET 2
AHE IREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Property, plant and equipment MEE - MBS KRG 6,810 6,810
Inventories Ve 1,891 1,891
Deposits, prepayments and other & BANREEE
receivables &N 36,867 36,867
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITLHEER 50 50
Borrowings B (45,252) (45,252)
Accounts payable FEfIIRIE (1,445) (1,445)
Net liabilities BEFE (1,079) (1,079)
Purchase consideration settled in cash IR & 7 WEER B -
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiaries FTUWEEHTEB ARl 2R & K
acquired REFEY 50
Cash inflow on acquisition WHEEEZBERA 50

Goodwill arising from acquisition of Allied Gold
Corporation Limited and its subsidiary (“Allied
Gold Group”) was attributable to the anticipated
profitability and future development of Allied Gold
Group in the mining business and the anticipated
future operating synergy from the business
combination.

Allied Gold Group contributed no revenue and net
loss of approximately HK$840,000 to the Group
for the period from the date of acquisition to 31
December 2010. Allied Gold Group had no sales
for the period from 1 January 2010 to the date of
acquisition.

WEBREERDAMENB AR
(BReERELCHERREE
BN EREERS 2 ER ARG BoR
RERANEGAHBHEL ZH
BEE RN

BWEARE_—_ZT—FTE+_H4
=+—HHH  BeEETEARN
SEE RN - EEFBHBROEE
840,0007T - R& KR =-_ZT—F
F—H—AERER B HARE I A
&= o

=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

37

(b) (continued)

Had Allied Gold Group been consolidated
from 1 January 2010, the consolidated income
statement would show revenue of approximately
HK$6,080,074,000 and profit of approximately
HK$563,743,000.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

At 31 December 2011, the following assets were pledged:

(a)

Certain leasehold land, land use rights and
buildings with a net book amount of approximately
HK$98,110,000 (2010: HK$101,027,000);

Certain motor vehicles and machinery with a net
book amount of approximately HK$4,105,000 (2010:
HK$4,507,000);

Certain investment properties of approximately
HK$731,433,000 (2010: HK$647,473,000);

Pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$25,124,000 (2010: HK$2,335,000);

Certain financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of equity securities listed in Hong Kong with
market value of approximately HK$4,764,000 (2010:
Nil); and

Shares in certain subsidiaries of the Company.
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36

37

Ek¥athE)
(b) (#)

WR=ZZE—ZTF—H—BEHES
EBLGZAAR - EREBERMZ
TN HY Uy 25 49 7 ¥ 6,080,074,000 7T
N B 4978 #563,743,0007T °

REEH

R=B——F+=A=+—0 UTZ
ER TR

(a) HMEELH - HHFERERET
IR T FE #4975 #598,110,000 7T (=
T4 : B#101,027,0007T) :

BB R N S IRERE L) B
4,105,000 (ZF—FTF : B
4,507,0007T) :

() EBMI%EMELBET31,433,000
TT(ZF—FF : B%647,473,000
JC)

EAIRIRITFE LB #6 25,124,000
—ZT—FF : Bk 335,0007T) ;

(e) ERPIRAFEFBBEFZIIIRNIE
BENBASLTREEFTEHBE
4,764,000C(ZE—T4F : ) ;
)53

(f) FHEARRZHBRBRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %74 Bf 75 #f 3% B =%

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group had the following material related party

transactions for the year ended 31 December 2011:

(a) Related party transactions which were carried out

MEHX 5

RETSHRERTBHERES - A%E
WRE-—2——F+-A=t+—HItF
EEETATEAEBEALRS -

() BEE-RELZEXT

EITE

in the normal course of the Group’s business are as HXESWT :
follows:
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Rental income received from an associate B Bk A B1FE & WA 2,684 3,135
Service income received from an associate B Yi& A & RS WA 596 444
Sales to associates HE THE A - 3,010
Purchase from an associate mitE N REE = 42,019
Rental expense paid to an associate EfEE QA RESRY = 40
Rental expense paid to a related company = f1EE R RHASRS = 216
(b) Compensation to key management personnel (b) EEEEAEME

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRETT BT
Wages and salaries HeITHE 22,514 20,350
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RS — B E 3k 2 850 808
Staff welfare BTEH 942 492
Employee share option benefits 1B BB AR ERE A 1,902 3,401
26,208 25,051
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(0

Details of loan to a director of the Company,
disclosed pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

Name of borrower

tERALES

Position

Bz

Terms of the loan
BENGHE
— interest rate
—Fls%
— security

—

— repayment term
—BREH

— borrowing date
— & A

Balance of loan in respect of principal and interest

,\TAZK%&%U /5N ll:l

—at 31 December 2010

-RN—_E—ZTF+_-_A=+—H

—at 31 December 2011

e e s

= A
R A

B 755 2k BT ot

38 REAXH(Z)

BIEQBIEFE161BIE M BHE
NABEEERZHBHOT -

YIN Mark
FIL

Executive Director

WITES

4% per annum
& B e

unsecured

AR

4 years

Y4

26 March 2008
—EENFE=A=+"H

HK$391,000
75 #391,0007T

HK$195,000
7&5%195,0007T

Maximum balance outstanding during the year

FAZDRKE

HK$391,000
7B#391,0007T
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Schedule of Properties held for Investment & ¥ ¥ — & X

Group’s
Address Lease Existing use interest
kit HHER RTHZ SEHER
537 Wenchang Road Central, Medium lease Commercial 69%
Yangzhou, Jiangsu Province, FRHERFRAY [EES
China
PEITEE
BN
N EFEE53755%
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Five Years' Financial Summary & 8 7 &

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

AEBBENEMBFEZREE  BERA

financial years are as follows: BT -
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A% BETT BT BETT BB T
Results |
Sales SHE 7,623,154 6,080,074 3,256,714 8,334,596 5,452,012
Gross profit E7 179,129 156,753 97,754 223,221 143,233
Operating profit IR AR 60,612 81,918 67,227 215,547 120,539
(Loss)/Profit attributable to: (B18)/BHSEEBR :
Owners of the Company AABIREEEEA (304,687) 549,444 (4,646) (148,808) 86,307
Non-controlling interests iy 12,483 14,820 12,310 43,905 8,964
(292,204) 564,264 7,664 (104,903) 95,271
Assets and liabilities HERAR
Non-current assets FRBEE 2,021,916 1,908,966 1,206,860 994,984 960,434
Current assets REEE 2,022,876 2,502,844 1,891,420 1,669,053 1,675,757
Total assets BEE 4,044,792 4,411,810 3,098,280 2,664,037 2,636,191
Non-current liabilities ERHERE 415,136 550,719 398,352 98,078 56,263
Current liabilities nEAaE 1,363,063 1,599,825 1,111,877 1,096,638 1,327,960
Total liabilities HWEE 1,778,199 2,150,544 1,510,229 1,194,716 1,384,223
Total equity BRER 2,266,593 2,261,266 1,588,051 1,469,321 1,251,968
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